
  

Village Council Meeting -October 20, 2020  Page 1 of 3 

 

VILLAGE OF NEWBERRY 

VILLAGE COUNCIL MEETING   

ELECTRONIC MEETING – REGULAR SESSION 

Tuesday, October 20, 2020 

Meeting Location: ZOOM CONFERENCE CALL 

Meeting Time: 6:00 p.m. 

 
1. VIRTUAL WAITING ROOM OPENED – By IVM 

Join Zoom Meeting: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89380462624 

 

By Phone:  1-888-475-4499 or 1-877-853-5257  

Meeting ID 893 8046 2624#  

 

2. PARTICIPANTS BRIEFED ON PROCESS FOR PUBLIC PARTICIPATION – By IVM 

1. Calls will be listen-only mode during business portions of the meeting 

2. Callers will be unmuted individually during each public comment section 

i. Callers will be identified by the last four digits of their phone number or by their computer login information 

ii. Each caller will be asked if they would like to comment – comment is not required 

iii. Caller must identify themselves by name and address before speaking or will not be able to proceed with comments 

iv. Callers will be held to a 3min time limit  

 

3. CALL TO ORDER – By VP 

 

4. ROLL CALL 

 

5. APPROVAL OF AGENDA  

 

6. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. Village Council –Regular Session – September 15, 2020 

 

7. PUBLIC COMMENTS ON AGENDA ITEMS – Prior to consideration of official business, citizens 

may speak to a subject on today’s agenda. Please stand at the podium provided and limit comments to 

3 minutes.  

1. Facilitated by IVM 

 

8. VILLAGE PRESIDENT COMMENTS  

a. None prescheduled 

 

9. SUBMISSION OF BILLS AND FINANCIAL UPDATES 

 

A. Village of Newberry – Monthly Payables –September 12, 2020 to October 16, 2020 

101 General Fund $193,449.92 

202 Major Streets Fund $146.11 

203 Local Street Fund $190.11 

213 Fire Revolving Fund $1814.12 

409 TORC $79.90 

418 Atlas Park Fund $0.00 

590 Sewage Receiving Fund  $61,627.10 

TOTAL EXPENSE FOR APPROVAL: $257,307.26 
 

B. McGahey Construction Draw Requests – 

a. Request No 4 - $94,050.00 – included on payables list for approval 

b. Request No. 5 - $50,580.00 – included on payables list for approval 

c. Request No. 6- $49,410.00 – request for disbursement of funds so check can be cut on 10/30 

 

C. Water & Light – Monthly Payables –September 5, 2020 to October 9, 2020 

582 ELECTRIC FUND TOTAL EXPENSE: $375, 208.88 

591 WATER FUND TOTAL EXPENSE: $176,608.15 

Total amount for both funds: $551,817.03 

 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89380462624


  

Village Council Meeting -October 20, 2020  Page 2 of 3 

 

 

 

D.  Bond Payments Included in W&L Payables – for information only 

BOND PRINCIPAL INTEREST TOTAL DUE 
DATE 

DUE 
OUTSTANDING DEBT 

2002 

Electric 
$60,000 $6,712.50 $66,712.50 11/01 Approx. $139,945.00 

2003 

Electric 
$60,000 $4,845.00 $64,845.00 11/01 Approx. $226,187.50 

2005 

Electric 
$90,000 $2,025.00 $92,025.00 11/01 Closing out 2020 

2014 

WATER 
$112,000 $60,955.62 $172,955.62 11/01 $5,625,000 

 

E. Save the Bells – for review only – 

582 Save the Bells Fund Balance Summary – as of 09/30/2020 $14,278.00 

 

F. Treasurer 

a. September 2020 Report 

 

G. Request for Disbursement of Funds – Stormwater / Asset Management / Wastewater (SAW) Grant Program  

i. Request # 27 – 09/01/2020 to 09/30/2020  

1. C2AE              Invoice #13-0210  $11,249.68 

2. Great Lakes TV Seal INC. Invoice # 20439   $4,801.71 

3. Great Lakes TV Seal INC. Invoice # 20441  $51,575.46 

4. Hiawatha Shores Landfill  Invoice # CM2019-46 $10,356.30 

5. Peter Andersson & Sons    Invoice # 10-9-2020 $4440.00 

a. TOTAL AMOUNT FOR APPROVAL:  $82,423.15 

 

H. 2018 AUDIT PRESENTATION BY SOM AUDITOR – Scheduled to begin at 6:30PM 

a. Audit copies were mailed to council and clerk. File is included at the END of council packet. 

 

10. PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS – Communications addressed to the Village Council are 

distributed to all members and are acknowledged for information or are referred to a committee or staff for 

follow-up.  

1. None prescheduled 

 

11. INTRODUCTION AND ADOPTION OF RESOLUTIONS, ORDINANCES, & 

PROCLAMATIONS 

 

1. Amendment to Ordinance 18 and Attachment to Ordinance No. 18 

 

12. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

1. Approval of Village Manager Contract 

2. Expenditure of CRLGG funds for construction of VON lobby space 

3. Water Valve Replacement on E. Truman/Vulcan 

4. 2018 Audit -presentation scheduled for 6:30PM see section 9:H 

5. 2019 Audit update 

6. VON Surplus Equipment Auction – update 

7. New maintenance building  

8. Fairbanks Generator Phase 2 repair estimate – for review 

9. Public Comment Follow-Up from Previous Meeting 

 

 

 

 



  

Village Council Meeting -October 20, 2020  Page 3 of 3 

 

 

 

13. NEW BUSINESS 

1. Amendment to Ordinance 18 – Change the snowmobile curfew in the Village Limits – see section 11:1 

2. W&L Board Appointments  

a. Appointment of Customer, non-elector seat 

i. Questionnaire received from Matthew Perry 

ii. Questionnaire received from Kirby Wendt 

b. Appointment of two Council seats 

3. EGLE Notice: Unauthorized Disposal of Solid Waste at Harrie St. Dump Site 

4. Budget Adjustments for Review 

a. Water Fund & Electric Fund 

 

14. REPORTS OF BOARDS 

1. Water & Light Board 

a. Meeting Minutes – October 13, 2020 – meeting cancelled  

2. Planning Commission Meeting: Meeting Minutes: September 28 – cancelled due to lack of quorum 

 

15. REPORTS OF COMMITTEES  

1. Ordinance Committee – Meeting Minutes:  

i. October 1, 2020 – RECOMENDATION:  Set snowmobile curfew within the Village limits for all trails 

to Midnight to 6AM, (See Section 13:1) 

ii. RECOMMENDATION: Establish Ad-Hoc Committee to concentrate on the future of Garbage Service 

2. Management Committee – Meeting Minutes 

i. September 17, 2020 – RECOMENDATION: Village Council President be the designated point of 

contact to approve the time off requests for the Interim/Village Manager. 
 

ii.  October 7, 2020 – presentation of Village Manager contract for approval (See Section 12:1) 

 

16. REPORTS OF VILLAGE OFFICERS & MANAGEMENT – The following may submit reports or 

information to the Village Council as updates and consideration. 

1. Fire Chief – written 

2. Superintendent of WWTP & DPW 

a. Monthly Report – written 

3. Working Superintendent of Water & Light  
a. Monthly Report - written 

b. Electric Consumption/Billing Report  

c. Electric Demand Large Power Report 

d. Billed Electric kWh Report 

e. Water Pumpage Report 

4. Interim Village Manager / Director of Human Resources & Community Engagement 

a. Monthly Report- written and verbal 

b. Leave approvals 

 

17. PUBLIC COMMENT – At the conclusion of the official business and public hearings, the agenda 

provides for public comment on any other matters citizens may wish to bring to the attention of the 

Village Council. Please limit comments to 3 minutes.  

• Facilitated by IVM & Clerk 

 

18. ASSIGNMENT OF PUBLIC COMMENT RESPONSE 

 

19. COMMENTS BY COUNCIL MEMBERS 

 

20. ADJOURNMENT - REGULAR SESSION 









VILLAGE PAYABLES

SEPTEMBER 12, 2020 TO OCTOBER 16, 2020

 Page 1 of 6

GL Number Inv. Line Desc Vendor Invoice Desc. Due Date Amount Check #

Dept 101 VILLAGE COUNCIL

101-101-915.000 MEMBERSHIPS & SUBSCRIPTIONSZOOM OCTOBER ZOOM MEETINGS 10/01/20 55.25 44656

Total For Dept 101 VILLAGE COUNCIL 55.25

Dept 172 VILLAGE MANAGER

101-172-719.000 HOSPITALIZATION 44 NORTH COBRA RETIREES 10/21/20 5.36 44611

101-172-719.000 HOSPITALIZATION 44 NORTH COBRA RETIREES 11/06/20 5.36 44641

101-172-726.000 LIFE INSURANCE STANDARD, THE LIFE INS 10/01/20 4.98 44617

101-172-850.000 906-291-1223 VERIZON ACCOUNT NUMBER 942077532-00003 DESK 10/07/20 6.97 44619

Total For Dept 172 VILLAGE MANAGER 22.67

Dept 201 ADMINISTRATIVE

101-201-726.000 LIFE INSURANCE STANDARD, THE LIFE INS 10/01/20 9.37 44617

101-201-752.000 OFFICE SUPPLIES NATIONAL OFFICE PRODUCTS PAPER 10/10/20 9.88 44649

101-201-752.100 OPERATING SUPPLIES RAHILLY IGA WIPES 10/10/20 4.89 44616

101-201-752.100 OPERATING SUPPLIES AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES FIRST AID SUPPLIES 08/20/20 43.66 44603

101-201-752.100 OPERATING SUPPLIES AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES VACCUMM CLEANER BAGS 10/10/20 6.98 44603

101-201-752.100 OPERATING SUPPLIES AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES WEBCAM WITH MICROPHONE/SPEAKER 10/21/20 244.92 44603

101-201-752.100 OPERATING SUPPLIES AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES WATERPROOF RAIN JACKETS/ERASERS/SWEATSHIRT/TIOLETPAPER 11/04/20 48.17 44631

101-201-752.200 IT SOFTWARE ZOOM CONFERENCE MEETINGS MAY 05/01/20 17.57 44656

101-201-752.200 IT SOFTWARE ZOOM CONFERENCE MEETINGS JUNE 06/01/20 17.57 44656

101-201-801.000 PROFESSSIONAL & CONTRACTUAL SEFAIR, ALMA OFFICE CLEANING 10/23/20 100.00 44639

101-201-850.000 FAX VERIZON ACCOUNT NUMBER 942077532-00001 FAX 10/07/20 5.80 44619

101-201-850.000 906-291-1625 FINANCE VERIZON ACCOUNT NUMBER 942077532-00003 DESK 10/07/20 29.21 44619

101-201-850.000 906-291-0055 HR VERIZON ACCOUNT NUMBER 942077532-00002 - CELL 10/07/20 10.42 44619

101-201-850.000 TELEPHONE HTC-HIAWATHA TELEPHONE CO ACCT 00042108-7 10/27/20 19.98 44645

101-201-851.000 POSTAGE UNITED STATES POST OFFICE STAMPS 09/17/20 14.05 44618

101-201-900.000 COUNCIL MINUTES NEWBERRY NEWS INC PUBLICATIONS 10/30/20 381.00 44650

101-201-910.000 PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENTWATKINS, ALLISON NOTARY REPUBLIC FEES 10/09/20 60.00 44620

101-201-910.000 PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENTWATKINS, ALLISON NOTARY REPUBLICAN BOND FEE 10/10/20 10.00 44620

Total For Dept 201 ADMINISTRATIVE 1,033.47

Dept 223 AUDIT & LEGAL EXPENSE

101-223-801.200 LEGAL SONDEE, RACINE & DOREN PLC LEGAL COUNCIL 09/30/20 3,750.00 44589

Total For Dept 223 AUDIT & LEGAL EXPENSE 3,750.00

Dept 230 ORDINANCE OFFICER

101-230-850.000 906-291-1630 - ORDIANCE OFFICERVERIZON ACCOUNT NUMBER 942077532-00003 DESK 10/07/20 27.88 44619

Total For Dept 230 ORDINANCE OFFICER 27.88

Dept 253 TREASURER

101-253-850.000 906-291-1631 TREASURER VERIZON ACCOUNT NUMBER 942077532-00003 DESK 10/07/20 27.88 44619

Total For Dept 253 TREASURER 27.88

Fund 101 General Fund

VILLAGE Payables:  September 12, 2020 to October 16, 2020  Page 1 of 6



VILLAGE PAYABLES

SEPTEMBER 12, 2020 TO OCTOBER 16, 2020

 Page 2 of 6

GL Number Inv. Line Desc Vendor Invoice Desc. Due Date Amount Check #

Dept 265 BUILDING & GROUNDS

101-265-753.000 TOOLS & EQUIP (UNR CAP, THRESHFOSTER HARDWARE KEYS 11/07/20 10.93 44640

101-265-801.000 PROF & CONTRACTUAL SERVICESUPEA ENGINEER & ARCHITECTS CIP DEVELOPMENT 10/14/20 137.50 44600

101-265-921.000 HEAT SEMCOENERGY GAS COMPANY 310 E. MCMILLAN NATURAL GAS 10/26/20 15.45 44655

101-265-921.000 HEAT SEMCOENERGY GAS COMPANY DPW GARAGE NATURAL GAS 827.500 10/26/20 42.23 44655

Total For Dept 265 BUILDING & GROUNDS 206.11

Dept 301 POLICE DEPARTMENT

101-301-719.000 POLICE HOSPITALIZATION 44 NORTH COBRA RETIREES 10/21/20 2.41 44611

101-301-719.000 POLICE HOSPITALIZATION 44 NORTH COBRA RETIREES 11/06/20 2.41 44641

101-301-726.000 LIFE INSURANCE STANDARD, THE LIFE INS 10/01/20 19.89 44617

Total For Dept 301 POLICE DEPARTMENT 24.71

Dept 441 PUBLIC WORKS

101-441-718.000 MEDICAL SCREENING - PRE EMPLOYHELEN NEWBERRY JOY HOSPITALPRE-EMPLOYMENT LABS 10/14/20 45.00 44612

101-441-718.000 MEDICAL SCREENING - PRE EMPLOYFIRST ADVANTAGE LNS OCC HEALTHPRE-EMPLOYMENT TESTING 10/30/20 42.84 44646

101-441-718.000 MEDICAL SCREENING - PRE EMPLOYUPPER PENINSULA IMAGING PC XRAYS 10/01/20 65.00 44671

101-441-718.000 MEDICAL SCREENING - PRE EMPLOYFMCSA D&A CLEARINGHOUSE CDL QUERY 09/02/20 1.25 44656

101-441-726.000 LIFE INSURANCE STANDARD, THE LIFE INS 10/01/20 10.77 44617

101-441-767.000 CLOTHING - UNIFORMS AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES WATERPROOF RAIN JACKETS/ERASERS/SWEATSHIRT/TIOLETPAPER 11/04/20 24.46 44631

101-441-768.000 CDL LICENSE FMCSA D&A CLEARINGHOUSE CDL QUERIES 09/14/20 6.25 44590

101-441-801.000 PROFESSIONAL AND CONTRACTUALUPEA ENGINEER & ARCHITECTS CIP DEVELOPMENT 10/14/20 550.00 44600

101-441-850.000 906-293-8531 VERIZON ACCOUNT NUMBER 942077532-00003 DESK 10/07/20 41.26 44619

101-441-850.000 906-291-0136 MECHANIC VERIZON ACCOUNT NUMBER 942077532-00002 - CELL 10/07/20 104.15 44619

101-441-850.000 TELEPHONE ATT U.VERSE DPW UVERSE 10/24/20 41.10 44634

101-441-850.000 TELEPHONE ATT U.VERSE DPW UVERSE 10/26/20 41.10 44636

101-441-900.000 EQUIPMENT AUCTION NEWBERRY NEWS INC PUBLICATIONS 10/30/20 336.00 44650

Total For Dept 441 PUBLIC WORKS 1,309.18

Dept 524 MOTOR POOL

101-524-752.100 OPERATING SUPPLIES DANNY'S AUTO VALUE INC HI-SPD DRILL 10/10/20 2.16 44608

101-524-752.100 OPERATING SUPPLIES DANNY'S AUTO VALUE INC WHITE WINDOW MARKER 10/10/20 5.01 44608

101-524-752.100 OPERATING SUPPLIES LYNN AUTO PARTS INC. LIQUID WRENCH 10/10/20 5.49 44613

101-524-752.100 OPERATING SUPPLIES LYNN AUTO PARTS INC. STRIPS 10/10/20 19.53 44613

101-524-752.100 OPERATING SUPPLIES DANNY'S AUTO VALUE INC MIRROR ADHESIVE/SAE FLAT 10/10/20 9.71 44608

101-524-752.100 OPERATING SUPPLIES AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES CREEPER REPLACEMENT CASTERS 10/28/20 13.21 44631

101-524-752.100 OPERATING SUPPLIES EBAY ORINGS FOR ORB BOOS AND FIAT FACE 09/24/20 61.43 44656

101-524-752.100 OPERATING SUPPLIES RAHILLY IGA DISTILLED WATER 10/10/20 11.88 44653

101-524-752.100 OPERATING SUPPLIES DANNY'S AUTO VALUE INC 125CU/FT OCYGEN 09/10/20 (36.99)

101-524-752.100 OPERATING SUPPLIES AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES WATER PROOF BUTT CONNECTOS 11/01/20 14.99 44631

101-524-752.100 OPERATING SUPPLIES LYNN AUTO PARTS INC. HOSE CLAMPS/ BOXED MINIATURES 11/10/20 18.88 44647

101-524-752.100 OPERATING SUPPLIES LYNN AUTO PARTS INC. BAG CONNECTORS 11/10/20 11.99 44647

101-524-752.100 OPERATING SUPPLIES PAYPAL HEAT SHRINK CONNECTORS/OCAPINDUSTRIES 10/02/20 17.49 44656

101-524-752.100 OPERATING SUPPLIES PAYPAL OCAPINDUSTRIES 10/02/20 15.37 44676

101-524-753.000 TOOLS & EQUIP(UNDER CAP. THRE)AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES IMPACT ADAPTER AND REDUCER SET 10/22/20 18.99 44603

101-524-753.000 TOOLS & EQUIP(UNDER CAP. THRE)DANNY'S AUTO VALUE INC 1 3/8 COMBO WR. 10/10/20 18.82 44608

101-524-753.000 TOOLS & EQUIP(UNDER CAP. THRE)DANNY'S AUTO VALUE INC SUPER PROBE/SPILT EYE PLUG TOOL 09/10/20 19.48 44637

VILLAGE Payables:  September 12, 2020 to October 16, 2020  Page 2 of 6



VILLAGE PAYABLES

SEPTEMBER 12, 2020 TO OCTOBER 16, 2020

 Page 3 of 6

GL Number Inv. Line Desc Vendor Invoice Desc. Due Date Amount Check #

101-524-753.000 TOOLS & EQUIP(UNDER CAP. THRE)DANNY'S AUTO VALUE INC BI-MOLD CREEPER 09/10/20 39.99 44637

101-524-759.000 GAS OIL & GREASE - PUBLIC WORKSWEX BANK - SPEEDWAY UNIVERSALGAS/FUEL 10/22/20 688.24 44660

101-524-759.000 GAS OIL & GREASE PICKELMANS PETRO FUEL 11/10/20 14.07 44652

101-524-801.000 PROF & CONTRACTUAL SERVICESGREAT LAKES TRUCK SERVICE DIAGNOSTIC SCAN VALVE STICKING/REPLACED EGR VALVE 10/15/20 1,365.74 44643

101-524-932.000 VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINTENANCEDANNY'S AUTO VALUE INC COOLANT SVC KIT 10/10/20 9.95 44608

101-524-932.000 VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINTENANCENEALS AUTOMOTIVE PARTS INC HYD HOSE BULK 10/10/20 117.50 44615

101-524-932.000 VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINTENANCEPAYPAL SPILL CATCHER PART 09/14/20 178.47 44618

101-524-932.000 VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINTENANCEDANNY'S AUTO VALUE INC BLADE BOLTS 10/10/20 16.20 44608

101-524-932.000 VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINTENANCEDANNY'S AUTO VALUE INC RUBBER STEEL 10/10/20 3.31 44608

101-524-932.000 VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINTENANCEDANNY'S AUTO VALUE INC BLADE BOLTS 10/10/20 12.61 44608

101-524-932.000 VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINTENANCEDANNY'S AUTO VALUE INC BLACK MAMBA XLARGE 10/10/20 13.99 44608

101-524-932.000 VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINTENANCEDANNY'S AUTO VALUE INC USS BOLTS 10/10/20 3.10 44608

101-524-932.000 VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINTENANCEFOSTER HARDWARE FASTENERS 10/10/20 2.76 44610

101-524-932.000 VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINTENANCENEALS AUTOMOTIVE PARTS INC CENTER PIN 10/10/20 9.90 44615

101-524-932.000 VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINTENANCEDANNY'S AUTO VALUE INC IGNITION SWITCH 11/10/20 45.94

101-524-932.000 VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINTENANCENEALS AUTOMOTIVE PARTS INC HYD FITTINGS 10/10/20 12.80

101-524-932.000 VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINTENANCEMIDWAY RENTALS & SALES EDGE CUTTING BOLT 10/30/20 244.20 44648

101-524-932.000 VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINTENANCEMIDWAY RENTALS & SALES PIN LINK 10/30/20 119.83 44648

101-524-932.000 VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINTENANCETRUCK & TRAILER SPECIALTIES POWER REV CYLINGER F89/F44 10/18/20 934.15 44657

101-524-932.000 VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINTENANCEEBAY WIRING DIAGRAM 09/30/20 13.65 44656

101-524-932.000 VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINTENANCEEBAY WIRING DIAGRAM 09/30/20 10.47 44656

101-524-932.000 VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINTENANCEAMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES HARNESS PLUGS CONNECTORS WIRING 11/04/20 8.19 44631

101-524-932.000 VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINTENANCEDANNY'S AUTO VALUE INC #59 BRUSH HOG KEY STOCK 09/10/20 4.06 44637

101-524-932.000 VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINTENANCEDANNY'S AUTO VALUE INC MUFFLER #59 FORD 09/10/20 45.95 44637

101-524-932.000 VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINTENANCEDANNY'S AUTO VALUE INC POWER WASHER COUPLERS 09/10/20 12.89 44637

101-524-932.000 VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINTENANCEDANNY'S AUTO VALUE INC DRILL PUMP 09/10/20 (10.19) 44637

101-524-932.000 VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINTENANCEDANNY'S AUTO VALUE INC FUEL FILTER 11/10/20 15.19 44637

101-524-932.000 VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINTENANCEDANNY'S AUTO VALUE INC PIGTAIL/SOCKET/AUTOMOTIVE RELAY 11/10/20 29.80 44637

101-524-932.000 VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINTENANCEDANNY'S AUTO VALUE INC LINCH PIN 11/10/20 4.80 44637

101-524-932.000 VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINTENANCEDANNY'S AUTO VALUE INC MINI BULBS 11/02/20 4.69 44637

101-524-932.000 VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINTENANCEDANNY'S AUTO VALUE INC IN LINE FUSE 11/10/20 6.49 44637

101-524-932.000 VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINTENANCEDANNY'S AUTO VALUE INC FOG LIGHT BULBS 11/10/20 11.78 44637

101-524-932.000 VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINTENANCEDANNY'S AUTO VALUE INC SELF TAP SRW 11/10/20 5.29 44637

101-524-932.000 VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINTENANCELYNN AUTO PARTS INC. BOXED MINIATURES 11/10/20 11.20 44647

101-524-932.000 VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINTENANCELYNN AUTO PARTS INC. LAMP 11/10/20 12.49 44647

101-524-932.000 VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINTENANCELYNN AUTO PARTS INC. RETURN OF LAMPS/PURCHASE SOCKET 11/10/20 (8.00) 44647

101-524-971.000 CAPITAL OUTLAY BUILDINGMC GAHEY CONSTRUCTION LLC REQUEST #3 NEW MAINT BUILDING 09/28/20 53,856.00 44627

101-524-971.000 CAPITAL OUTLAY BUILDINGMC GAHEY CONSTRUCTION LLC REQUEST#4 NEW MAINTENANCE BUILDING 10/15/20 79,942.50 44673

101-524-971.000 CAPITAL OUTLAY BUILDINGMC GAHEY CONSTRUCTION LLC NEW MAINTENANCE BUILDING 10/23/20 42,993.00 44674

101-524-971.000 CAPITAL OUTLAY BUILDINGSEMCOENERGY GAS COMPANY NEW SERVICE 10/10/20 2,355.58 44655

101-524-971.000 CAPITAL OUTLAY BUILDINGMC GAHEY CONSTRUCTION LLC REQUEST #5 NEW MAINTENANCE BUILDING 10/23/20 42,993.00 44675

226,379.02

Amount deducted due to duplicate check being run 42,993.00

Total For Dept 524 MOTOR POOL 183,386.02

VILLAGE Payables:  September 12, 2020 to October 16, 2020  Page 3 of 6



VILLAGE PAYABLES

SEPTEMBER 12, 2020 TO OCTOBER 16, 2020

 Page 4 of 6

GL Number Inv. Line Desc Vendor Invoice Desc. Due Date Amount Check #

Dept 525 STORM SEWER

101-525-801.000 PROFESSIONAL & CONTRACTUALUPEA ENGINEER & ARCHITECTS CIP DEVELOPMENT 10/14/20 137.50 44600

101-525-801.000 PROFESSIONAL & CONTRACTUALRANGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS MISSDIGS 10/01/20 1.82 44654

Total For Dept 525 STORM SEWER 139.32

Dept 528 RUBBISH

101-528-759.000 GAS OIL & GREASE - GARBAGEWEX BANK - SPEEDWAY UNIVERSALGAS/FUEL 10/22/20 48.14 44660

101-528-801.100 PROF & CONTR SERVICES-RESIDENTWASTE MANAGEMENT RUBBISH DISPOSAL 10/30/20 3,248.37 44659

101-528-900.000 PUBLISHING & PRINTING ARISTA INFORMATION SYSTEMS INCUB BILLIG 09/30/20 96.80 44604

101-528-900.000 PUBLISHING & PRINTING RICH PRINTING INC. CUSTOMER UPDATE FORM 10/30/20 6.45 44672

101-528-932.000 VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINTENANCEDANNY'S AUTO VALUE INC COOLANT FILTER 10/10/20 13.26 44608

101-528-932.000 VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINTENANCEDANNY'S AUTO VALUE INC HEATER HOSE 10/10/20 4.08 44608

101-528-932.000 VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINTENANCEDANNY'S AUTO VALUE INC #38 GARBAGE TRUCK HEATER CORE 09/10/20 50.33 44637

Total For Dept 528 RUBBISH 3,467.43

Total For Fund 101 General Fund 193,449.92

Dept 444 SIDEWALKS

202-444-801.000 PROF & CONTRACTUAL SERVICESUPEA ENGINEER & ARCHITECTS CIP DEVELOPMENT 10/14/20 137.50 44600

Total For Dept 444 SIDEWALKS 137.50

Dept 463 ROUTINE MAINTENANCE

202-463-726.000 LIFE INSURANCE STANDARD, THE LIFE INS 10/01/20 8.61 44617

Total For Dept 463 ROUTINE MAINTENANCE 8.61

Total For Fund 202 MAJOR STREET FUND 146.11

Dept 444 SIDEWALKS

203-444-801.000 PROF & CONTRACTUAL SERVICESUPEA ENGINEER & ARCHITECTS CIP DEVELOPMENT 10/14/20 137.50 44600

Total For Dept 444 SIDEWALKS 137.50

Dept 463 ROUTINE MAINTENANCE

203-463-726.000 LIFE INSURANCE STANDARD, THE LIFE INS 10/01/20 52.61 44617

Total For Dept 463 ROUTINE MAINTENANCE 52.61

Total For Fund 203 Local Street Fund 190.11

Dept 336 FIRE

213-336-759.000 GAS, OIL & GREASE - FIRE WEX BANK - SPEEDWAY UNIVERSALGAS/FUEL 10/22/20 60.31 44660

213-336-850.000 906-293-8141 FIRE VERIZON ACCOUNT NUMBER 942077532-00003 DESK 10/07/20 26.79 44619

213-336-850.000 TELEPHONE ATT U.VERSE FIRE HALL UVERSE 10/24/20 41.10 44633

213-336-921.000 HEAT SEMCOENERGY GAS COMPANY FIRE HALL NATURAL GAS 900.500 10/26/20 19.77 44655

213-336-929.000 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE BREATHING AIR SYSTEMS ANNUAL PREVENTATIVE 10/17/20 641.30 44607

213-336-933.000 SOFTWARE MAINTENANCEESO SOLUTIONS, INC ESO DATA REPORTING PROGRAM. SOFTWARE UPDATES AND UPGRADES10/17/20 1,024.85 44625

Total For Dept 336 FIRE 1,814.12

Fund 202 MAJOR STREET FUND

Fund 203 Local Street Fund

Fund 213 Fire Revolving Fund

VILLAGE Payables:  September 12, 2020 to October 16, 2020  Page 4 of 6



VILLAGE PAYABLES

SEPTEMBER 12, 2020 TO OCTOBER 16, 2020

 Page 5 of 6

GL Number Inv. Line Desc Vendor Invoice Desc. Due Date Amount Check #

Total For Fund 213 Fire Revolving Fund 1,814.12

Dept 757 TORC

409-757-752.100 OPERATING SUPPLIES SMART SIGNS PARK CLOSED SIGNS 10/10/20 79.90 44677

Total For Dept 757 TORC 79.90

Total For Fund 409 TORC 79.90

Dept 537 SEWER SYSTEM

590-537-718.000 MEDICAL SCREENING - PRE EMPLOYHELEN NEWBERRY JOY HOSPITALPRE-EMPLOYMENT LABS 10/14/20 45.00 44612

590-537-719.000 HOSPITALIZATION 44 NORTH COBRA RETIREES 10/21/20 2.41 44611

590-537-719.000 HOSPITALIZATION 44 NORTH COBRA RETIREES 11/06/20 2.41 44641

590-537-726.000 LIFE INSURANCE STANDARD, THE LIFE INS 10/01/20 26.44 44617

590-537-752.000 OFFICE SUPPLIES NATIONAL OFFICE PRODUCTS PAPER 10/10/20 9.88 44649

590-537-752.200 IT SOFTWARE ZOOM CONFERENCE MEETINGS MAY 05/01/20 29.28 44656

590-537-752.200 IT SOFTWARE ZOOM CONFERENCE MEETINGS JUNE 06/01/20 29.28 44656

590-537-753.000 TOOLS & EQUIP (UNDER THRES)FOSTER HARDWARE PRESSURER WASHER 10/10/20 257.98 44610

590-537-753.000 TOOLS & EQUIP (UNDER THRES)AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES CORDLESS GRINDER KIT 11/05/20 292.08 44631

590-537-759.000 GAS, OIL & GREASE - WWTP WEX BANK - SPEEDWAY UNIVERSALGAS/FUEL 10/22/20 95.14 44660

590-537-767.000 UNIFORMS WRANGLER JEANS 08/31/20 82.60 44618

590-537-767.000 UNIFORMS WRANGLER RETURN OF JEANS 09/30/20 (73.11) 44618

590-537-776.000 SUPPLIES - BUILDING MAINTENANCEAMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES DUSK TO DAWN LIGHT 10/10/20 123.74 44603

590-537-776.000 SUPPLIES - BUILDING MAINTENANCEFOSTER HARDWARE CLEANERS 10/10/20 73.54 44640

590-537-801.000 PROFESSIONAL & CONTRACTUALERIC'S SEPTIC SERVICE CLEANING GREASE PIT 10/10/20 275.00 44609

590-537-801.000 PROFESSIONAL & CONTRACTUALGREAT LAKES TV SEAL INC. VULCAN ST AND NEWBERRY AVE  INSPECTION 10/10/20 333.02 44626

590-537-801.000 PROF & CONTRACTUAL SERVICESRANGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS MISSDIGS 10/01/20 5.44 44654

590-537-801.000 PROFESSIONAL & CONTRACTUALFSOM-FULL SERVICE ORGANICS BIO SOLIDS SAMPINGS 10/22/20 20,307.50 44642

590-537-801.000 PROFESSIONAL & CONTRACTUALNORRIS CONTRACTING INC CATCH BASIN REPAIR 10/21/20 6,921.00 44666

590-537-801.200 LEGAL SONDEE, RACINE & DOREN PLC LEGAL COUNCIL 09/30/20 5,306.08 44589

590-537-850.000 FAX VERIZON ACCOUNT NUMBER 942077532-00001 FAX 10/07/20 5.79 44619

590-537-850.000 906-291-1625 FINANCE VERIZON ACCOUNT NUMBER 942077532-00003 DESK 10/07/20 66.74 44619

590-537-850.000 906-291-0055 HR VERIZON ACCOUNT NUMBER 942077532-00002 - CELL 10/07/20 93.76 44619

590-537-850.000 TELEPHONE AT&T WWTP LANDLINE- ALARM 10/08/20 80.65 44606

590-537-850.000 TELEPHONE HTC-HIAWATHA TELEPHONE CO ACCT 00042108-7 10/27/20 19.99 44645

590-537-850.000 TELEPHONE ATT U.VERSE WWTP UVERSE 10/24/20 41.11 44632

590-537-851.000 POSTAGE UNITED STATES POST OFFICE STAMPS 09/17/20 14.05 44618

590-537-900.000 PRINTING & PUBLISHING ARISTA INFORMATION SYSTEMS INCUB BILLIG 09/30/20 139.15 44604

590-537-900.000 PUBLISHING & PRINTING RICH PRINTING INC. CUSTOMER UPDATE FORM 10/30/20 19.35 44672

590-537-917.100 LAB SUPPLIES MAC'S MARKET INC PAPER TOWELS 10/10/20 27.56 44614

590-537-917.100 LAB SUPPLIES HAWKINS INC SODIUM BISULFITE/ CHLORINE CYLINDER 10/17/20 563.76 44621

590-537-917.100 LAB SUPPLIES NCL OF WISCONSIN INC PHOSPHORUS TEST N TUB PLUS 10/25/20 286.39 44651

590-537-921.000 HEAT SEMCOENERGY GAS COMPANY WWTP NATURAL GAS 994.500 10/26/20 505.24 44655

590-537-929.000 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE NEALS AUTOMOTIVE PARTS INC FITTING 10/10/20 8.95 44615

590-537-929.000 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE ASC PUMPING EQUIPMENT AURORA SMALL BORE SEAL KIT 09/03/20 337.88 44656

590-537-929.100 PREVENTATIVE MAINTENANCEGREAT LAKES TV SEAL INC. OAKUM 10/22/20 442.02 44626

Fund 409 TORC

Fund 590 Sewage Receiving Fund

VILLAGE Payables:  September 12, 2020 to October 16, 2020  Page 5 of 6



VILLAGE PAYABLES

SEPTEMBER 12, 2020 TO OCTOBER 16, 2020

 Page 6 of 6

GL Number Inv. Line Desc Vendor Invoice Desc. Due Date Amount Check #

590-537-971.000 CAPITAL OUTLAY BUILDINGMC GAHEY CONSTRUCTION LLC REQUEST #3 NEW MAINT BUILDING 09/28/20 1,267.20 44627

590-537-971.000 CAPITAL OUTLAY BUILDINGMC GAHEY CONSTRUCTION LLC REQUEST#4 NEW MAINTENANCE BUILDING 10/15/20 1,881.00 44673

590-537-971.000 CAPITAL OUTLAY BUILDINGMC GAHEY CONSTRUCTION LLC NEW MAINTENANCE BUILDING 10/23/20 1,011.60 44674

590-537-971.000 CAPITAL OUTLAY BUILDINGSEMCOENERGY GAS COMPANY NEW SERVICE 10/10/20 55.42 44655

590-537-971.000 CAPITAL OUTLAY BUILDINGMC GAHEY CONSTRUCTION LLC REQUEST #5 NEW MAINTENANCE BUILDING 10/23/20 1,011.60 44675

590-537-974.000 CONSTRUCTION -SRF BONDC2AE ARCHITECTURE ENGINEERINGCONSTRUCTION SERVICES 10/07/20 680.17 44661

590-537-974.000 CONSTRUCTION -SRF BONDC2AE ARCHITECTURE ENGINEERINGCONSTRUCTION SERVICES 10/07/20 515.44 44661

590-537-974.000 CONSTRUCTION -SRF BONDC2AE ARCHITECTURE ENGINEERINGCONSTRUCTION SERVICES 10/08/20 978.12 44661

590-537-975.000 CONSTRUCTION - SAW GRANTC2AE ARCHITECTURE ENGINEERINGCONDITION&CRITICALLY/METERING&MODELING/SOFTWARE TRAINING08/29/20 11,525.00 44661

590-537-975.000 CONSTRUCTION - SAW GRANTC2AE ARCHITECTURE ENGINEERINGMETERING&MODELING 07/30/20 4,444.88 44661

590-537-975.000 CONSTRUCTION - SAW GRANTC2AE ARCHITECTURE ENGINEERINGMETERING&MODELING/RATE STRUCTURE 10/30/20 2,471.17

Total For Dept 537 SEWER SYSTEM 62,638.70

Amount deducted due to duplicate check being run 1011.6

Total For Fund 590 Sewage Receiving Fund 61,627.10

Fund Totals:

Fund 101 General Fund 193,449.92

Fund 202 MAJOR STREET FUND 146.11

Fund 203 Local Street Fund 190.11

Fund 213 Fire Revolving Fund 1,814.12

Fund 409 TORC 79.90

Fund 590 Sewage Receiving Fund 61,627.10

Total For All Funds: 257,307.26

VILLAGE Payables:  September 12, 2020 to October 16, 2020  Page 6 of 6















Water and Light Payables

   September 5, 2020 to October 9, 2020

  Page 1 of 4

GL Number Inv. Line Desc Vendor Invoice Desc. Due Date Amount Check #

Dept 582 ELECTRIC DISTRIBUTION

582-582-726.000 LIFE INSURANCE STANDARD, THE LIFE INS 10/01/20 6.97 44617

582-582-801.000 PROFESSIONAL & CONTRACTUAL MECA 2021 SAFETY DUES 12/01/20 997.50

582-582-850.000 TELEPHONE ATT U.VERSE LARGE CAPACITY METER UVERSE 09/25/20 27.40 44571

Total For Dept 582 ELECTRIC DISTRIBUTION 1,031.87

Dept 583 GENERAL EXPENSES

582-583-718.000 MEDICAL SCREENING - PRE EMPLOY UPPER PENINSULA IMAGING PC PRE-EMPLOYMENT XRAY 10/10/20 32.50 44624

582-583-718.000 MEDICAL SCREENING - PRE EMPLOY HELEN NEWBERRY JOY HOSPITAL PRE-EMPLOYMENT 10/30/20 65.00

582-583-718.000 MEDICAL SCREENING - PRE EMPLOY FIRST ADVANTAGE LNS OCC HEALTH PRE-EMPLOYMENT TESTING 10/30/20 21.42

582-583-718.000 MEDICAL SCREENING - PRE EMPLOY HELEN NEWBERRY JOY HOSPITAL PRE-EMPLOYMENT LAB/XRAY 10/15/20 161.75

582-583-719.000 HOSPITALIZATION 44 NORTH COBRA RETIREES 10/21/20 3.22 44611

582-583-726.000 LIFE INSURANCE STANDARD, THE LIFE INS 10/01/20 24.87 44617

582-583-752.000 OFFICE SUPPLIES NATIONAL OFFICE PRODUCTS PAPER 10/10/20 9.87

582-583-752.100 OPERATING SUPPLIES AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES FIRST AID SUPPLIES 08/20/20 43.66 44603

582-583-752.100 OPERATING SUPPLIES RAHILLY IGA WATER 10/10/20 3.99

582-583-759.000 GAS & OIL - ELECTRIC WEX BANK - SPEEDWAY UNIVERSAL GAS/FUEL 09/22/20 43.30 44592

582-583-759.000 GAS & OIL - ELECTRIC WEX BANK - SPEEDWAY UNIVERSAL GAS/FUEL 10/22/20 84.05

582-583-767.000 CLOTHING - UNIFORMS AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES HIGH VISIBILITY VEST 10/23/20 16.15 44603

582-583-767.000 CLOTHING - UNIFORMS AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES HARD HATS 10/23/20 21.48 44603

582-583-767.000 CLOTHING - UNIFORMS AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES WATERPROOF RAIN JACKETS/ERASERS/SWEATSHIRT/TIOLETPAPER11/04/20 24.46

582-583-801.000 PROFESSIONAL & CONTRACTUAL RANGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS PAGER SERVICE 09/10/20 144.00 44587

582-583-801.000 PROFESSIONAL & CONTRACTUAL UPEA ENGINEER & ARCHITECTS CIP DEVELOPMENT 10/14/20 825.00 44600

582-583-801.000 PROFESSIONAL & CONTRACTUAL MECA 2021 SAFETY DUES 12/01/20 285.00

582-583-801.000 PROFESSIONAL AND CONTRACTURAL RANGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS MISSDIGS 10/01/20 14.52

582-583-801.000 PROFESSIONAL AND CONTRACTURAL FAIR, ALMA OFFICE CLEANING 10/23/20 100.00

582-583-850.000 TELEPHONE VERIZON ACCOUNT NUMBER 942077532-00001 FAX 10/07/20 5.79 44619

582-583-850.000 906-291-1627 W/L VERIZON ACCOUNT NUMBER 942077532-00003 DESK 10/07/20 13.94 44619

582-583-850.000 906-293-8531 VERIZON ACCOUNT NUMBER 942077532-00003 DESK 10/07/20 13.38 44619

582-583-850.000 906-291-1625 FINANCE VERIZON ACCOUNT NUMBER 942077532-00003 DESK 10/07/20 6.97 44619

582-583-850.000 906-293-3433 GENRAL VERIZON ACCOUNT NUMBER 942077532-00003 DESK 10/07/20 6.97 44619

582-583-850.000 906-293-5681 W/L CLERK 40% VERIZON ACCOUNT NUMBER 942077532-00003 DESK 10/07/20 10.70 44619

582-583-850.000 906-291-1223 VERIZON ACCOUNT NUMBER 942077532-00003 DESK 10/07/20 6.97 44619

582-583-850.000 906-291-1621 VERIZON ACCOUNT NUMBER 942077532-00003 DESK 10/07/20 6.97 44619

582-583-850.000 906-291-1622 H,R. VERIZON ACCOUNT NUMBER 942077532-00003 DESK 10/07/20 6.97 44619

582-583-850.000 906-291-0055 HR VERIZON ACCOUNT NUMBER 942077532-00002 - CELL 10/07/20 10.42 44619

582-583-850.000 906-291-0608 LINEMAN VERIZON ACCOUNT NUMBER 942077532-00002 - CELL 10/07/20 20.84 44619

582-583-850.000 906-450-0919 LINEMAN VERIZON ACCOUNT NUMBER 942077532-00002 - CELL 10/07/20 21.47 44619

582-583-850.000 906-291-0136 MECHANIC VERIZON ACCOUNT NUMBER 942077532-00002 - CELL 10/07/20 20.84 44619

582-583-850.000 TELEPHONE AT&T WATER/LIGHT PHONE 10/08/20 47.12 44605

582-583-850.000 JAMADOTS INTERNET HTC-HIAWATHA TELEPHONE CO ACCT 00042108-7 10/27/20 19.99

582-583-850.000 JAMADOTS - FIBER-OPTICS HTC-HIAWATHA TELEPHONE CO ACCT 00042364-7 10/27/20 17.50

582-583-851.000 POSTAGE UNITED STATES POST OFFICE STAMPS 09/17/20 14.05 44618

582-583-900.000 PUBLISHING & PRINTING - BRUSH REMOVAL BINEWBERRY NEWS INC BRUSH REMOVAL BID /HELP WANTED ADS/MINUTES 09/30/20 24.00 44583

582-583-900.000 PRINTING AND PUBLISHING ARISTA INFORMATION SYSTEMS INC UB BILLIG 09/30/20 235.96 44604

Fund 582 Electric Fund

Water  Light Payables - Page 1 of 4



Water and Light Payables

   September 5, 2020 to October 9, 2020

  Page 2 of 4

GL Number Inv. Line Desc Vendor Invoice Desc. Due Date Amount Check #

582-583-900.000 WATER LIGHT BOARD OPENING NEWBERRY NEWS INC PUBLICATIONS 10/30/20 18.00

582-583-915.000 MEMBERSHIPS & SUBSCRIPTIONS ZOOM OCTOBER ZOOM MEETINGS 10/01/20 27.62

582-583-921.000 HEAT SEMCOENERGY GAS COMPANY GENERATION BUILDING NATURAL GAS   237.500 09/24/20 15.00 44588

582-583-921.000 HEAT SEMCOENERGY GAS COMPANY WATER LIGHT BUILDING NATURAL GAS 238.500 09/24/20 7.50 44588

582-583-932.000 VEHICLES REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE J. HANDRICH & SONS 2004 EXHAUST LEAK 10/15/20 175.90 44629

582-583-991.000 PRINCIPAL NOTES PAYABLE 2002 US BANK OPERATIONS CENTER LIMITED TAX GENERAL OBLIGATION IMPR. BONDS DTD 8-1-0211/02/20 60,000.00

582-583-991.100 PRINCIPAL NOTES PAYABLE 2003 US BANK OPERATIONS CENTER LGLP 2003B REVENUE SHARING 10/26/20 60,000.00

582-583-991.200 NOTES PAYABLE 2005 US BANK OPERATIONS CENTER ELECTRIC UTIIITY SYSTER REVENUE BDS DTD 10-1-05 BI #504511/03/20 90,000.00

582-583-991.200 NOTES PAYABLE 2005 US BANK OPERATIONS CENTER ELECTRIC UTIIITY SYSTER REVENUE BDS DTD 10-1-05 BI #504511/03/20 2,025.00

582-583-992.000 INTEREST NOTE PAYABLE 2002 US BANK OPERATIONS CENTER LIMITED TAX GENERAL OBLIGATION IMPR. BONDS DTD 8-1-0211/02/20 4,845.00

582-583-992.100 INTEREST NOTE PAYABLE 2003 US BANK OPERATIONS CENTER LGLP 2003B REVENUE SHARING 10/26/20 6,712.50

Total For Dept 583 GENERAL EXPENSES 226,261.61

Dept 584 ELECTRIC GENERATION

582-584-801.000 PROFESSIONAL & CONTRACTUAL MECA 2021 SAFETY DUES 12/01/20 1,567.50

582-584-929.000 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE DD SLING & SUPPLY EYE NYLON SLING 09/25/20 157.80

Total For Dept 584 ELECTRIC GENERATION 1,725.30

Dept 585 BUILDING MAINTENANCE

582-585-801.000 PROFESSIONAL AND CONTRACTURAL MECA 2021 SAFETY DUES 12/01/20 10,402.50

Total For Dept 585 BUILDING MAINTENANCE 10,402.50

Dept 586 PURCHASED POWER

582-586-801.000 PROFESSIONAL AND CONTRACTURAL MICHIGAN PUBLIC POWER AGENCY VOLUNTARY GREEN PRICING/RENEWABLE PORTFOLIO 09/25/20 71.13 15

582-586-801.000 PROFESSIONAL AND CONTRACTURAL MECA 2021 SAFETY DUES 12/01/20 997.50

582-586-926.000 PURCHASED POWER CMS ENERGY RESOURCE MGT CAPACITY 09/21/20 61,035.55 44595

582-586-926.000 PURCHASED POWER CLOVERLAND ELECTRIC CO-OP MONTHLY POWER BILL - SEPTEMBER 10/26/20 5,224.79

582-586-926.000 PURCHASED POWER CMS ENERGY RESOURCE MGT CAPACITY 10/20/20 53,873.41

582-586-926.100 ATC TRANSMISSION MONTHLY INV AMERICAN TRANSMISSION COMPANY PURCHASED POWER - CAPACITY 10/08/20 12,869.62

Total For Dept 586 PURCHASED POWER 134,072.00

Dept 587 ENERGY OPTIMIZATION

582-587-801.000 PROFESSIONAL & CONTRACTUAL MECA MONTHLY INCENTIVES 10/01/20 1,715.60 44622

Total For Dept 587 ENERGY OPTIMIZATION 1,715.60

Total For Fund 582 Electric Fund 375,208.88

Water  Light Payables - Page 2 of 4



Water and Light Payables

   September 5, 2020 to October 9, 2020

  Page 3 of 4

GL Number Inv. Line Desc Vendor Invoice Desc. Due Date Amount Check #

Dept 536 WATER SYSTEM

591-536-718.000 MEDICAL SCREENING - PRE EMPLOY UPPER PENINSULA IMAGING PC PRE-EMPLOYMENT XRAY 10/10/20 32.50 44624

591-536-718.000 MEDICAL SCREENING - PRE EMPLOY HELEN NEWBERRY JOY HOSPITAL PRE-EMPLOYMENT 10/30/20 65.00

591-536-718.000 MEDICAL SCREENING - PRE EMPLOY FIRST ADVANTAGE LNS OCC HEALTH PRE-EMPLOYMENT TESTING 10/30/20 21.42

591-536-718.000 MEDICAL SCREENING - PRE EMPLOY HELEN NEWBERRY JOY HOSPITAL PRE-EMPLOYMENT LAB/XRAY 10/15/20 161.75

591-536-719.000 HOSPITALIZATION 44 NORTH COBRA RETIREES 10/21/20 2.70 44611

591-536-726.000 LIFE INSURANCE STANDARD, THE LIFE INS 10/01/20 80.77 44617

591-536-752.000 OFFICE SUPPLIES NATIONAL OFFICE PRODUCTS PAPER 10/10/20 9.87

591-536-752.100 OPERATING SUPPLIES FAMILY DOLLAR ICE CHEST-SHIPPING WATER SAMPLES 09/14/20 2.65 44590

591-536-752.100 OPERATING SUPPLIES HAWKINS INC AZONE 15 10/17/20 216.09 44621

591-536-752.100 OPERATING SUPPLIES AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES FIRST AID SUPPLIES 08/20/20 43.66 44603

591-536-752.100 OPERATING SUPPLIES RAHILLY IGA WATER 10/10/20 3.99

591-536-759.000 GAS, OIL & GREASE - WATER WEX BANK - SPEEDWAY UNIVERSAL GAS/FUEL 09/22/20 43.30 44592

591-536-759.000 GAS, OIL & GREASE - WATER WEX BANK - SPEEDWAY UNIVERSAL GAS/FUEL 10/22/20 84.05

591-536-767.000 UNIFORMS AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES HARD HATS 10/23/20 21.48 44603

591-536-767.000 UNIFORMS AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES WATERPROOF RAIN JACKETS/ERASERS/SWEATSHIRT/TIOLETPAPER11/04/20 24.46

591-536-801.000 PROFESSIONAL & CONTRACTUAL RANGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS PAGER SERVICE 09/10/20 144.00 44587

591-536-801.000 PROFESSIONAL & CONTRACTUAL SER SAULT STE MARIE CITY HALL MONTHLY WATER SAMPLES 10/04/20 54.00 44597

591-536-801.000 PROFESSIONAL & CONTRACTUAL UPEA ENGINEER & ARCHITECTS CIP DEVELOPMENT 10/14/20 825.00 44600

591-536-801.000 PROFESSIONAL & CONTRACTUAL STATE OF MICHIGAN- EGLE WATER TESTING 10/09/20 364.00 44623

591-536-801.000 PROFESSIONAL & CONTRACTUAL STATE OF MICHIGAN- EGLE WATER TESTING 10/09/20 26.00 44623

591-536-801.000 PROFESSIONAL & CONTRACTUAL SER RANGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS MISSDIGS 10/01/20 14.52

591-536-801.000 PROFESSIONAL & CONTRACTUAL SER FAIR, ALMA OFFICE CLEANING 10/23/20 100.00

591-536-850.000 FAX VERIZON ACCOUNT NUMBER 942077532-00001 FAX 10/07/20 5.80 44619

591-536-850.000 906-293-5681 W/L CLERK 40% VERIZON ACCOUNT NUMBER 942077532-00003 DESK 10/07/20 10.70 44619

591-536-850.000 906-293-3433 GENERAL VERIZON ACCOUNT NUMBER 942077532-00003 DESK 10/07/20 6.97 44619

591-536-850.000 906-291-1625 FINANCE VERIZON ACCOUNT NUMBER 942077532-00003 DESK 10/07/20 6.97 44619

591-536-850.000 906-291-1627 W/L VERIZON ACCOUNT NUMBER 942077532-00003 DESK 10/07/20 13.94 44619

591-536-850.000 906-291-1622 H.R. VERIZON ACCOUNT NUMBER 942077532-00003 DESK 10/07/20 6.97 44619

591-536-850.000 906-291-1621 VERIZON ACCOUNT NUMBER 942077532-00003 DESK 10/07/20 6.97 44619

591-536-850.000 906-291-1223 VERIZON ACCOUNT NUMBER 942077532-00003 DESK 10/07/20 6.97 44619

591-536-850.000 906-450-0919 LINEMAN VERIZON ACCOUNT NUMBER 942077532-00002 - CELL 10/07/20 21.47 44619

591-536-850.000 906-291-0608 LINEMAN VERIZON ACCOUNT NUMBER 942077532-00002 - CELL 10/07/20 20.84 44619

591-536-850.000 906-291-0055 HR VERIZON ACCOUNT NUMBER 942077532-00002 - CELL 10/07/20 10.42 44619

591-536-850.000 TELEPHONE AT&T WATER/LIGHT PHONE 10/08/20 47.13 44605

591-536-850.000 TELEPHONE HTC-HIAWATHA TELEPHONE CO ACCT 00042108-7 10/27/20 19.99

591-536-850.000 JAMADOTS FIBER- OPTICS HTC-HIAWATHA TELEPHONE CO ACCT 00042364-7 10/27/20 17.50

Fund 591 Water Fund

Water  Light Payables - Page 3 of 4



Water and Light Payables

   September 5, 2020 to October 9, 2020

  Page 4 of 4

GL Number Inv. Line Desc Vendor Invoice Desc. Due Date Amount Check #

591-536-851.000 POSTAGE FOSTER HARDWARE LEAD/COPPER WATER SHIPPING 10/10/20 29.10 44577

591-536-851.000 POSTAGE FOSTER HARDWARE FRIEGHT 10/10/20 199.47 44610

591-536-851.000 POSTAGE UNITED STATES POST OFFICE STAMPS 09/17/20 14.05 44618

591-536-851.000 POSTAGE UNITED STATES POST OFFICE MAILING WATER SAMPLES 08/31/20 35.70

591-536-900.000 PUBLISHING & PRINTING ARISTA INFORMATION SYSTEMS INC UB BILLIG 09/30/20 133.10 44604

591-536-900.000 WATER LIGHT BOARD OPENING NEWBERRY NEWS INC PUBLICATIONS 10/30/20 18.00

591-536-910.000 PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT STATE OF MICHIGAN MATH WATER OPERATORS 08/28/20 80.00 44590

591-536-913.000 TRAVEL BAYNTON, MICHELLE WATER SAMPLES TO SOO 10/10/20 77.05 44628

591-536-915.000 MEMBERSHIPS & SUBSCRIPTIONS ZOOM OCTOBER ZOOM MEETINGS 10/01/20 27.62

591-536-921.000 HEAT SEMCOENERGY GAS COMPANY WATER LIGHT BUILDING NATURAL GAS 238.500 09/24/20 7.50 44588

591-536-929.000 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE HAWKINS INC BALL VALVE/ MAIN 10/17/20 127.29 44621

591-536-929.000 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE ETNA SUPPLY COMPANY MJ BOLT & GASKET SET 10/30/20 183.90

591-536-932.000 VEHICLES REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE J. HANDRICH & SONS 2004 EXHAUST LEAK 10/15/20 175.90 44629

591-536-991.400 PRINCIPAL 2014 WATER BOND UNITED STATES OF AMERICA LOAN #91-05 11/01/20 112,000.00

591-536-992.400 INTEREST 2014 WATER BOND UNITED STATES OF AMERICA LOAN #91-05 11/01/20 60,955.62

Total For Dept 536 WATER SYSTEM 176,608.15

Total For Fund 591 Water Fund 176,608.15

Fund Totals:

Fund 582 Electric Fund 375,208.88

Fund 591 Water Fund 176,608.15

Total For All Funds: 551,817.03

Water  Light Payables - Page 4 of 4





































Village of Newberry 

Amendment to Ordinance 18 

Page 1 of 1 
 

VILLAGE OF NEWBERRY  

COUNTY OF LUCE 

STATE OF MICHIGAN 

 

 

AMENDMENT TO  

ORDINANCE NO. 18 AND ATTACHMENT TO ORDINANCE NO. 18 

1. Ordinance 18 is amended to modify Section 18:3:3 to reflect language as follows: 

  Between the hours of 6:00AM and Midnight… 

2. Attachment to Ordinance No. 18 is amended to modify Section 18:3:3 Streets and Alleys 

Open for Snowmobiles to reflect language as follows: 

Snowmobiles may be operated between the hours of 6:00 a.m. and Midnight, 

Eastern Time… 

  

PUBLICATION AND EFFECTIVE DATE 

The Clerk shall cause a copy of this Ordinance Amendment to be published in the Newberry 

News and shall make copies available for inspection at the Village offices. 

 

The Ordinance Amendment shall be effective 10 days after the date of publication.  

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE VILLAGE OF NEWBERRY COUNCIL  

ON OCTOBER 20, 2020. 

 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Lori A. Stokes, Village President 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Terese Schummer, Village Clerk 

CERTIFICATION 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and 

complete copy of an Ordinance Amendment adopted 

by the Village Council of the Village of Newberry, 

County of Luce, State of Michigan, at a regular  

electronic meeting held on  OCTOBER 20, 2020 that 

said meeting was conducted and public notice of said 

meeting was given pursuant to and in full compliance 

with the Open Meetings Act, being Act 267, Public 

Acts of Michigan, 1976, and that the minutes of said 

meeting were kept and will be or have been made 

available as required by said Act.  I further certify that 

the foregoing Ordinance was published on  

_____________________________ in the following 

newspaper:    NEWBERRY NEWS 

 

___________________________ 

Terese Schummer, Clerk 

 

___________________________ 



Employment Agreement – Allison Watkins – Village Manager          Page 1 of 8 

 
EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT FOR VILLAGE MANAGER 

 
 
THIS AGREEMENT is signed this _______day of _________, 2020, by and between 

Allison Watkins (hereinafter referred to as “EMPLOYEE”) the current Village of Newberry Interim 
Village Manager and Director of Human Resources and Community Engagement, and the Village 
of Newberry, State of Michigan, a municipal corporation (hereinafter referred to as “Village”) 
(collectively referred to herein as “the Parties”). 

WHEREAS, the Village desires to employ the services of Allison Watkins as the Village 
Manager; and  

WHEREAS, Allison Watkins wishes to be employed by the Village in the capacity of 
Village Manger; and 

WHEREAS, it is the desire of the Village to provide certain benefits, establish certain 
terms and conditions of employment and to set working conditions of ;  

NOW, THEREFORE, it is mutually agreed by the parties as follows:  
 
1. Employment. The Village herby employs Allison Watkins as the Village 

Manager, and Allison Watkins hereby accepts such employment upon the terms and conditions 
hereinafter set forth. EMPLOYEE shall remain in the employ of the Village while employed 
under this agreement and shall not engage in other full-time employment by any other employer. 
The EMPLOYEE may engage in volunteer activities and paid activities outside Village 
employment, such as teaching and consulting provided that such activities do not impede or 
interfere with employment responsibilities hereunder and do not result in a conflict of interest. 

 
2. Applicable Laws. This agreement is subject to all applicable laws and 

administrative rules bearing upon the parties and the subject matter of this Agreement as such 
law may be in effect from time to time, including without limitation, the General Law Village 
Act, and such law is incorporated herein by reference. In the event of conflict between the 
provisions of this Agreement and such applicable law, such applicable law shall control. 

 
3. Term. This agreement shall commence and be considered immediately effective 

on ________________, 2020, and shall continue thereafter for a period of five (5) years. It shall 
supersede any previous agreement. Termination of this Agreement shall be in accordance with 
Section 14 and Section 15. 

 
4. Duties. EMPLOYEE shall have those duties and responsibilities as set forth in the 

Village Code of Ordinances (Ordinance 36 attached hereto as Attachment A), and the current job 
description enacted by the Village of Newberry relative to the position of Village Manager as 
amended from time to time and incorporated by reference herein (Current Job Description 
attached hereto as Attachment B), and the laws of the State of Michigan. The Village Manager 
shall be the chief administrative officer of the Village and shall be responsible to the Village 
Council for the efficient administration of all affairs of the Village and all departments except as 
that responsibility is explicitly delegated to another officer by the charter of the Village or by 
Michigan State or Federal Law. The Village may from time to time, by resolution, alter this 



Employment Agreement – Allison Watkins – Village Manager          Page 2 of 8 

description of responsibilities, provided that such alterations shall not be effective until a copy of 
such resolution shall be delivered to the Village Manager. 

 
EMPLOYEE shall be subject to all provisions set forth in the Personnel Policy Manual 

for the Village of Newberry that are not in conflict with this Agreement.  
 
5. Hours of Work. The Village and EMPLOYEE agree and acknowledge that she 

will typically be required to work a normal work schedule of 40 hours per week, Monday 
through Friday for at least an 8-hour shift per day; however irregular hours may be necessary for 
the full and effective performance of this job.  Because this may require EMPLOYEE working 
beyond normal work hours, i.e., evenings, weekends, it is agreed that she may adjust her work 
schedule to accommodate the competing demands on her time. These adjustments include 
working a “flex” schedule during the same pay period. (For example, if EMPLOYEE is required 
to work 5 additional hours in an evening she may “flex” that time during the rest of the period, 
leaving early on another day to account for the flex time.).  However, adjustments in a work 
schedule must be approved by the Village Council or delegated designee. Allison Watkins 
acknowledges that the Village Manager role may require irregular hours that exceed 40 hours on 
occasion.  

 
6. Compensation. Village agrees to pay Allison Watkins an annual base salary of 

seventy-three thousand and no/100 dollars ($73,000) as base pay for Village Manager duties. 
EMPLOYEE will be paid an additional salary of fifteen thousand and no/100 dollars ($15,000) 
for performing the duties of the Director of Human Resources. In the event that another 
employee is hired to perform the duties of the Director of Human Resources this additional 
salary amount will cease once the new employee is fully trained and takes on full responsibilities 
of the position. The total salary amount for EMPLOYEE will be increased annually on January 1 
of each year based on cost living adjustments (COLA) (as they now exist at 3% annually or 
hereafter may be amended) and is subject to budget approval by the Village Council.  

 
In addition, consideration shall be given on an annual basis to an increase in 

compensation or lump sum performance bonus payment based on above average performance 
reviews, which take into consideration adherence to goals and objectives established jointly 
between EMPLOYEE and the Village Council.  

 
All payments to EMPLOYEE shall be payable in equal bi-weekly installments, in 

accordance with the Village’s normal payroll practices, less applicable deductions for FICA, 
federal and state withholding taxes, and any other withholdings that are legally mandated or 
authorized by EMPLOYEE.  

 
The Village agrees that it will not reduce the salary or benefits of EMPLOYEE during the 

term of this Agreement, except to the degree such reduction is applied across the board to other 
salaried employees of the Village.  

 
7. Salaried Exempt Status. EMPLOYEE acknowledges and agrees that the Village 

Manager position is exempt from provisions of the federal Fair Labor Standards Act and that she 
is not entitled to any overtime compensation or paid compensatory time off during the term of 
this Agreement.  

 



Employment Agreement – Allison Watkins – Village Manager          Page 3 of 8 

8. Employee Benefits.  All provisions of the Village ordinances, resolutions, 
personnel policies, and current practice of the Village relating to holidays, life insurance, medical 
benefits, HSA contributions, retirement contributions, and other fringe benefits and working 
conditions (as they now exist or hereafter may be amended) that apply to all other employees of 
the Village shall also apply to EMPLOYEE.  

 
9. Paid Time Off. EMPLOYEE shall accrue vacation days at a rate of 32 days per 

calendar year and be credited and pro-rated with each pay period.  Sick leave shall accrue at a 
rate of 14 days per calendar year and be credited and pro-rated with each pay period. Leave may 
be used at her discretion for any purpose, including but not limited to illness of herself or family, 
or vacation. Unused vacation and sick hours can be accumulated and banked. There is no limit 
on the number of hours that can be accumulated.  EMPLOYEE shall be paid for all accumulated 
vacation and sick hours upon separation of employment for any reason.  

 
EMPLOYEE shall receive paid holidays and paid funeral leave in accordance with the 

same benefits as in effect for other employees of the Village of Newberry. 
 
10. Assignment. The EMPLOYEE shall temporarily appoint one department head as 

Acting Village Manager during periods of vacation, sick leave, or other short-term leave periods.  
The Village Council may, at its discretion, choose an alternative person to perform the duties of 
Acting Village Manager.  

 
11. Communication with Village Council. To facilitate regular communication with 

the Village Council. EMPLOYEE shall provide a monthly memorandum on items agreed upon 
between the Village Council and EMPLOYEE.  

 
12. Performance Evaluation.  A review of EMPLOYEE’s performance shall be 

conducted at least once annually by the Village Council according to procedures and criteria 
determined jointly by the Village and EMPLOYEE. The review shall include an evaluation of 
EMPLOYEE’s performance in accomplishing such goals and objectives as the Village Council 
may establish from time to time, which shall be generally attainable given the annual operating 
and capital budgets of the Village and the other resources and time available to EMPLOYEE.  
The review process shall provide to EMPLOYEE an adequate opportunity to discuss the 
evaluation with the Village Council. The failure to of the Village Council to meet and evaluate 
EMPLOYEE shall not constitute a breach of this Agreement.  

 
Unless EMPLOYEE expressly requests otherwise in writing, the evaluation shall at all 

times be conducted in closed session of the governing body and shall be considered confidential 
to the extent permitted by law. Nothing herein shall prohibit the Village or EMPLOYEE from 
sharing the content of the evaluation with their respective legal counsel.  

 
13. Resignation. The parties agree that EMPLOYEE may terminate this Agreement 

by giving the Village a minimum of 30 calendar days’ written notice to the Village Council prior 
to the final day of employment. The parties acknowledge and agree that neither EMPLOYEE’s 
resignation nor the Village Council’s acceptance and approval of the same shall constitute an 
involuntary discharge of EMPLOYEE. If EMPLOYEE voluntarily resigns, the Village shall 
have no obligation to provide her with the severance benefits referenced below in Section 15, 
except as otherwise approved by the Village Council. EMPLOYEE shall receive vacation and 
sick leave payout.  



Employment Agreement – Allison Watkins – Village Manager          Page 4 of 8 

 
14. Termination for Cause.  
 
For the purpose of this Agreement, termination shall occur when: 
 
A majority of the governing body votes to terminate EMPLOYEE at a properly posted 

and duly authorized public meeting.  
 
The Village may terminate EMPLOYEE's employment for established and documnented 

cause. As used in this Agreement, cause shall include any one or more of the following: 
 

i. Death or any disability that prevents EMPLOYEE from performing the essential 
functions of her job with or without reasonable accommodations. Disability is 
defined as the Employee's inability to perform Employee's duties for a period of 
six consecutive months after the exhaustion of any accrued sick leave, if available, 
and exhaustion of interactive dialogue regarding any reasonable accommodation 
required by law. 

ii. Conviction of a felony under State or Federal law. 
iii. Deliberate violation of any ordinance, regulations, order, policy,  personnel 

manual policy, or rule of the Village, or failing to obey any lawful direction 
given to her by the Village Council when such violation or failure to obey 
amounts to insubordination or serious breach of discipline  that may reasonably 
be expected to result in material loss or injury to the Village or the public. 

iv. Deliberately and improperly using, destroying or damaging Village, public, or 
employee property. 

v. Falsifying personnel or other Village records, including employment 
applications, accident records, work records, purchase orders, time sheets, or any 
other report, record or application required in connection with one's employment. 

vi. Providing information to the Village Council that EMPLOYEE knows to be false 
or misleading. 

vii. Intentionally furnishing false information to the Village. 
viii. Stealing Village or employee property. 

ix. Reporting to work while under the influence of alcoholic beverages or illegal 
drugs and/or controlled substances. 

x. A determination by a third-party investigator appointed by the Village that 
EMPLOYEE committed sexual harassment of another Village employee. 
 

Hearing: If termination occurs for cause, EMPLOYEE shall receive vacation and sick 
leave payout, but have no other claim against the Village for wages, health, and other 
benefits or severance pay for the unfulfilled term of this Agreement. Except for termination 
as a result of a conviction of a felony under State or Federal Law, or death, the Board shall 
not terminate the employment of EMPLOYEE without first giving her a written statement of 
the reasons for the termination of her employment and affording her ten (10) business days 
from the date of such termination notice to either respond in writing, or in person at a closed 
session of the Village Council to the reasons given for the termination of her employment. 
EMPLOYEE shall have the right to be represented by counsel at her own cost and expense 
during the closed session meeting. 

 



Employment Agreement – Allison Watkins – Village Manager          Page 5 of 8 

15. Termination without cause. 
 
For the purpose of this Agreement, termination shall occur when: 
 
A majority of the governing body votes to terminate EMPLOYEE at a properly posted 

and duly authorized public meeting.  
 
The Village may terminate EMPLOYEE's employment without cause and without prior 

notice effective at any time during the term of this Agreement, provided that, in the event of such 
termination the Village shall pay EMPLOYEE the equivalent of six (6) months of salary, six (6) 
months payment of full premiums for group health coverage and six (6) months of Health 
Savings Account (HSA) contributions, payable through regular pay periods as if EMPLOYEE 
was still employed, or in one lump sum, at the sole discretion of the EMPLOYEE. EMPLOYEE 
shall have no right of appeal from any such termination. EMPLOYEE's right to receive the six 
(6) months of salary, six (6) months payment of full premiums for group health coverage and six 
(6) months of Health Savings Account (HSA) contributions is conditioned upon EMPLOYEE's 
execution of a severance agreement and complete release of any possible claims against the 
Village, in such form as the Village shall reasonably require.  

 
If the Village, citizens or legislature acts to amend any provisions of the job description, 

charter, code, or enabling legislation pertaining to the role, powers, duties, authority, or 
responsibilities of EMPLOYEE’s position that substantially changes the form of government or 
EMPLOYEE’s required duties, EMPLOYEE shall have the right to declare that such 
amendments constitute termination without cause.  

 
EMPLOYEE shall receive vacation and sick time pay out, but not be entitled to receive 

severance pay if she is terminated for cause as defined in Section 15 of this Agreement, if she 
terminates her employment relationship with the Village, or if this Agreement expires and is not 
renewed*. 

*The Village agrees to provide EMPLOYEE written notice not less than ninety (90) 
calendar days prior to end of said contract, of EMPLOYER'S intent to not renew or extend 
her contract. If EMPLOYER does not provide said notice no less than ninety (90) calendar 
days prior and agreement is not renewed, then EMPLOYEE will be entitled to receive 
severance as outlined in this agreement. 

 
16. Residency.  EMPLOYEE and the Village acknowledge and agree that it is 

necessary and desirable that she reside in a reasonable distance of the Village of Newberry, such 
that she is able to fulfill the responsibilities of the position as a condition of her employment.  
Distance is determined in Ordinance 36 (Attachment A). 

 
17. Communication Devices.  To facilitate regular communication with the Village, 

the Village shall provide EMPLOYEE with a cellular telephone and a laptop computer (or 
similar devices) for her professional and reasonable personal use.  Such communication devices 
shall be purchased and maintained by the Village at the Village’s expense.  It is required that 
EMPLOYEE shall comply with all statutory public records requirements associated with the use 
of said devices. 

 
18. Automobile.  The Village acknowledges that from time to time EMPLOYEE may 

be required to travel on behalf of the Village to fulfill the duties of employment. The Village 



Employment Agreement – Allison Watkins – Village Manager          Page 6 of 8 

may select to provide a monthly automobile allowance, reimburse mileage at the Federal rate or 
provide a Village automobile for business use only in order for EMPLOYEE to fulfill her duties.  
 

19. Dues and Subscriptions.  The Village will pay EMPLOYEE’s professional dues 
for participation in national, regional, state, and local associations and organizations that are 
reasonably necessary and desirable for her continued professional participation, growth and 
advancement and for the good of the Village such as Michigan Municipal League, Michigan 
Local Government Management Association, International City/County Management 
Association and others deemed appropriate by the Village Council.  Such payments shall be 
subject to the review and approval of the Village Council, not to exceed One Thousand Dollars 
($1,000) per year.  

 
 
20. Professional Development. The Village will pay the registration fees, reasonable 

travel, and subsistence expense of EMPLOYEE to the Annual Conference of the Michigan 
Municipal League and the Annual Conference of the International City/County Management 
Association and shall also pay for such other reasonable professional and office travel, institutes 
and seminars that are necessary for the good of the Village. Such payments shall be subject to the 
review and approval of the Village Council.  

 
21. Expenses. The Village recognizes that certain expenses of a non-personal and 

generally job-affiliated nature will be incurred by EMPLOYEE and agrees to reimburse such 
expenses to EMPLOYEE in accordance with normal policies of the Village. 

 
22. Return of Village Property. At any time upon request of the Village and in any 

event promptly upon the termination of her employment, EMPLOYEE shall return to the Village 
all equipment, documents, books, files, manuals, financial information, and any other property 
belonging to the Village. Village shall also return to EMPLOYEE any personal effects or 
equipment belonging to EMPLOYEE.  

 
25. Other Terms and Conditions of Employment.  The Village shall fix any such other 

terms and conditions of employment, as it may determine from time to time, relating to 
EMPLOYEE, provided such terms and conditions are not inconsistent with or in conflict with 
the provisions of this Agreement, the Village Ordinances, or any other law. 

 
26. Indemnification.  Beyond that required under Federal, State or Local  Law, 

Village  shall defend, hold harmless and indemnify EMPLOYEE against any obligation to pay 
money or perform or no perform action, including without limitation, any and all losses, 
damages, judgments, interests, settlements, penalties, fines, court costs and other reasonable 
costs and expenses of legal proceedings including reasonable attorney's fees, and any other 
liabilities arising from, related to, or connected with any tort, professional liability claim or 
demand or any other threatened, pending or completed action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, 
criminal, administrative, arbitrative or investigation,  whether groundless  or otherwise, arising 
out of an alleged act or omission occurring in the performance of EMPLOYEE's duties as 
Village Manager or resulting from the exercise of judgment or discretion in connection with the 
performance of program duties or  responsibilities, unless the act or omission involved willful or 
wanton conduct. The EMPLOYEE may request, and the Village shall not unreasonably refuse to 
provide independent legal representation at Village's expense and Village may not unreasonably 
withhold approval. Legal representation, provided by Village for EMPLOYEE shall extend until 



Employment Agreement – Allison Watkins – Village Manager          Page 7 of 8 

a final determination of the legal action, including any appeals brought by either party.. Any 
settlement of any claim must be made with prior approval of the Village in order for 
indemnification, as provided in this Section, to be available. 
 

EMPLOYEE recognizes that the Village shall have the right to compromise and unless 
the EMPLOYEE is a party to the suit which EMPLOYEE shall have a  veto authority over the 
settlement, settle any claim or suit; unless, said compromise or settlement is of a personal nature 
to EMPLOYEE. Further, the Village agrees to pay all reasonable litigation expenses of 
EMPLOYEE throughout the pendency of any litigation to which the EMPLOYEE is a party, 
witness or advisor to the Village. Such expense payments shall continue beyond EMPLOYEE's 
service to the Village as long as litigation is pending. Further, the Village agrees to pay 
EMPLOYEE reasonable consulting fees and travel expenses when EMPLOYEE serves as a 
witness, advisor or consultant to the Village regarding pending litigation, in the event 
EMPLOYEE is no longer employed by the Village. 

 
27. Bonding.  The Village shall bear the full cost of any fidelity or other bonds required 

of EMPLOYEE under any law or ordinance. 

28. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between 
EMPLOYEE and the Village concerning EMPLOYEE’s relationship with the Village and 
supersedes and replaces any and all other prior agreements and understandings between the Parties 
concerning EMPLOYEE’s relationship with the Village. 

29. Governing Law; Interpretation.  This Agreement shall be interpreted and enforced 
under the laws of the State of Michigan without regard to conflict of law principles.  In the event 
of any dispute, this Agreement is intended by the Parties to be construed as a whole, to be 
interpreted in accordance with its fair meaning, and not to be construed strictly for or against either 
Party or the “drafter” of all or any portion of this Agreement. 

30. Severability.  The provisions of this Agreement are severable. If any provision is 
determined to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable, in whole or in part, then such provision shall 
be modified so as to be enforceable to the maximum extent permitted by law. If such provision 
cannot be modified to be enforceable, the provision shall be severed from this Agreement to the 
extent unenforceable. The remaining provisions and any partially enforceable provisions shall 
remain in full force and effect. 

31. Waiver.  No waiver of any provision of this Agreement shall be effective unless 
made in writing and signed by the waiving party.  The failure of either party to require the 
performance of any term or obligation of this Agreement, or the waiver by either party of any 
breach of this Agreement, shall not prevent any subsequent enforcement of such term or obligation 
or be deemed a waiver of any subsequent breach. 

32. Amendments.  This Agreement may not be amended or modified except in writing 
signed by the Village President on behalf of the Village, and EMPLOYEE.  

33. Notices.  Any notice required to be given pursuant to this Agreement shall be deemed 
effective five (5) days after deposit in the United States mail, postage pre-paid, registered or certified 
mail, return receipt requested, when mailed to EMPLOYEE at her current address on file in the 
Village’s Human Resources Office, and to the Village Council directed to their attention at Village 
of Newberry, 302 East McMillian Ave, Newberry, MI 49868. 



Employment Agreement – Allison Watkins – Village Manager         Page 8 of 8 

Alternatively, notice required pursuant to this Agreement may be personally served in the 
same manner as is applicable to civil judicial practice.  Notice shall be deemed given as of the date of 
personal service.   

34. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts,
each of which when so executed and delivered shall be taken to be an original, but all of which 
together shall constitute one and the same document.  Facsimile and pdf signatures shall be deemed 
to be of equal force and effect as originals. 

35. Binding Agreement.  The provisions of this Agreement shall be binding upon and
shall inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective heirs, legal representatives and 
successors. This Agreement and any of EMPLOYEE's rights hereunder may not be assigned or 
pledged by EMPLOYEE, in whole or in part. 

36. Effective Date.  This Agreement shall become effective on _____________, 2020.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Village has caused this Agreement to be signed and
executed on its behalf by its Village President pursuant to authorization of the Village Council of 
the Village of Newberry, and EMPLOYEE has signed and executed this Agreement the day and 
year first above written. 

EMPLOYER 
VILLAGE OF NEWBERRY 

___________________________________      
Lori A. Stokes 
Village President  

EMPLOYEE 

___________________________________ 
Allison Watkins 



VILLAGE OF NEWBERRY 

COUNTY OF LUCE 

STATE OF MICHIGAN 

ORDINANCE NO. 36 

Title: VILLAGE MANAGER ORDINANCE 

Village of Newberry 
Ordinance No. 36 

Page 1 of 5 

An ordinance establishing the office of Village Manager; providing for the appointment, 
compensation and discharge of such official; specifying the branches of the Village 
Government and activities under the management and control of defining and limiting the 
rights, powers, and liabilities of the Village Manager. 

THE VILLAGE OF NEWBERRY ORDAINS: 

Section 36:1 ESTABLISHMENT OF OFFICE. 

In accordance with the authority connected by the Village Charter and laws of the State of 
Michigan, there is established the office of Village Manager. 

Section 36:2 APPOINTMENT OF VILLAGE MANAGER 

(A) The Village Council shall appoint a Village Manager for a term determined by the
Council and expressed in a contract. The council may, by contract, enter into such
other terms and conditions as the Manager and Council deem appropriate. The
Council, for cause, may suspend the Manager with full pay and benefits until the
Council takes action whether the Manager shall be discharged. There shall be a roll
call vote and each Council Member shall support their vote in a brief statement.

(B) The Manager shall be selected solely based on administrative and executive abilities
with special reference to training and experience.

(C) The Manager must be available to deal with emergency and crisis situations
throughout the day. The residence of the Manager must be reasonably located to the
Village of Newberry, but not further than the boundaries of Luce County, to assure
availability; the availability of the Manager does NOT apply during sick time or other
authorized absences such as vacation.

Section 36:3 VILLAGE MANAGER VACANCY 

The Council, shall appoint or designate an Interim Village Manager during a vacancy 
exceeding 30 days. The appointed Interim Manager shall serve until the Incumbent 
Manager returns or conditions are verified that the Incumbent Manager is incapacitated 
and unable to return to the position. At which time the Council shall make a permanent 

Village of Newberry - Ordinance No. 36 Page 1 of 5 

WATKINS EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 
APPENDIX A



WATKINS EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 
APPENDIX A



WATKINS EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 
APPENDIX A



WATKINS EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 
APPENDIX A



WATKINS EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 
APPENDIX A



WATKINS EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 
APPENDIX A



Position: VILLAGE MANAGER     Village of Newberry  
Updated: 06/25/2020  Position Description 

Page 1 of 4 

VILLAGE MANAGER 

Title: Village Manager 

Supervised by: Village Council 

Supervises: Directly supervises the Working Water & Light Superintendent, DPW Superintendent, 

WWTP Superintendent, Finance Manager, Administrative Assistant for Superintendents, 

Utility Billing Clerk, Fire Chief, Ordinance Enforcement Officer, Treasurer 

FLSA Status: Exempt (Salary) 

Location: Village of Newberry, Michigan 

General 

Summary: 

As Chief Administrative Officer of the Village, plans, develops, and implements a diverse 

range of Village services to meet policy directives and community needs. Oversees the 

organization and direction of all Village departments and acts as Village Personnel Director. 

Essential Duties and Job Functions: 

1. Oversees the general operations of all Village departments and activities. Initiates studies and monitors

operations to ensure quality services are provided in an efficient and timely manner.

2. Champions culture change and drives initiatives to promote organizational culture; partner with department

heads, staff, and Council to lead and facilitate change within the organization.

3. Recommends policies and programs to the Village Council. Provides information to the Council to aide in

its deliberations. Implements policies set forth by the Council.

4. Develops long-range plans and management strategies to realize goals in accordance with Council

directives, community needs, demographic trends, and Village vision. Assesses operational costs, analyzes

administrative and capital needs and makes appropriate recommendations.

5. Represents the Village at local, regional, and state meetings and conferences. Negotiates contracts and

agreements on behalf of the Village. Presents the official Village position on issues related to finances and

operations.

6. Direct, administer, and supervise the response to inquiries, resolution of citizen complaints, and

recommends remedial action related to Village policies and services. Meets with citizens and community

groups to address concerns and participates in civic activities as appropriate.

7. Negotiates, approves, and signs all employee contracts.

8. Supervises all Village employees either directly or through department heads. Provides overall direction for

the selection, training, recognition, discipline, and discharge of all Village department heads and

employees. Develops, approves, and enforces personnel policies. Negotiates and administers labor

agreements.

9. Serves as the Village’s legislative coordinator. Stays current of proposed changes in legislation that may

impact the Village. Communicates Village needs to State and Federal officials.

10. Serves as the Village’s Legal Coordinator. Assists the Village Attorney with any potential or current legal

issues; represents the Village in all legal matters; and ensures that the Village is compliant with all statutes

and regulations.

WATKINS EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 
APPENDIX B



Position: VILLAGE MANAGER      Village of Newberry  
Updated: 06/25/2020           Position Description 

Page 2 of 4 

 

11. Responsible for the oversight of a Risk Management program and ensures that it is implemented and 

observed on an ongoing basis. 

12. Oversees the development of a five-year capital improvement program. Monitors capital needs and 

determines appropriate financing mechanisms for larger purchases and projects. 

13. Oversees the development of budget requests, financial plans, and forecasts, and preparation of the annual 

budget. Administers fiscal policy, ensures the proper administration of the budget, and keeps the Village 

Council fully apprised of the Village’s present financial condition and future needs through regular and 

timely budget reports. 

14. Prepares agenda and packet for and attends all Village Council and Water & Light Board meetings. 

Performs research, recommends policies and programs, enforces ordinances, and implements policy as set 

forth by the Council. Attends meeting of various boards, authorities, associations, and commissions as 

required. Serves as staff to DDA, LDFA, BRA, and EDC boards. 

15. Acts as spokesperson for the Village. Represents the Village to various individuals, entities, agencies, and 

other governmental units. Responds to inquiries from the public, the media, and others. Communicates the 

Village’s interests and presents the Village’s official position on issues. 

16. Coordinates Village operations and activities with other governmental units. Participates in the negotiations 

and administration of cooperative agreements, mutual aid compacts, or other contracts. 

17. Negotiates contracts and agreements on behalf of the Village. Enforces the terms and conditions of all 

contracts to which the Village is a party. Supervises all special projects. 

18. Serves as Chief Emergency Coordinator according to guidelines established by regulating agencies. 

19. Serves as FOIA Coordinator. 

20. Ensure all Village policies, ordinances, and resolutions are current, updated and in keeping with the goals 

and objectives of the Village Council as well as state and federal laws; revise, edit and create Village 

policies, ordinances and resolutions. 

21. Prepares grant proposals and consults with granting agencies in securing and administering grants. 

Completes requisite reporting and paperwork. 

22. Oversees a communication and marketing plan for both external and internal audiences. Including, but not 

limited to, development and maintenance of the Village web site and social media accounts. 

23. Oversee and perform all duties related to payroll functions including; employee timesheet approval, bi-

weekly payroll processing, payment of payroll related remittances, submitting quarterly federal payroll tax 

reporting, processing yearly payroll tax documents including employee W-2’s and 1099s. 

24. Serve as Village representative for and manage all insurance, pension and benefit accounts for employees 

(i.e. Blue Cross/Blue Shield, Michigan Employment Retirement System (MERS).  

25. Serve as Village representative for and manage all Unemployment Insurance Agency (UIA) and Worker’s 

Compensation reports, investigations, and payments. 

26. Oversee and manage the Village alcohol and illegal substance testing and reporting program. 

27. Supervise all on-boarding and orientation for new employees, including processing new employee’s 

paperwork required for governmental agencies and benefits (i.e. I-9s, MERS, insurance). 

28. Maintain all employee personnel and medical files. 

 

 

WATKINS EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 
APPENDIX B



Position: VILLAGE MANAGER      Village of Newberry  
Updated: 06/25/2020           Position Description 

Page 3 of 4 

 

Required Knowledge, Skills, Abilities: 
The requirements listed below are representative of the knowledge, skills, abilities and minimum qualifications 

necessary to perform the essential functions of the position. Reasonable accommodations may be made to 

enable individuals with disabilities to perform the job. 

• Knowledge of the laws, ordinances, and regulations pertaining to municipal operations management, 

budgeting and financial administration, and public information. 

• Considerable knowledge of the professional principles, practices, and procedures of public administration. 

• A valid State of Michigan Vehicle Operator’s License. 

• Knowledge of municipal financial and personnel management, contract negotiation, and economic 

development. 

• Knowledge of public relations practices and marketing. 

• Skill in compiling and evaluating complex data and formulating policy and service recommendations. 

• Skill in responding to public inquiries and internal requests with a high degree of diplomacy and 

professionalism. 

• Skill in managing diverse programs, services, and personnel. 

• Superior skills in effectively communicating ideas and concepts orally and in writing. 

• Highly effective interpersonal and problem-solving skills. 

• Proven strategic partner with analytical capabilities.  

• Demonstrated supervisory and leadership skills. 

• Ability to establish effective working relationships use good judgment, initiative, and resourcefulness when 

dealing with citizens, elected officials, employees, other governmental agencies, municipal professionals, 

and other professional contacts. 

• Ability to maintain records and prepare comprehensive reports. 

• Ability to effectively communicate and present ideas and concepts orally and in writing 

• Ability to critically assess situations, solve problems, and to work effectively under stress, within deadlines, 

and changes in work priorities. Ability to attend meetings at times outside of normal business hours, travel 

to other locations, and respond to emergencies on a 24-hour basis. 

• Ability to effectively train, lead, and motivate employees, and supervise and evaluate the work of others. 

• Ability to be self-motivated 

• Ability to adapt and respond to multiple priorities and demands, deal with the concerns of staff, resolve 

issues and situations in a positive manner, and handle a variety of issues of a confidential/sensitive nature.  

• Ability to train, supervise, and evaluate the work of others 

 

 

 

 

WATKINS EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 
APPENDIX B



Position: VILLAGE MANAGER      Village of Newberry  
Updated: 06/25/2020           Position Description 

Page 4 of 4 

 

• Physical Requirements and Work Environment: 
The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an employee to 

successfully perform the essential functions of the job.  Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable 

individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 

• The employee is required to sit for extended periods and use a computer, and other standard office equipment.   

While performing the duties of this job, the employee is regularly required to communicate with 

others in person and on the telephone. The employee is frequently required to review and produce 

written and electronic documents. 

The employee must occasionally lift and/or move items of light or medium weight. Specific vision 

abilities required by this job include close vision, color vision, and ability to adjust focus. The 

employee is frequently required to travel to other locations within and outside the Village, and use 

hands to finger, handle, or feel. The employee is regularly required to stand and walk. The 

employee is frequently required to attend meetings and make public presentations. 

While performing the duties of this job, the employee regularly works in a business office setting. 

The noise level in the work environment is usually quiet but can become loud in field situations. 

The employee occasionally works in other areas of the Village and may be exposed to adverse 

weather conditions, fumes, airborne particles, or other environmental situations. 
 

Minimum Qualifications: 

Master’s degree in, public or business administration, finance, or a related field and three to five years of 

experience of progressively responsible municipal management, public administration/affairs, management or a 

related area or equivalent experience/education combination, which would properly prepare the candidate for 

the position of Village Manager.  

Successful candidates will have a combination of education and experience in human resources, public 

information, community engagement, volunteer management, public and governmental affairs or related field, 

and will bring creative problem-solving skills to develop, oversee, and implement projects.  

Excellent verbal and written communication skills are keys to success in this position. 

Must be able to represent the Village at meetings, with community leaders and stakeholders, and serve or 

represent the Village on boards. 

Media training and/or experience as an organizational spokesperson is highly desired. 

Comments: 

The duties listed above are intended only as illustrations of the various types of work that may be performed.  

The omission of specific statements of duties does not exclude them from the position if the work is similar, 

related or a logical assignment to the position.  

The job description does not constitute an employment agreement between the employer and employee and is 

subject to change by the employer as the needs of the employer and requirements of the job change.  

This position may require a probationary period to be evaluated by the Village Council for permanent 

placement. 

 

WATKINS EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 
APPENDIX B









Maintenance Building Expense Tracking

as of 10.14.2020

Total Approved Bid Amount $401,478.00

Additional costs for sand and gravel (taken out 

of $20,000 approved by council) $16,095.00

Current Total Project cost $432,950.00 Check Date 12/20/2019

Paid to Amount

Pay request #1 - June 11, 2020 $44,100.00 Plott-temp repairs and bracing $2,800

Pay request #2 - July 9, 2020 $41,850.00 ACV = Actual Cash Value Plott- Mackinaw Environmental $2,188

Pay request #3 - August 6, 2020 $63,360.00 Plott-Demolition $30,000

Pay Request #4 - September 11,  2020 $94,050.00 Plott- Pollution Limit (asbestos) $10,000

Pay Request #5 - September 30, 2020 $50,580.00 Plott-Common wall demo $13,500.00

Replacement cost of building $588,305.00

Less code upgrades ($97,800.00)

Current Total Charged $293,940.00 Less depreciation ($294,153.00)

ACV on building $254,839.76

Less previous payments $58,487.76

Remaining cost of project $139,010.00 ACV CHECK AMOUNT $196,352.00

amount paid to plott for final 

asbestos removal $40,070.00

Total amount from insurance for new build $376,785.00

TOTAL ACV funds avaialable 

for new build $156,282.00

TOTAL PAID OUT SO FAR $293,940.00

Remaining amount covered by insurance $82,845.00 Check Date 09/22/2020

Estimated VON out of pocket total $56,165.00 Item Amount

RCV= Replacement Cash Value RCV on Building $153,844.50

Current VON out of pocket spent** $0.00 RCV on Building - additional $15,377.00

RCV on Code $51,281.50

TOTAL RCV check amount for 

new build $220,503.00

Additional approved spending $20,000.00

Current estimated VON out of pocket total $56,165.00

Total funds applied to new 

build $376,785.00

$40,070.00 was anticipated out of pocket due to 

using ACV funds to pay final asbestos removal 40,070.00

Estimated additional out of pocket $16,095.00 Total amount of coverage $475,342.76

20,000 extra approved by council 5/19 20,000

16095

Remaining amout of approved spending by 

council 3,905

Additional costs covered by insurance $15,377.00

























































STATE OF MICHIGAN 
Gretchen Whitmer, Governor 

DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY 
Rachael Eubanks, State Treasurer 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Report on 
Financial Statements 

 

 
VILLAGE OF 
NEWBERRY 

 

COUNTY OF LUCE 
 

December 2018 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Community Engagement and Finance Division 

Bureau of Local Government and School Services 



VILLAGE OF NEWBERRY—LUCE COUNTY 

 

VILLAGE COUNCIL 

(April 27, 2020) 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 Lori A. Stokes 

President 

 

 

Dennis Hendrickson 

President Pro-Tem 

  

Daniel Hardenbrook 

Trustee 

 
Catherine Freese 

Trustee 

  
Kip Cameron 

Trustee 

 
Jeffrey Puckett 

Trustee 

  
Vacant 

Trustee 

 

Allison Watkins 

Interim Village Manager 

  

Terese Schummer 

Clerk 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

VILLAGE POPULATION--2010 

1,519 

 
 

TAXABLE VALUATION--2018 

$17,478,481 



4425 (Rev. 01-19) 

 
 

 
 

 
GRETCHEN WHITMER 

GOVERNOR 

STATE OF MICHIGAN 

DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY 

LANSING 

 

 
RACHAEL EUBANKS 

STATE TREASURER 

 
 

April 27, 2020 
 

 

Village of Newberry 

302 E. McMillan Ave 

Newberry, Michigan 49868 

Independent Auditor's Report 

Dear Council Members: 

 

Report on the Financial Statements 

 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the 

business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the 

Village of Newberry, Luce County, Michigan, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2018, 

and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Village of 

Newberry’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 

in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 

includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 

preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 

whether due to fraud or error. 

 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We 

conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 

of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 

Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that 

we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 

statements are free of material misstatement. 

 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 

disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, 

including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 

due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 

relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to 
 

 

 
P.O. BOX 30728 • LANSING, MICHIGAN 48909-8228 

www.michigan.gov/treasury • 517-335-7469 

http://www.michigan.gov/treasury
http://www.michigan.gov/treasury


Village of Newberry 

Page 2 

April 27, 2020 

 

 
 

design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 

expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express 

no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used 

and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as 

evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 

for our audit opinions. 

 

Opinions 

 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 

the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each 

major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Village of Newberry, Luce 

County, Michigan, as of December 31, 2018, and the respective changes in financial position for 

the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 

States of America. 

 

Emphasis of Matter 

 

As discussed in Note L to the basic financial statements, in 2018, the Village adopted the new 

accounting guidance of GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 

Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, which establishes accounting and financial 

reporting standards for defined postemployment benefits other than pensions provided to the 

employees of the governmental employers through other postemployment plans. Our opinion is 

not modified with respect to this matter. 

 

Other Matters 

 

Required Supplementary Information 

 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 

management’s discussion and analysis on pages 1 through 7 as well as budgetary comparison 

information in Exhibit H, schedule of changes in the net pension liability, the schedule of pension 

contributions, schedule of changes in the net OPEB liability and the schedule of OPEB 

contributions be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, 

although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting 

Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic 

financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have 

applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with 

auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries 

of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 

consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and 

other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express 

an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not 

provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 



Village of Newberry 

Page 3 

April 27, 2020 

 

 

 

Supplementary and Other Information 

 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 

collectively comprise the Village of Newberry’s basic financial statements. The accompanying 

supplementary and related information presented in Exhibits I through L and the schedule of bond 

covenant cash reserves is presented for the purpose of additional analysis and is not a required part 

of the basic financial statements. 

 

The accompanying supplementary and related information presented in Exhibits I through L and 

the schedule of bond covenant reserves is the responsibility of management and was derived from 

and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 

financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in 

the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing 

and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 

prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other 

additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 

States of America. In our opinion, the accompanying supplementary and related information 

presented in Exhibits I through L and the schedule of bond covenant reserves is fairly stated in all 

material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated April 

27, 2020, on our consideration of the Village of Newberry’s internal control over financial 

reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, 

and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our 

testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, 

and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. 

That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 

Standards in considering the Village of Newberry’s internal control over financial reporting and 

compliance. 

 
 

Sincerely, 
 

Cary Jay Vaughn, CPA, CGFM 

Audit Manager 

Community Engagement and Finance Division 



VILLAGE OF NEWBERRY 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

i 

 

 

 
 

Page 
 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS ................................................................ 1 

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

EXHIBIT A--Government-Wide Statement of Net Position ......................................................... 8 

EXHIBIT B--Government-Wide Statement of Activities ............................................................. 9 

EXHIBIT C--Balance Sheet--Governmental Funds ..................................................................... 10 

EXHIBIT C-1--Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet 

to the Statement of Net Position ............................................................................. 11 

EXHIBIT D--Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund 

Balances--Governmental Funds ............................................................................ 12 

EXHIBIT D-1--Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, 

and Change in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the 

Statement of Activities ....................................................................................... 13 

EXHIBIT E--Statement of Net Position--Proprietary Funds ....................................................... 14 

EXHIBIT F--Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 

Proprietary Funds .................................................................................................. 15 

EXHIBIT G--Statement of Cash Flows--Proprietary Funds ....................................................... 16 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ................................................................................. 17 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

EXHIBIT H--Budgetary Comparison Schedule--General Fund.................................................. 48 

SCHEDULE 1--Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability 

and Related Ratios ............................................................................................ 49 

SCHEDULE 2--Schedule of Pension Contributions ................................................................... 50 

SCHEDULE 3--Schedule of Changes in the Village’s 

Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios ............................................................ 51 

SCHEDULE 4--Schedule of Village’s Contributions--OPEB..................................................... 52 

SCHEDULE 5—Schedule of Bond Covenant Cash Reserves .................................................... 53 



VILLAGE OF NEWBERRY 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

ii 

 

 

(CONTINUED) 

Page 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION AND SCHEDULES 

EXHIBIT I--Combining Balance Sheet--Non-Major Governmental Funds................................ 54 

EXHIBIT J--Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 

Changes in Fund Balances—Non-Major Governmental Funds ............................. 55 

EXHIBIT K--Schedule of Revenues--Budget and Actual--General Fund .................................. 56 

EXHIBIT L--Schedule of Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 

Budget and Actual--General Fund ......................................................................... 57 

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance 

and Other Matters Based on an Audit of the Financial Statements Performed 

in Accordance With Government Auditing Standards ................................................................. 58 

Report to Those Charged With Governance ................................................................................ 60 

Schedule of Findings and Responses ........................................................................................... 64 



VILLAGE OF NEWBERRY--LUCE COUNTY 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2018 

1 

 

 

 

Our discussion and analysis of the Village of Newberry’s (Village) financial performance provides 

an overview of the Village’s financial activities for the year ended December 31, 2018. 

 

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT 

 

This annual report consists of three parts: management’s discussion and analysis (this section), the 

basic financial statements, and required supplementary information. This report also contains 

supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements. The basic financial 

statements include a series of financial statements. The Statement of Net Position and the 

Statement of Activities on Exhibit A and B provide information about the activities of the Village 

as a whole and present a longer-term view of the Village’s finances. Fund financial statements 

start with Exhibit C. For governmental activities, these statements tell how these services were 

financed in the short term as well as what remains for future spending. Fund financial statements 

also report the Village’s operations in more detail than the government-wide statements by 

providing information about the Village’s most significant funds. The remaining statements 

provide financial information about activities for which the Village acts solely as a trustee or agent 

for the benefit of those outside of the government. 

 

REPORTING THE VILLAGE AS A WHOLE 

 

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities 

 

One of the most important questions asked about the Village’s finances is, “Is the Village as a 

whole better or worse off as a result of the year’s activities?” The Statement of Net Position and 

the Statement of Activities report information about the Village as a whole and about its activities 

in a way that helps answer this question. These statements include all assets and liabilities using 

the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting used by most private-sector 

companies. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of 

when cash is received or paid. 

 

These two statements report the Village’s net position and changes in them. You can think of the 

Village’s net position — the difference between assets and liabilities—as one way to measure the 

Village’s financial health, or financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in the Village’s 

net position are one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. You 

will need to consider other non-financial factors, however, such as changes in the Village’s 

property tax base and the condition of the Village’s infrastructure, to assess the overall health of 

the Village. 

 

In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities we divide the Village into two 

kinds of activities: 

 

• Governmental activities--Most of the Village’s basic services are reported here, including 

the fire, public works, and general administration. Property taxes and state grants finance 

most of these activities. 



VILLAGE OF NEWBERRY--LUCE COUNTY 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2018 

2 

 

 

 

• Business-type activities--The Village charges a fee to customers to help it cover all or most 

of the cost of certain services it provides. The Village’s sewer, water and electric systems 

are reported here. 

 

REPORTING THE VILLAGE’S MAJOR FUND 

 

Fund Financial Statements 

 

Our analysis of the Village’s major funds begins with Exhibit C and D with additional information 

provided in Note A of the Notes to the Financial Statements. The special revenue funds are 

required to be established by state law such as the Major Street Fund and the Local Street Fund. 

The Village’s two kinds of funds, governmental and proprietary, use different accounting 

approaches. 

 

• Governmental funds—Most of the Village’s basic services are reported in governmental 

funds, which focus on how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left 

at year-end that are available for spending. These funds are reported using an accounting 

method called modified accrual accounting, which measures cash and all other financial 

assets that can readily be converted to cash. The governmental fund statements provide a 

detailed short-term view of the Village’s general government operations and the basic 

services it provides. Governmental fund information helps you determine whether there 

are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the 

Village’s programs. We describe the relationship (or differences) between governmental 

activities (reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities) and 

governmental funds in a reconciliation at Exhibit C-1 and Exhibit D-1. 
 

• Proprietary funds—When the Village charges customers for the services it provides, these 

services are generally reported in proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are reported in the 

same way that all activities are reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement 

of Activities. In fact, the Village’s enterprise funds (a component of proprietary funds) are 

the same as the business-type activities we report in the government-wide statements but 

provide more detail and additional information, such as cash flows, for proprietary funds. 

 

Additional Required Supplementary Information (RSI) 

 

Following the basic financial statements is additional Required Supplementary Information that 

further explains and supports the information in the financial statements. The Required 

Supplementary Information includes budgetary comparison schedules, pension related data and 

the OPEB related data. 



VILLAGE OF NEWBERRY--LUCE COUNTY 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2018 

3 

 

 

 

THE VILLAGE AS A WHOLE 

The Village’s combined net position increased from $5,827,932 to $5,976,842 or $148,910 for the 

year ended December 31, 2018. Our analysis focuses on the net position (Table 1) and changes in 

net position (Table 2) of the Village’s governmental and business-type activities. 
 

Table 1 

Net Position of Governmental and Business Type Activities 

Total 

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Primary Government 
 

2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 

Current and Other Assets $ 1,035,761 
 

$ 1,182,408 
 

$ 1,382,172 
 

$ 1,920,254 
 

$ 2,417,933 
 

$ 3,102,662 

Non-current Assets 524,466  546,773  18,323,096  18,012,047  18,847,562  18,558,820 

 
Total Assets 

 
1,560,227 

  
1,729,181 

  
19,705,268 

  
19,932,301 

  
21,265,495 

  
21,661,482 

 

Deferred Outflows of 

Resources 

 

 

54,154 

  

 

166,841 

  

 

13,538 

  

 

41,710 

  

 

67,692 

  

 

208,551 

 
Current Liabilities 

 
170,073 

  
45,065 

  
650,418 

  
829,869 

  
820,491 

  
874,934 

Non-current Liabilities 1,323,965  1,603,431  13,279,602  13,392,879  14,603,567  14,996,310 

 
Total Liabilities 

 
1,494,038 

  
1,648,496 

  
13,930,020 

  
14,222,748 

  
15,424,058 

  
15,871,244 

 

 
Deferred Inflows 

of Resources 

 

 

 
 

64,958 

  

 

 
 

17,558 

  

 

 
 

16,239 

  

 

 
 

4,389 

  

 

 
 

81,197 

  

 

 
 

21,947 

 
Net Position 

           

Net Investment in 

Capital Assets 

 
521,423 

 
543,730 

 
4,745,658 

 
4,827,474 

 
5,267,081 

 
5,371,204 

Restricted 372,858 516,986 - - 372,858 516,986 

Unrestricted (838,896) (830,748) 1,026,889 919,400 187,993 88,652 

Total Net Position $ 55,385 $ 229,968 $ 5,772,547 $ 5,746,874 $ 5,827,932 $ 5,976,842 

 
The net position of the Village’s governmental activities increased by 315%, or $174,583 

($229,968 compared to $55,385). The net investment in capital assets increased as the Village 

paid down debt related to the capital assets. This increase in the restricted net position was due to 

keeping expenses at a minimum as the Village is building its reserves to put toward future street 

improvement projects. There was no significant change in unrestricted net position. 



VILLAGE OF NEWBERRY--LUCE COUNTY 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2018 

4 

 

 

 

The net position of the Village’s business-type activities decreased by .45%, or $25,673 

($5,746,874 compared to $5,772,547). The net investment in capital assets increased with the 

water and sewer projects that are being financed through a USDA bonds offset by depreciation of 

the electric, sewer and water systems. The decrease in the unrestricted net position was due to 

implementation of GASB Statement No. 75 for Other Post-Employment Benefits. 

Table 2 

Changes in Net Position 

Total 

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Primary Government 

  2017  2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 
      

Program Revenue 

 

Operating Grants and 

Capital Grants and 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Charges for Services $ 177,733 $ 172,586 $ 3,943,835 $ 4,470,041 $ 4,121,568 $ 4,642,627 

 

Contributions 13,275 
 

2,650 
 

- 
 

- 
 

13,275 
 

2,650 

 

Contributions 187,772 
 

- 
 

- 
 

- 
 

187,772 
 

- 

General Revenue      

Property Taxes 360,447  420,280  -  -  360,447  420,280 

State-Shared Revenues 427,256  534,265  -  -  427,256  534,265 

Unrestricted Investment Ea 1,292  4,574  3,007  3,146  4,299  7,720 

Other 203,933  452,448  (1,479)  -  202,454  452,448 

Transfers   -   -  -  -  -  - 

 

Total Revenues 

 

     1,371,708  

  

1,586,803 

  

3,945,363 

  

4,473,187 

  

5,317,071 

  

6,059,990 

 
Program Expenses 

           

General Government 513,128  583,377  -  -  513,128  583,377 

Public Safety 60,133  76,823  -  -  60,133  76,823 

Public Works 554,119  720,636  -  -  554,119  720,636 

Other 4,428  3,767  -  -  4,428  3,767 

Recreation and Cultural 1,790  1,604  -  -  1,790  1,604 

Interest on Debt 36,196    -  -  36,196  - 

Sewer -  -  691,963  941,665  691,963  941,665 

Water -  -  559,413  924,770  559,413  924,770 

Electric   -   -  2,157,176  2,069,157  2,157,176  2,069,157 

 

Total Expenses 

 

     1,169,794  

  

1,386,207 

  

3,408,552 

  

3,935,592 

  

4,578,346 

  

5,321,799 

 
Change in Net Position 

 
  $ 201,914  

  
$ 200,596 

  
$ 536,811 

  
$ 537,595 

  
$ 738,725 

  
$ 738,191 

 



VILLAGE OF NEWBERRY--LUCE COUNTY 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2018 

5 

 

 

 

Governmental Activities 

 

The total revenues for the Village’s governmental activities increased by 16% ($215,095), while 

expenses increased 19% ($216,413). The primary reason for the increase in revenues was due to 

an increase in property taxes and state grants. The primary reason for the increase in expenditures 

is due to less reimbursements being billed from the general fund as there were less projects in the 

special revenue funds requiring overhead and equipment usage. 

 

Business-Type Activities 

 

The revenues for the Village’s business-type activities increased by 13% ($527,824), while 

expenses increased 15% ($527,040). The Village increased their utility rates in Water and Sewer 

during 2017. Fiscal year 2018 was the first full year under the new billing rates. The Village also 

received a SAW grant during 2018. The increase in the expenditures is mainly due to the increase 

in depreciation due to water and sewer system upgrades and expenditures related to the SAW grant. 

 

THE VILLAGE’S FUNDS 

 

As the Village completed the year, its General Fund (as presented in the balance sheet on Exhibit 

C) reported a fund balance of $664,207, which is more than last year’s $492,831. The primary 

reasons for the governmental funds’ increase mirror the governmental activities analysis 

highlighted in the prior paragraph. The General Fund was the Village’s only major governmental 

fund in fiscal year end December 31, 2018. 

 

The General Fund pays for most of the Village’s governmental services. The most significant are 

for general government and public works activities. These services are supported by the operating 

millage and State-shared revenues. The Major Street Fund and the Local Street Fund performs 

public works and account for the Michigan Transportation Funds received from the State and the 

maintenance performed on the Village’s street system. Variations in the Sewer, Water and Electric 

Funds parallel changes previously noted in the business-type activities. 

 

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHT 

 

Over the course of the year, the Village’s budget was monitored monthly to continuously evaluate 

the financial position of the Village. Adjustments were approved throughout the year to try and 

take into account the activities of the Village for the year. The Village continues to be conservative 

in its budgeting. However, there were still several budget overages for the increased activity for 

the year in the General Fund. 



VILLAGE OF NEWBERRY--LUCE COUNTY 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2018 

6 

 

 

 

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

 

Capital Assets 

 

As of December 31, 2018, the Village had $17,484,385 invested in a broad range of capital assets, 

including land, buildings, land improvements, vehicles, equipment, street and sidewalk 

infrastructure, and water and sewer infrastructure. This amount represents a net increase 

(including additions and deductions) of $269,381. 
 

Table 3 

Capital Assets at Year-End 

Total 

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Primary Government 

  2017   2018   2017   2018   2017   2018  
 

Land $ 5,773 $ 5,773 $ 15,204 $ 15,204 $ 20,977 $ 20,977 

Land Improvements 178,115 178,115 - - 178,115 178,115 

Construction in Progress - - 10,745,213 4,658,815 10,745,213 4,658,815 

Buildings and Improvements 857,787 869,687 221,320 221,320 1,079,107 1,091,007 

Vehicles and Equipment 2,117,709 2,206,561 960,346 974,209 3,078,055 3,180,770 

Infrastructure 173,360 173,360 - - 173,360 173,360 

Electric System - - 5,094,575 5,094,575 5,094,575 5,094,575 

Sewer System - - 2,608,299 2,608,299 2,608,299 2,608,299 

Water System   -    -    5,526,391       11,752,610    5,526,391       11,752,610  

Total Capital Assets 3,332,744 3,433,496 25,171,348 25,325,032 28,504,092 28,758,528 

Total Accumulated Depreciation    (2,811,321)    (2,889,766)      (7,939,005)      (8,384,377)    (10,750,326)    (11,274,143) 

Total Net Capital Assets   $ 521,423  $ 543,730 $ 17,232,343 $ 16,940,655 $ 17,753,766 $ 17,484,385 
 

 

This fiscal year’s capital asset addition in the governmental activities included new accounting 

software, bathroom improvements for the fire hall and disposal bins. The capital asset additions 

in the business-type activities were sewer system improvements, water system improvements and 

accounting software. The sewer system improvements were still in progress at fiscal year-end. 

 

More detailed information about the Village’s capital assets is presented in Note F to the financial 

statements. 

 

Debt 

 

As of December 31, 2018, the Village had $12,113,181 in bonds and installment purchase 

agreements outstanding versus $12,486,685 from the previous year, a decrease of $373,504, as 

shown in Table 4. The Village did have additional draw downs on their revenue bond for the 

sewer project for fiscal year ending December 31, 2018. The increase is offset by the continued 

scheduled payments on the debt obligations. 



VILLAGE OF NEWBERRY--LUCE COUNTY 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2018 

7 

 

 

 

Table 4 

Outstanding Debt at Year-End 

Total 

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities  Primary Government 

2017 2018  2017 2018 2017 2018 

Installment Purchases $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - 

Bonds Payable   -   -  12,486,685  12,113,181  12,486,685  12,113,181  

Total Outstanding Debt   $ - $ - $ 12,486,685 $ 12,113,181 $ 12,486,685 $ 12,113,181 
      

 

More detailed information about the Village’s long-term debt obligations is presented in Note H 

to the financial statements. In addition to the debt obligations shown in Table 4, the Village had 

$29,244 in vested employee benefits payable presented in more detail in Note I to the financial 

statements. 

 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET 

 

In the upcoming year, the Village will again be closely monitoring its budget as revenues will 

remain relatively the same as the Village continues to try to cut expenses. 

 
 

CONTACTING THE VILLAGE’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

 

This financial report is intended to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers and investors with a 

general overview of the Village’s finances and to show accountability for the money it receives. If 

you have questions about this report or need additional information, we welcome you to contact 

the Village's office at: 302 E. McMillan Ave, Newberry, MI 49868 or by calling 906-293-3433. 



8 

 

 

VILLAGE OF NEWBERRY--LUCE COUNTY 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

  EXHIBIT A 

December 31, 2018    

 

 
ASSETS 

  PRIMARY GOVERNMENT  

Governmental Business-Type 

     Activities   Activities  

  

 
  Total  

Current Assets 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

 
$ 408,331 $ 1,346,090 

  
$ 1,754,421 

Receivables (Net) 

Taxes Receivables 

 
48,919 - 

  
48,919 

Accounts (Net) 132,779 521,364  654,143 

Due From State 122,704 52,800  175,504 

Internal Balance 469,675 -  469,675 

Total Current Assets   1,182,408  1,920,254     3,102,662  

Non-current Assets 

Restricted Cash 

 
- 445,380 

  
445,380 

Long-Term Receivable 3,043 -  3,043 

Capital Credits in Co-op - 626,012  626,012 

Capital Assets--Depreciating 359,842 12,266,636  12,626,478 

Capital Assets--Non-depreciating   183,888  4,674,019     4,857,907  

Total Assets   1,729,181  19,932,301     21,661,482  

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES    

Deferred Outflows - Changes in Pension Investments   166,841  41,710     208,551  

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources   166,841  41,710     208,551  

Current Liabilities 

Accounts Payable 

 
41,538 227,780 

  
269,318 

Accrued Liabilities (555) 77,925  77,370 

Due to State 4,082 -  4,082 

Customer Deposit - 44,251  44,251 

Internal Balance - 469,675  469,675 

Other Liabilities 

Non-current Liabilities 

Bonds Payable--Due Within One Year 

- 10,238 

 
- 517,000 

 10,238 

 
517,000 

Bonds Payable--Due in More Than One Year - 11,596,181  11,596,181 

Net Pension Liability 1,563,492 391,954  1,955,446 

Other Post-Employment Benefits Payable 35,938 862,501  898,439 

Vested Employee Benefits Payable--Due Within One Year 4,001 16,800  20,801 

Vested Employee Benefits Payable--Due in More Than One Year   -  8,443     8,443  

Total Liabilities   1,648,496  14,222,748     15,871,244  

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES    

Deferred Inflows - Changes in Pension Experience   17,558  4,389     21,947  

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources   17,558  4,389     21,947  

NET POSITION    

Net Investment in Capital Assets 543,730 4,827,474  5,371,204 

Restricted 516,986 -  516,986 

Unrestricted   (830,748)  919,400     88,652  

Total Net Position   $ 229,968 $ 5,746,874     $ 5,976,842  

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. 
 

  
 



 

 

VILLAGE OF NEWBERRY--LUCE COUNTY EXHIBIT B 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2018 

NET (EXPENSE) REVENUE 

  PROGRAM REVENUES   AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION  

Operating  Capital  PRIMARY GOVERNMENT 

Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-Type 

Functions/Programs   Expenses   Services  Contributions    Contributions  Activities  Activities   Total  

Primary Government 

Governmental Activities 

General Government $ 583,377 $ 67,499 $ - $ 100,904 $ (414,974) $ - $ (414,974) 

Public Safety 76,823 105,087 2,650 - 30,914 - 30,914 

Public Works 720,636 - 37,886 - (682,750) - (682,750) 

Recreational and Cultural 3,767 - - - (3,767) - (3,767) 

Other   1,604  -  -  -  (1,604)  -  (1,604) 

Total Governmental Activities   1,386,207  172,586  40,536  100,904  (1,072,181)  -  (1,072,181) 

Business-Type Activities 

Electric 

 
2,069,157 2,258,586 - - - 189,429 189,429 

Sewer 941,665 1,260,970 - - - 319,305 319,305 

Water   924,770  950,485  -  -  -  25,715  25,715  

Total Business-Type Activities   3,935,592  4,470,041  -  -  -  534,449  534,449  

Total Primary Government   $   5,321,799      $  4,642,627      $ 40,536      $ 100,904 (1,072,181) 534,449 (537,732) 

 
 

 
 

General Revenues 

Property Taxes 420,280 - 420,280 

State-Shared Revenues 395,475 - 395,475 

Unrestricted Investment Earnings 4,574 3,146 7,720 

Other Revenues   452,448  -  452,448  

Total General Revenues   1,272,777  3,146  1,275,923  

Change in Net Position 200,596 537,595 738,191 

Net Position--Beginning 55,385 5,772,547 5,827,932 

Restatement of Net Position (Note O)   (26,013)   (563,268)   (589,281) 

Restated Net Position--Beginning 29,372 5,209,279 5,238,651 

 

Net Position--Ending 
 

  $ 229,968  
 

  $ 5,746,874  
 

  $ 5,976,842  
   

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. 
 

9 



10 

 

 

VILLAGE OF NEWBERRY--LUCE COUNTY 

BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

    EXHIBIT C 

December 31, 2018      

     Total 

   Non-major  Governmental 

   General    Governmental    Funds  

ASSETS      

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 161,812  $ 246,519  $ 408,331 

Receivables      

Taxes Receivable 33,403  15,516  48,919 

Accounts (Net) 7,078  125,701  132,779 

Due from State 83,933  38,771  122,704 

Due from Other Funds 792,224  406,332  1,198,556 

Long-Term Receivable   3,043     -     3,043  

Total Assets   $ 1,081,493     $ 832,839     $ 1,914,332  

LIABILITIES 
     

Accounts Payable $ 25,897  $ 15,641  $ 41,538 

Due to Other Funds 388,901  339,980  728,881 

Accrued Liabilities (555)  -  (555) 

Due to State   -     4,082     4,082  

Total Liabilities   414,243     359,703     773,946  

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES      

Unavailable Revenues   3,043     -     3,043  

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources   3,043     -     3,043  

FUND BALANCE      

Non-spendable for:      

Due from Sewer Fund 383,602 - 383,602 

Restricted for:   

Streets - 292,795 292,795 

Fire Capital Purchases - 28,926 28,926 

Fire Operations - 183,164 183,164 

Unassigned   280,605   (31,749)   248,856  

Total Fund Balance   664,207   473,136    1,137,343  

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows 

of Resources and Fund Balances 

 
  $ 1,081,493  $ 832,839  

 
  $ 1,914,332  

 

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. 



11 

 

 

VILLAGE OF NEWBERRY--LUCE COUNTY EXHIBIT C-1 

RECONCILIATION OF FUND BALANCE OF GOVERNMENTAL 

FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

December 31, 2018 

 

 

 

 
FUND BALANCES---TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS $ 1,137,343 

Capital assets used in governmental activities a re not financial resources and, therefore, 

are not reported in the funds. 

 
543,730 

Postemployment benefits which do not require use of current financial resources   

are not reported in the funds. 

(35,938) 

Pension obligations which are not financial resources and are not reported in the funds. (1,414,209) 

Unavailable revenues provide current resources but are not recorded on the full accrual basis. 3,043 

Certain liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, are not reported in 

the funds. 

 
  (4,001) 

Compensated Absences 
 

Net Position of Governmental Activities  $ 229,968  

 

 

 

 
The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. 



12 

 

 

VILLAGE OF NEWBERRY--LUCE COUNTY 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

  EXHIBIT D 

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2018    

   
Total 

  Nonmajor Governmental 
   General     Governmental    Funds  

Revenues    

Taxes $ 290,488 $ 129,792 $ 420,280 

Licenses and Permits 590 - 590 

State Grants 302,475 278,290 580,765 

Charges for Services 67,499 105,087 172,586 

Interest and Rentals 3,568 1,006 4,574 

Other Revenue   426,858    25,000    451,858  

Total Revenues   1,091,478    539,175    1,630,653  

Expenditures 
   

Current    

General Government 480,858 - 480,858 

Public Safety 44,136 - 44,136 

Public Works 308,388 379,411 687,799 

Other 1,604 - 1,604 

Capital Outlay   85,116    15,636    100,752  

Total Expenditures   920,102    395,047    1,315,149  

Excess of Revenues 
   

Over (Under) Expenditures 171,376 144,128 315,504 

Fund Balance--January 1, 2018   492,831    329,008    821,839  

Fund Balance--December 31, 2018   $ 664,207    $ 473,136    $ 1,137,343  

 

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. 



13 

 

 

VILLAGE OF NEWBERRY--LUCE COUNTY EXHIBIT D-1 

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, 

EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES OF 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

For the Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2018 

 

 
 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES--TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS $ 315,504 
 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are different because: 

 
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the 

Statement of Activities the costs of those assets is allocated over their estimated 

useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. 

 
Add--Capital Outlay 100,752 

Deduct--Depreciation Expense (78,445) 

 
Unavailable revenue in the governmental funds is recorded as revenue in 

the Statement of Activities (43,850) 

 
Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use 

of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures 

in the funds: 

Decrease in Compensated Absences 827 

Decrease in OPEB Liability 4,484 

Changes in pension Liabilities   (98,676) 

CHANGE IN NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES  $ 200,596  

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. 



14 

 

 

VILLAGE OF NEWBERRY--LUCE COUNTY 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

 EXHIBIT E 

December 31, 2018   

 BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES  

 

 
ASSETS 

  ENTERPRISE FUNDS  

 
  Electric   Sewer   Water  

Total 

Enterprise 

  Funds  

Current Assets 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

 
$ 443,476 $ 197,809 $ 704,805 

 
$ 1,346,090 

Accounts Receivable 215,343 202,834 103,187 521,364 

Due from State - 52,800 - 52,800 

Due from Other Funds   51,435  29  -    51,464  

Total Current Assets   710,254  453,472  807,992    1,971,718  

Non-current Assets 

Restricted Cash 

 
- - 445,380 

 
445,380 

Capital Credits in Co-op 626,012 - - 626,012 

Capital Assets--Depreciating 2,090,741 692,645 9,483,250 12,266,636 

Capital Assets--Non-depreciating   3,543  4,670,476  -    4,674,019  

Total Non-current Assets   2,720,296  5,363,121  9,928,630    18,012,047  

Total Assets   3,430,550  5,816,593  10,736,622    19,983,765  

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

Deferred Outflows--Changes in Pension Investments 

 
  41,710  -  -  

 
  41,710  

LIABILITIES 

Current Liabilities 

  

Accounts Payable 172,514 43,438 11,828 227,780 

Accrued Interest Payable 6,168 20,620 51,137 77,925 

Customer Deposit 44,251 - - 44,251 

Accrued Vacation and Sick Time 7,474 11,321 6,448 25,243 

Due to Other Funds 13,451 383,602 124,086 521,139 

Other Liabilities   9,179    826    233    10,238  

Total Current Liabilities   253,037    459,807    193,732    906,576  

Non-current Liabilities 

Bond Payable--Due Within One Year 

 
205,000 

 
160,000 

 
152,000 

 
517,000 

Bond Payable--Due in More Than One Year 545,000 3,143,181 7,908,000 11,596,181 

Net Pension Liability 391,954 - - 391,954 

OPEB Obligation   431,250    431,251    -    862,501  

Total Non-current Liabilities   1,573,204    3,734,432    8,060,000    13,367,636  

Total Liabilities   1,826,241    4,194,239    8,253,732    14,274,212  

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

Deferred Inflows--Changes in Pension Experience 

 
  4,389  

 
  -  

 
  -  

 
  4,389  

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources   4,389    -    -    4,389  

NET POSITION 

Net Investment in Capital Assets 

 
1,344,284 

 
2,059,940 

 
1,423,250 

 
4,827,474 

Unrestricted   297,346    (437,586)   1,059,640    919,400  

Total Net Position   $ 1,641,630    $ 1,622,354    $ 2,482,890    $ 5,746,874  
    

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. 



15 

 

 

VILLAGE OF NEWBERRY--LUCE COUNTY EXHIBIT F 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES 

IN NET POSITION--PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2018 

 

 
 BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES 

 

 

 

Operating Revenues 

  ENTERPRISE FUNDS  Total 

Enterprise 

  Electric   Sewer   Water   Funds  

Charges for Services   $  2,258,586       $ 1,260,970       $ 950,485       $ 4,470,041  

Total Operating Revenues   2,258,586  1,260,970  950,485  4,470,041  

Operating Expenses 

Salaries and Fringes 

 
292,833 281,535 226,231 800,599 

Operating Expenses 67,164 193,414 12,024 272,602 

Repairs and Maintenance 10,802 7,067 6,338 24,207 

Professional Fees 184,726 89,395 29,882 304,003 

General Insurance 8,126 22,662 6,905 37,693 

Utilities 1,191,385 77,146 - 1,268,531 

Truck and Equipment Expense 20,166 8,755 7,466 36,387 

Other 161,138 113,761 114,222 389,121 

Depreciation   80,661  61,458  303,253  445,372  

Total Operating Expenses   2,017,001  855,193  706,321  3,578,515  

Operating Income (Loss)   241,585  405,777  244,164  891,526  

Non-operating Revenues (Expenses) 

Interest Earned on Investments 

 
1,021 816 1,309 3,146 

Interest Expense   (52,156)   (86,472)   (218,449)   (357,077) 

Total Non-operating Revenues (Expenses)   (51,135)   (85,656)   (217,140)   (353,931) 

Change in Net Position   190,450  320,121  27,024  537,595  

Total Net Position--January 1, 2018   1,732,622  1,584,059  2,455,866  5,772,547  

Restatement of Beginning Net Position (Note ) (281,442) (281,826) - (563,268) 

Beginning Net Position--Restated   1,451,180  1,302,233  2,455,866  5,209,279  

 
Total Net Position--December 31, 2018 

 
  $  1,641,630       $ 1,622,354        $  2,482,890       $ 5,746,874  

 

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. 



16 

 

 

VILLAGE OF NEWBERRY--LUCE COUNTY 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

 EXHIBIT G 

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2018   

 BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES  

   ENTERPRISE FUNDS  Total 

  Enterprise 

   Electric   Sewer   Water    Funds  

Cash Flows From Operating Activities   

Cash Received From Customers $   2,247,045 $   1,145,025 $ 1,060,787 $ 4,452,857 

Cash Payments to Employees for Services and Benefits (336,657) (334,920) (242,062) (913,639) 

Cash Payments to Suppliers for Goods and Services   (1,656,398)   (468,762)   (164,776)   (2,289,936) 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities   253,990  341,343  653,949    1,249,282  

Cash Flows From Non-capital Financing Activities 
  

Inventory Reductions 28,533 13,646 330 42,509 

Due From Other Funds   150,525  (74,231)   61,046    137,340  

Net Cash Provided by Non-capital Financing Activities   179,058  (60,585)   61,376    179,849  

Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities 
  

Proceeds from Bonds - 149,120 - 149,120 

Acquisition of Capital Assets (4,621) (144,442) (4,621) (153,684) 

Capital Contributions - - - - 

Reduction of Debt (190,000) (186,624) (146,000) (522,624) 

Interest Paid on Bonds   (53,641)   (84,144)   (219,365)   (357,150) 

Net Cash Provided by Capital and Related Financing 
  

Activities   (248,262)    (266,090)    (369,986)    (884,338) 

Cash Flows From Investing Activities 
       

Interest on Cash Equivalents   1,021     816     1,309     3,146  

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities   1,021  
 

  816  
 

  1,309  
 

  3,146  

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 185,807 
 

15,484 
 

346,648 
 

547,939 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year   257,669  
 

  182,325  
 

  803,537  
 

  1,243,531  

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year   $ 443,476     $ 197,809     $ 1,150,185     $ 1,791,470  

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net 
       

Cash Provided by Operating Activities        

Operating Income (Loss) $ 241,585  $ 405,777  $ 244,164  $ 891,526 
 

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income 

to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 

Depreciation Expense 80,661 61,458 303,253 445,372 

(Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable (11,541) (115,945) 110,302 (17,184) 

Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Wage Liabilities (43,824) (53,385) (15,831) (113,040) 

Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable   (12,891)   43,438    12,061    42,608  
 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities   $ 253,990    $ 341,343    $ 653,949    $ 1,249,282  
 

    

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. 



VILLAGE OF NEWBERRY--LUCE COUNTY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2018 

17 

 

 

 

NOTE A--SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

The financial statements of the Village of Newberry (Village) have been prepared in conformity 

with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for 

establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant of 

the Village’s accounting policies are described below. 

 

REPORTING ENTITY 
 

The Village of Newberry is located in Luce County which covers an area of .98 square miles and 

operates under a general law Village form of government. The Village provides services to its 

1,519 residents in many areas including: public safety (fire), public works, and general 

government. The Village is governed by a seven-member council, including a president, elected 

by the citizens of the Village. 

 

In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and GASB Statement No. 61, "The 

Financial Reporting Entity," these financial statements present the Village. The criteria established 

by GASB for determining the reporting entity includes oversight responsibility, fiscal dependency 

and whether the financial statements would be misleading if data were not included. 

 

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 
 

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the Statement of Net Position and the Statement 

of Activities) report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary government. 

For the most part, the effect of inter-fund activity has been removed from these statements. 

Governmental activities, normally supported by taxes and inter-governmental revenues, are 

reported separately from business-type activities which rely to a significant extent on fees and 

charges for support. 



VILLAGE OF NEWBERRY--LUCE COUNTY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2018 

18 

 

 

 

NOTE A--SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given 

function or segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly 

identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include: 1) charges to 

customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges 

provided by a given function or segment; and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to 

meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and 

other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general 

revenue. 

 

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major 

individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate 

columns in the fund financial statements. 

 

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation 
 

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources 

measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial 

statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is 

incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenue 

in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon 

as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 

 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources 

measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenue is recognized when it 

is both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available if they are collected 

within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this 

purpose, the government considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of 

the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is 

incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, expenditures relating 

to compensated absences, and claims and judgments are recorded only when payment is due. 

 

Revenues are recognized in the accounting period in which they become susceptible to accrual, 

that is, when they become both measurable and available to finance expenditures of the fiscal 

period. Property taxes, intergovernmental revenue, charges for services and interest associated 

with the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been 

recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Only the portion of special assessments 

receivable due within the current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue 

of the current period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only 

when cash is received by the Village. 



VILLAGE OF NEWBERRY--LUCE COUNTY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2018 

19 

 

 

 

NOTE A--SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 

The Village reports the following major governmental funds: 

• The General Fund is the Village’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial 

resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another 

fund. 

The Village reports the following major proprietary funds: 

• The Electric Fund accounts for the electrical operations of the Village. 

• The Water Fund accounts for the water operations of the Village. 

• The Sewer Fund is designated to separately account for the operations and maintenance 

according to the sewer system. 

 

As a general rule, the effect of inter-fund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide 

financial statements. 

 

Amounts reported as program revenues include: 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, 

services, or privileges provided; 2) operating grants and contributions; and 3) capital grants and 

contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general 

revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes. 

 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. 

Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services, and producing and 

delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The 

principal operating revenues of the Electric, Water, and Sewer funds are collection fees for 

electricity, water and sewer consumption. The Water and Sewer Funds also recognize the portion 

of tap fees intended to recover current costs (e.g., labor and materials to hook up new customers) 

as operating revenue. The portion intended to recover the cost of the infrastructure is recognized 

as non-operating revenue. Operating expenses for proprietary funds include the cost of sales and 

services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenue and expenses not 

meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenue and expenses. 



VILLAGE OF NEWBERRY--LUCE COUNTY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2018 

20 

 

 

 

NOTE A--SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the policy of the Village 

to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

 

Bank Deposits and Investments 
 

The bank deposits are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term investments 

with a maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition. The statement of cash flows 

include both restricted and unrestricted cash and cash equivalents. 

 

Investments are stated at fair value and short-term investments are reported at cost, which 

approximates fair value. Earnings from investments are allocated to numerous funds as required 

by Federal regulations, State statutes, and local ordinances. 

 

Inter-fund Receivables and Payables 
 

Transactions between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements 

outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either "inter-fund receivables/payables" 

(i.e., the current portion of inter-fund loans) or "advances to/from other funds" (i.e., the noncurrent 

portion of inter-fund loans). All other outstanding balances between funds are reported as "due 

to/from other funds." Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and 

business-type activities are reported in the government-wide statements as “internal balances.” 

 

Deferred Inflows of Resources--Unavailable Revenue 
 

Governmental funds report unavailable revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that 

are not considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period or for resources that 

have been received but not yet earned. 

 

Capital Assets 
 

Capital assets include property, plant and equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., streets, 

sidewalks, and similar items), and are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type 

activities column in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the 

government as assets with an initial individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful 

life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at cost or estimated historical cost if purchased 

or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of 

donation. 

 

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially 

extend assets lives are not capitalized. 



VILLAGE OF NEWBERRY--LUCE COUNTY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2018 

21 

 

 

 

NOTE A--SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following 

useful lives: 

 
 Governmental 

  Funds  

Enterprise 

  Funds  

Land Improvements 

Buildings and Building Improvements 

Vehicles 

Equipment 

15 to 30 years 

20 to 40 years 

3 to 10 years 

3 to 10 years 

 

20 to 35 years 

 
5 to 20 years 

Sewer System 

Water System 

 20 to 50 years 

20 to 50 years 

 

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 
  

 

In addition to assets, the statement of net position and/or balance sheet will sometimes report a 

separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element 

represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be 

recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. In this category deferred 

outflows of resources related to the defined benefit pension plan. The deferred outflows of 

resources result from three transactions: contributions to the defined pension plan subsequent to 

the plan’s year end through the Village fiscal year end, the variance between the plan’s actual 

investment earnings compared to the plan’s assumed investment earnings and the changes in 

assumptions. 

 

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position and/or balance sheet will sometimes report 

a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element 

represents an acquisition of net position that is applicable to a future reporting period. In this 

category deferred inflows of resources related to the difference between actual and expected 

experience. 

 

Pensions 
 

For the purposes of measuring the Net Pension Liability, deferred outflows of resources and 

deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the 

fiduciary net position of the Municipal Employees Retirement System (MERS) of Michigan and 

additions to / deductions from MERS’ fiduciary net position have been determined on the same 

basis as they are reported by MERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of 

employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit 

terms. Investments are reported at fair value. 



VILLAGE OF NEWBERRY--LUCE COUNTY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2018 

22 

 

 

 

NOTE A--SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 

Compensated Absences (Vacation and Sick Leave)--Primary Government 
 

It is the policy of the Village to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused sick and 

vacation pay benefits. The liability for unpaid accumulated sick leave is time available according 

to the Village’s union contracts and personnel policies. All vacation pay is accrued when incurred 

in the government-wide financial statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in 

governmental and enterprise funds as of year-end. 

 

Long-Term Obligations 
 

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund type statements, the long-term 

debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental 

activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type Statement of Net Position. 

 

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, 

as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported 

as other financing sources. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds 

received, are reported as debt service expenditures. 

 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting 

principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 

amounts of the following: assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities 

at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures 

during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 



VILLAGE OF NEWBERRY--LUCE COUNTY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2018 

23 

 

 

 

NOTE A--SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
 

The transfers of cash between the various Village funds are budgeted but reported separately from 

revenues and expenditures as operating transfers in or (out), unless they represent temporary 

advances that are to be repaid; in which case, they are carried as assets and liabilities of the 

advancing or borrowing funds. 

 

Fund Balance Classifications 
 

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report the following components of fund 

balance which comprise a hierarchy based on the extent to which the Village is bound to honor 

constraints on the specific purposes for which amounts in those funds can be spent. 

 

• Non-spendable fund balance includes fund balance amounts in governmental funds to 

designate amounts which are not available for spending, or are legally or contractually required 

to be maintained. 

• Restricted fund balance category includes amounts that can be spent only for the specific 

purposes stipulated by constitution, external resource providers, or through enabling 

legislation. 

• Assigned--includes fund balance amounts that are intended to be used for a specific purpose. 

• Committed--includes fund balance amounts constrained to specific purposes by a 

government itself, using its highest level of decision-making authority. 

• Unassigned--includes positive fund balance within the General Fund which has not been 

classified within the above mentioned categories and negative fund balances in other 

governmental funds. 

 

The Village of Newberry reports the following restricted fund balances. 

• Major Street Fund - This fund is used to account for revenues from Federal and 

Michigan Transportation Fund (MTF) monies distributed which are earmarked by 

law to control expenditures for the construction and maintenance of the major street 

system. 

• Local Street Fund - This fund is used to account for revenues primarily from MTF 

monies distributed which are earmarked by law to control expenditures for the 

construction and maintenance of the local street system. 

• Fire Capital, Fire Revolving and Fire Millage Funds - These funds are used to 

account for the fire department equipment, operations and millage receipts. 

• TORC and Atlas Park Funds - These funds are used to account for capital projects 

related to the Tahquamenon Outdoor Recreation Complex and Atlas Park. 

 

The Village of Newberry does not have a formal minimum fund balance policy. 



VILLAGE OF NEWBERRY--LUCE COUNTY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2018 

24 

 

 

 

NOTE B--STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY 
 

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting 

Budgets are adopted by the Village Council for the General Fund and Special Revenue Funds after 

a public hearing is held. The budget basis of accounting does not differ significantly from the 

modified accrual basis used to reflect actual revenues and expenditures for these funds. The budget 

is adopted at the activity level and control is exercised at the activity level. The Village Council 

monitors and amends the budgets as necessary. Unexpended appropriations lapse at year end. 

 

Excess of Expenditures over Appropriation in Budgeted Funds 
 

Public Act 2 of 1968, as amended, requires the adoption of a balanced budget for general and 

special revenue funds, as well as budget amendments as needed to prevent actual expenditures 

from exceeding those provided for in the budget. 

 

During the year, the Village incurred expenditures in certain budgeted funds, which were in excess 

of the amounts appropriated, as follows: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Public Works 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
The Village will work towards not exceeding amounts budgeted and make amendments before the 

expenditures occur. 

 
 Fund, Function and Activity  

  
Budget 

  
Actual 

 Excess 

Expenditures 

 
General Fund 

General Government 

Village Manager 

  

 

 
$ 77,345 

  

 

 
$ 77,628 

  

 

 
$ (283) 

Village Treasurer  12,467  12,574  (107) 

DPW 137,590 137,643 (53) 

Rubbish 76,586 76,724 (138) 

Capital Outlay 20,525 85,116 (64,591) 

Fire Revolving Fund 

Public Safety 

 

126,650 

 

143,939 

 

(17,289) 

Capital Outlay - 11,900 (11,900) 

 



VILLAGE OF NEWBERRY--LUCE COUNTY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2018 

25 

 

 

 

NOTE B--STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (Continued) 
 

Fund Deficits 
 

As of December 31, 2018, a deficit existed in the unassigned fund balance (governmental fund) of 

the TORC Fund in the amount of $25,702, in the Atlas Park Fund of $6,047 and an unrestricted 

deficit existed at year end in the Sewer Fund in the amount of $437,586. Public Act 140 of 1971, 

as amended, requires the Village to file a deficit elimination plan with the Michigan Department 

of Treasury within 90 days after the end of the fiscal year for each fund that ended that year in a 

deficit condition. The Village has not yet submitted a formal plan. The Village will file a formal 

plan for the Sewer Fund. 

 

NOTE C--BANK DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 
 

Michigan Compiled Laws (MCL) 129.91 authorizes the Village to deposit and invest in the 

accounts of federally insured banks, credit unions, savings and loan associations; bonds, securities 

and other direct obligations of the United States, or any agency or instrumentality of the United 

States; United States government or federal agency obligation repurchase agreements, bankers' 

acceptance of United States banks; commercial paper rated within the two highest classifications, 

which mature not more than 270 days after the date of purchase, obligations of the State of 

Michigan or its political subdivisions which are rated as investment grade; and mutual funds 

composed of investment vehicles which are legal for direct investment by local units of 

government in Michigan. Financial institutions eligible for deposit of public funds must maintain 

an office in Michigan. 

Deposits are carried at cost. The Village has designated four banks for the deposit of Village 

funds. The investment policy adopted by the Village Council in accordance with Public Act 20 of 

1943, as amended, has authorized investment in the instruments described in the preceding 

paragraph. The Village’s deposit and investment policy is in accordance with statutory authority. 

At year end, the Village’s deposits and investments were reported in the basic financial statements 

in the following categories: 

 
 Governmental 

  Activities  

Business-Type 

  Activities  

Total Primary 

    Government  

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 408,331 $ 1,346,090 $ 1,754,421 

Restricted Cash   -    445,380    445,380  

Total   $ 408,331  $ 1,791,470 $ 2,199,801 



VILLAGE OF NEWBERRY--LUCE COUNTY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2018 

26 

 

 

 

NOTE C--BANK DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 
 

The breakdown between deposits and investments is as follows: 

 
Primary 

  Government  
 

Bank Deposits (Checking and Savings Accounts) $2,199,551 

Petty Cash and Cash on Hand   250  
 

 

Total  $2,199,801  

 

 

 

Custodial Credit Risk 

The custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository 

financial institution, the Village’s deposits may not be recovered. The Village does not have a 

deposit policy for custodial credit risk. 

 

At December 31, 2018, the bank balance of the Village’s deposits is $2,347,066, of which 

$521,058   is   covered by   Federal   depository insurance.   The remaining $1,826,008 is 

uncollateralized. 

 

Restricted Cash 
 

In accordance with Village ordinances, separate bank accounts have been established to create 

restricted cash balances reserved for the funding of sewer and water bond payments as well as 

sewer and water repair, replacement, and improvement to the individual systems. As of December 

31, 2018, the restricted cash balance was $445,380 in the Water Fund. 



VILLAGE OF NEWBERRY--LUCE COUNTY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2018 

27 

 

 

 

NOTE D--RECEIVABLES 
 

Accounts Receivable 
 

At December 31, 2018, the accounts receivable for the Governmental Funds are as follows: 

 
 Other 

Accounts 

 Receivable  

Due 

From 

  State  

Net 

Accounts 

 Receivable  

General Fund $ 7,078 $ 83,933 $ 91,011 

Major Street Fund - 27,637 27,637 

Local Street Fund - 11,134 11,134 

Fire Revolving Fund   125,701    -    125,701  

Total Governmental Funds   $ 132,779  $ 122,704 $ 255,483 
 

 

In relation to the Electric, Sewer and Water Funds, the receivables are based on the electrical, 

sewer and water services provided by the village. The Village has established an allowance for 

doubtful accounts in the amount of $6,373 to aid in disposition of old receivables not collected. 

The allowance is recorded in the Electric Fund. The customer receivable for the Electric Fund is 

$215,343 (net of the allowance for doubtful accounts), the receivable for the Sewer Fund is 

$202,834, and the receivable for the Water Fund is $103,187. 

NOTE E--PROPERTY TAXES 

Property Taxes 
 

The Village's 2018 ad valorem tax is levied and collectible on July 1, 2018. It is the Village's policy 

to recognize revenues from the current tax levy in the current year when the proceeds of this levy 

are budgeted and made available for financing of the Village operations. Property taxes are 

recognized when received. The 2018 State taxable valuation of the Village amounted to 

$17,478,481, on which ad valorem taxes levied for all Village purposes are $420,280. There are 

11.2262 mills for general operations and the tax revenue is recognized in the General Fund. 



VILLAGE OF NEWBERRY--LUCE COUNTY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2018 

28 

 

 

 

NOTE F--CAPITAL ASSETS 
 

Capital asset activity of the Village’s governmental activities for the current year was as follows: 

 

 Governmental Activities  

Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated 

Beginning 

  Balance  

Ending 

   Additions  Deductions   Balance  

Land $ 5,773 $ - $ - $ 5,773 

Land Improvements   178,115    -    -    178,115  

Subtotal   183,888    -    -    183,888  

Capital Assests Being Depreciated 
  

Buildings and Building Improvements 857,787 11,900 - 869,687 

Infrastructure 173,360 - - 173,360 

Equipment 1,833,076 88,852 - 1,921,928 

Vehicles   284,633    -    -    284,633  

Total 3,148,856 100,752 - 3,249,608 

Less Accumulated Depreciation 
  

Buildings and Building Improvements 734,781 8,788 - 743,569 

Infrastructure 78,012 8,668 - 86,680 

Equipment 1,753,672 50,577 - 1,804,249 

Vehicles   244,856    10,412   -    255,268  

Total   2,811,321    78,445   -   2,889,766  

Net Capital Assets Being Depreciated   337,535    22,307   -    359,842  

Governmental Activities Capital Total 
  

Capital Assets--Net of Depreciation   $ 521,423  $  22,307 $ - $ 543,730 
 

 
 
The depreciation expense was $78,445 during the year as follows: 

Governmental Activities  

General Government $ 9,154 

Public Safety 32,687 

Public Works 32,837 

Recreation and Culture   3,767  

Total Governmental Activities   $ 78,445  



VILLAGE OF NEWBERRY--LUCE COUNTY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2018 

29 

 

 

 

NOTE F--CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued) 
 

Capital asset activity of the Village’s business-type activities for the current year was as follows: 
 

 
 Business-Type Activities 

Beginning 

Balance 

 Ending 

Additions Deductions Balance 
 

Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated 

Land 

 

$ 15,204 

 
  

 

$ - $ - $ 15,204 

Sewer Construction in Progress 4,518,994  139,821 4,658,815 

Water Construction in Progress   6,226,219   - 6,226,219 - 

Subtotal   10,760,417  
 

  

139,821 6,226,219 4,674,019 

Capital Assests Being Depreciated 

Buildings and Improvements 

 

221,320 

 
  

 

- - 221,320 

Electric System 5,094,575  - - 5,094,575 

Sewer Distribution System 2,608,299  - - 2,608,299 

Water Distribution System 5,526,391  6,226,219 - 11,752,610 

Infrastructure 85,526  - - 85,526 

Equipment and Vehicles   874,820   13,863.00 - 888,683 

Total 14,410,931 
 

  

6,240,082 - 20,651,013 

Less Accumulated Depreciation 

Buildings and Improvements 

 
201,340 

  
1,080 - 202,420 

Electric System 3,174,064  54,164 - 3,228,228 

Sewer Distribution System 1,878,325  53,956 - 1,932,281 

Water Distribution System 2,011,283  294,835 - 2,306,118 

Infrastructure 63,543  1,999 - 65,542 

Equipment and Vehicles   610,450   39,338 - 649,788 

Total   7,939,005  
 

  

445,372 - 8,384,377 

Net Capital Assets Being Depreciated   6,471,926  
 

  

5,794,710 - 12,266,636 

Business-Type Activities Total 

Capital Assets--Net of Depreciation 

 

  $ 17,232,343  

 
  

 

$ 5,934,531 $ 6,226,219 $ 16,940,655 

The depreciation expense was $445,372 during the year as follows: 

Business-Type Activities 

Electric $ 80,661 

Sewer 61,458 

Water   303,253  

 

Total Business-Type Activities  $ 445,372  



VILLAGE OF NEWBERRY--LUCE COUNTY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2018 

30 

 

 

 

NOTE G--INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES/TRANSFERS 

The inter-fund receivables and payables noted on Exhibit C and Exhibit E for the Village are as 

follows: 

  Due to Other Funds  

 
 

 
 Due from Other Funds  

 
   General  

Non Major 

 Governmental 

 
  Electric  

 
    Sewer  

 
     Water  

 
  Total  

General Fund $ - $ 272,999 $ 13,451 $ 383,602 $ 122,172 $ 792,224 

Non-Major Governmental 388,901 15,517 - - 1,914 406,332 

Electric - 51,435 - - - 51,435 

Sewer   -    29    -    -    -    29  

 

Total 
 

  $ 388,901  
 

$ 339,980 
 

$ 13,451 
 

$ 383,602 
 

$ 124,086 
 

$ 1,250,020 
 

 

These balances resulted from the time lag between the dates that (1) inter-fund goods and services 

are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the accounting 

system, and (3) payments between funds are made. 

 

The balance due to the General Fund from the Sewer Fund at December 31, 2018, in the amount 

of $383,602 is not expected to be repaid within one year. 

 

NOTE H--LONG-TERM DEBT 
 

The Village issues bonds to provide for the acquisition and construction of major capital 

improvements. General obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and credit 

of the Village. Electric, Sewer and Water System Revenue bonds involve a pledge of specific 

income derived from the acquired or constructed assets to pay debt service. 

 

The individual long-term debt of the Village and the changes therein, may be summarized as 

follows: 
 

Governmental Activities  

Beginning Ending 

Balance Balance Due Within 

 01/01/2018 (Reductions) Additions 12/31/2018 One Year 
     

 

 
 

Vested Employee Benefits Payable   $ 4,828   $ (49,051)  $ 48,224  $ 4,001  $ 4,001 

 
Total Governmental Activities 

 
  $ 4,828  

  
$ (49,051) 

  
$ 48,224 

  
4,001 

  
$ 4,001 



VILLAGE OF NEWBERRY--LUCE COUNTY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2018 

31 

 

 

 

NOTE H--LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 

 
 Business-Type Activities  Beginning 

Balance 

 Ending 

Balance 

 
Due Within 

    01/01/2018   (Reductions)  Additions     12/31/2018     One Year  

2002 Limited Tax General Obligation Bonds 

maturing serially to 2022 in annual amounts 

ranging from $25,000 to $65,000 bearing 

interest from 4.35% to 5.10% 

 

 

 
 

$ 305,000 

 

 

 
 

$ (55,000) $ - 

 

 

 
 

$ 250,000 

 

 

 
 

$ 60,000 

2003 Electric System Revenue Bonds, maturing 

serially to 2023 in annual amounts ranging from 

$30,000 to $70,000, bearing interest ranging 

from 2.0% to 5.125% 

 

 

 
 

380,000 

 

 

 
 

(55,000) - 

 

 

 
 

325,000 

 

 

 
 

60,000 

2005 Water Supply System Revenue Bonds 

maturing serially to 2045 in annual amounts 

ranging from $20,000 to $123,000 bearing 

interest of 4.125% 

 

 

 
 

1,984,000 

 

 

 
 

(35,000) - 

 

 

 
 

1,949,000 

 

 

 
 

37,000 

2005 Electric System Revenue Bonds 

maturing serially to 2020 in annual amounts 

ranging from $50,000 to $90,000 bearing 

interest ranging from 3.0% to 4.5% 

 

 

 
 

255,000 

 

 

 
 

(80,000) - 

 

 

 
 

175,000 

 

 

 
 

85,000 

2009 Water Supply System Revenue Bonds 

maturing serially to 2048 in annual amounts 

ranging from $3,000 to $16,000 bearing 

interest of 4.125% 

 

 

 
 

268,000 

 

 

 
 

(4,000) - 

 

 

 
 

264,000 

 

 

 
 

5,000 

2014 Water Supply System Revenue Bond, 

Series 2014 

 

5,954,000 

 

(107,000) - 

 

5,847,000 

 

110,000 

2014 Sanitary Sewer System Revenue Bond, 

Series 2014 

 

3,340,685 

 

(186,624) 149,120 

 

3,303,181 

 

160,000 

Vested Employee Benefits Payable   58,812    (76,623)   43,054    25,243    16,800  

Total Business-Type Activities   $ 12,545,497  $  (599,247) $192,174 $ 12,138,424 $ 533,800 



VILLAGE OF NEWBERRY--LUCE COUNTY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2018 

32 

 

 

 

NOTE H--LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 
 

Annual Principal and Interest Requirements 
 

The annual requirements to pay the principal and interest on the Village’s long-term debt 

obligations excluding vested employee benefits outstanding at December 31, 2018, are as follows: 

 
Business-Type Activities 

 

 
  Year  Principal Interest Total 

    

 
2019 $ 517,000  $ 335,073  $ 852,073 

2020 531,000  317,210  848,210 

2021 460,000  298,780  758,780 

2022 474,000  283,645  757,645 

2023 418,000  267,943  685,943 

2024-2028 1,879,000  1,180,609  3,059,609 

2029-2033 2,147,000  919,844  3,066,844 

2034-2038 1,655,181  640,127  2,295,308 

2039-2043 1,444,000  435,423  1,879,423 

2044-2048 1,281,000  225,523  1,506,523 

2049-2053 1,076,000  94,095  1,170,095 

2054-2057   231,000   4,909  235,909 

 
Total 

 
  $ 12,113,181  

  
$ 5,003,181 

  
$ 17,116,362 



VILLAGE OF NEWBERRY--LUCE COUNTY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2018 

33 

 

 

 

NOTE H--LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 
 

The annual electric, sewer and water fund principal and interest required to maturity for the bonds 

payable outstanding is as follows: 

 

2002 Electric System Capital Improvement Bonds 
 

Date of Issue: August 1, 2002 

Amount: $885,000 

Purpose: Electrical System 

 
Annual 

Interest 

  Rate  

 
Date of 

     Maturity  

 
Maturity 

  November 1  

 
Interest 

    Payments  

Total 

Annual 

Requirements 

5.10% 2019 $ 60,000 $ 12,750 $ 72,750 
 2020 60,000 9,690 69,690 
 2021 65,000 6,630 71,630 

 2022   65,000    3,315    68,315  

  
   $ 250,000  $ 32,385 $ 282,385 

 

 

 

Interest is payable semi-annually at the rate indicated on May 1 and November 1. 

2003 Electric System Revenue Bonds 

Date of Issue: September 30, 2003 

Amount: $965,000 

Purpose: Electrical System 

 
Annual 

Interest 

  Rate  

 
Date of 

     Maturity  

 
Maturity 

  November 1  

 
Interest 

    Payments  

Total 

Annual 

Requirements 

5.00% 2019 $ 60,000 $ 16,425 $ 76,425 
 2020 60,000 13,425 73,425 
 2021 65,000 10,425 75,425 

5.125% 2022 70,000 7,175 77,175 

 2023   70,000    3,588    73,588  

  
  $ 325,000  $ 51,038 $ 376,038 



VILLAGE OF NEWBERRY--LUCE COUNTY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2018 

34 

 

 

 

NOTE H--LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 
 

2005 Electric System Revenue Bonds 
 

Date of Issue: October 1, 2005 

Amount: $985,000 

Purpose: Electrical System 

 
Annual 

Interest 

  Rate  

 
Date of 

     Maturity  

 
Maturity 

  November 1  

 
Interest 

    Payments  

Total 

Annual 

Requirements 

4.45% 2019 $ 85,000 $ 7,833 $ 92,833 

4.50% 2020   90,000    4,050    94,050  

  
   $ 175,000  $ 11,883 $ 186,883 

 

 

 

 

2005 Water Supply System Revenue Bonds 
 

Date of Issue: September 30, 2005 

Amount: $2,300,000 

Purpose: Water Supply System 

 
Annual 

Interest 

  Rate  

 
Date of 

  Maturity  

 
Maturity 

  September 1  

 
Interest 

    Payments  

Total 

Annual 

Requirements 

4.125% 2019 $ 37,000 $ 80,396 $ 117,396 

 2020 39,000 78,870 117,870 

 2021 41,000 77,261 118,261 

 2022 42,000 75,570 117,570 

 2023 44,000 73,838 117,838 

 2024-2028 257,000 339,859 596,859 

 2029-2033 325,000 281,531 606,531 

 2034-2038 407,000 208,024 615,024 

 2039-2043 516,000 115,541 631,541 

 2044-2047   241,000    15,015    256,015  

  
  $1,949,000  $1,345,905 $3,294,905 



VILLAGE OF NEWBERRY--LUCE COUNTY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2018 

35 

 

 

 

NOTE H--LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 
 

2009 Water Supply System Revenue Bonds 
 

Date of Issue: March 20, 2009 

Amount: $300,000 

Purpose: Water Supply System 

 
Annual 

Interest 

  Rate  

 
Date of 

  Maturity  

 
Maturity 

  September 1  

 
Interest 

    Payments  

Total 

Annual 

 Requirements 

4.125% 2019 $ 5,000 $ 10,890 $ 15,890 

 2020 5,000 10,684 15,684 

 2021 5,000 10,477 15,477 

 2022 5,000 10,271 15,271 

 2023 5,000 10,065 15,065 

 2024-2028 31,000 46,819 77,819 

 2029-2033 37,000 39,971 76,971 

 2034-2038 45,000 31,721 76,721 

 2039-2043 56,000 21,574 77,574 

 2044-2048   70,000    8,951    78,951  

  $ 264,000  $ 201,423 $ 465,423 



VILLAGE OF NEWBERRY--LUCE COUNTY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2018 

36 

 

 

 

NOTE H--LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 

2014 Water Supply System Revenue Bonds 

Date of Issue: November 21, 2014 

Amount: $6,263,000 

Purpose: Water Supply System 

Annual 

Interest 

  Rate  

  

Date of 

Maturity 

  

Maturity 

November 1 

  

Interest 

Payments 

 Total 

Annual 

Requirements 

2.125% 
 

2019 
 

$ 110,000 
 

$ 124,249 
 

$ 234,249 

  2020  112,000  121,911  233,911 

  2021  114,000  119,531  233,531 

  2022  117,000  117,109  234,109 

  2023  119,000  114,623  233,623 

  2024-2028  636,000  534,034  1,170,034 

  2029-2033  705,000  463,569  1,168,569 

  2034-2038  785,000  385,348  1,170,348 

  2039-2043  872,000  298,308  1,170,308 

  2044-2048  970,000  201,556  1,171,556 

  2049-2053  1,076,000  94,095  1,170,095 

  2054-2057    231,000   4,909  235,909 

    
  $ 5,847,000  

 
$ 2,579,242 

 
$ 8,426,242 

 
2014 Sewer System Revenue Bonds 

Date of Issue: September 17, 2014 

Amount: $4,485,000 

Purpose: Sewage Disposal System 

Annual 

Interest 

  Rate  

 
Date of 

  Maturity  

 
Maturity 

    October 1  

 
Interest 

    Payments  

Total 

Annual 

 Requirements 

2.5% 2019 $ 160,000 $ 82,530 $ 242,530 

 2020 165,000 78,580 243,580 

 2021 170,000 74,455 244,455 

 2022 175,000 70,205 245,205 

 2023 180,000 65,830 245,830 

 2024-2028 955,000 259,898 1,214,898 

 2029-2033 1,080,000 134,773 1,214,773 

 2034-2037   418,181    15,034    433,215  
 

  $ 3,303,181  $ 781,305 $ 4,084,486 
   



VILLAGE OF NEWBERRY--LUCE COUNTY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2018 

37 

 

 

 

NOTE I--COMPENSATED ABSENCES 
 

Vested Employee Benefits Payable 
 

The Village's employment policies provide for vacation benefits to be earned in varying amounts 

depending on the employee's years of service. Union employees may not accumulate vacation 

hours in excess of 280 hours. Union employees who terminate employment for any reason shall 

have their unused accumulated vacation paid out up to a maximum of 160 hours. Most non-union 

employees are eligible for vacation pay out upon termination up to 40 hours. 

 

The Village's employment policies provide for sick leave benefits to be earned in varying amounts 

depending on the employee’s hours worked and union agreements. Sick leave is earned by all 

Village employees at the rate of 12 days annually with each day being made available as of the 

last day of the month. However, only the union employees hired prior to July 1, 1998 will receive 

any unused balances upon separation of employment from the Village. 

 

As of December 31, 2018, the Village has an accrued vested employee benefits payable of $4,001 

recorded in the governmental activities and $25,243 in the business-type activities. 

 

NOTE J—DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN 
 

The Village offers all employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with the 

Internal Revenue Code (IRC), Section 457. The assets of the plan are held in a trust, custodial 

account or annuity contract described in IRC Section 457(g) for the exclusive benefit of the 

participants (employees) and their beneficiaries. The custodial account is held by the custodian for 

the exclusive benefit of the participants and beneficiaries of these Section 457 plans and the assets 

may not be diverted to any other use. The administrator (Nationwide Retirement Solutions) is an 

agent of the employer. The administrator provides direction to the custodian, from time to time, 

regarding the investment of the funds held in the account, transfer of assets to or from the account, 

and all other matters. In accordance with the provisions of GASB Statement No. 32, plan balances 

and activities are not reflected in the Village's financial statements. 

 

NOTE K--EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM 
 

General Information about the Pension Plan 
 

Plan Description: The Village’s defined benefit pension plan provides certain retirement, 

disability and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. The Village participates in the 

Municipal Employees Retirement System (MERS) of Michigan. MERS is an agent multiple- 

employer, statewide public employee pension plan established by the Michigan Legislature under 

Public Act 135 of 1945 and administered by a nine member Retirement Board. MERS issues a 

publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary 

information. This report may be obtained by accessing the MERS website at 

www.mersofmich.com. 

http://www.mersofmich.com/


VILLAGE OF NEWBERRY--LUCE COUNTY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2018 

38 

 

 

 

NOTE K--EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM (Continued) 

 
Benefits Provided: 

 
Table 2 

 

 
2017 Valuation 

 

 
2017 Valuation 

 
01 - General 02 - Police/Fire 

 Closed to new hires, Closed to new hires, 

 
Benefit Multiplier: 

 Linked to Division HA  

2.00% Multiplier (No max) 

 Linked to Division HA  

2.25% Multiplier (80% max) 

Normal Retirement Age 60 60 

Vesting: 10 years 10 years 

Early Retirement (Unreduced): 55/25 55/25 

Early Retirement (Reduced): 50/25 50/25 

 55/15 55/15 

Final Average Compensation: 5 years 3 years 

Employee Contributions: 0% 0% 

Act 88: Yes (Adopted 11/20/2017) Yes (Adopted 11/20/2017) 

 10 - Sprvsrs: Closed to new 11 - Spvs LT & Pwr: Closed to new 

  hires, linked to Division HA   hires, linked to Division HB  

Benefit Multiplier: 2.50% Multiplier (80% max) 2.50% Multiplier (80% max) 

Normal Retirement Age 60 60 

Vesting: 10 years 10 years 

Early Retirement (Unreduced): 55/25 55/25 

Early Retirement (Reduced): 50/25 50/25 

 55/15 55/15 

Final Average Compensation: 5 years 5 years 

Employee Contributions: 0% 0% 

Act 88: Yes (Adopted 11/20/2017) Yes (Adopted 11/20/2017) 

 HA - All EE's eligible for pension HB - All eligible P&P after 1/1/15 

 after 1/1/15: Open Division, Open Division, 

  linked to Division 01, 02, 10   linked to Division 11, 12  

Benefit Multiplier: Hybrid Plan - 1.25% Multiplier Hybrid Plan - 1.25% Multiplier 

Normal Retirement Age 60 60 

Vesting: 6 years 6 years 

Final Average Compensation: 3 years 3 years 

Employee Contributions 0% 0% 

Act 88: Yes (Adopted 11/20/2017) Yes (Adopted 11/20/2017) 



VILLAGE OF NEWBERRY--LUCE COUNTY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2018 

39 

 

 

 

NOTE K--EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM (Continued) 
 

Table 2 (Continued) 2017 Valuation 

 
12 - Genrl LT&PWR 

Closed to new hires, 

 Linked to Division HB  

Benefit Multiplier: 2.00% Multiplier (No max) 

Normal Retirement Age 60 

Vesting: 10 years 

Early Retirement (Unreduced): 55/25 

Early Retirement (Reduced): 50/25 

55/15 

Final Average Compensation: 5 years 

Employee Contributions: 0% 

Act 88: Yes (Adopted 11/20/2017) 
 

Employees covered by benefit terms: At the December 31, 2017 valuation date, the following 

employees were covered by the benefit terms: 

 
Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 28 

Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 4 

Active employees   19 

Tital employees covered by MERS Plan   51 
 

 

Contributions: The Village is required to contribute amounts at least equal to the actuarially 

determined rate, as established by the MERS Retirement Board. The actuarially determined rate is 

the estimated amount necessary to finance the cost of benefits earned by employees during the 

year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The employer may 

establish contribution rates to be paid by its covered employees. 

 

For the year ended December 31, 2017, the Village’s contribution rate was $4,649 for general, $41 

for police and fire, $5,479 for Supervisors, $770 for Light & Power Supervisors, $751 for General 

Light and Power employees, 7.41% for administration eligible after January 1, 2015 and 6.48% 

for light and power employees eligible after January 1, 2015. 

 

Net Pension Liability 
 

The Village’s Net Pension Liability was measured as of December 31, 2017, and the total pension 

liability used to calculate the Net Pension Liability was determined by an annual actuarial 

valuation performed as of that date. 



VILLAGE OF NEWBERRY--LUCE COUNTY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2018 

40 

 

 

 

NOTE K--EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM (Continued) 
 

Actuarial assumptions: The total pension liability in the December 31, 2017 annual actuarial 

valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods 

included in the measurement: 

 

Inflation 2.5% 

Salary Increases 3.75% in the long-term 

Investment Rate of Return 7.75%, net of investment expense, including inflation 

 

Although no specific price inflation assumptions are needed for the valuation, the 2.5% long- 

term wage inflation assumption would be consistent with a price inflation of 3% - 4%. 

 

Mortality rates used were based on the RP-2014 Group Annuity Mortality Table of a 50% Male 

and 50% Female blend. 

 

The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2017 valuation were based on the results of 

the most recent actuarial experience study of 2015. 

 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a model 

method in which the best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, 

net of investment and administrative expenses and inflation) are developed for each major asset 

class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting 

the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding 

expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for 

each major asset class are summarized in the following table: 

 
 

 

 
  Asset Class  

 

 
Target 

  Allocation  

Long-Term 

Expected 

Real Rate of 

  Return  

Global Equity 55.5% 3.41% 

Global Fixed Income 18.5% 0.23% 

Real Assets 13.5% 0.97% 

Diversifying Strategies 12.5% 0.63% 

Discount rate: The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability is 8.00%. The 

projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumes that employer and employee 

contributions will be made at the rates agreed upon for employees and the actuarially determined 

rates for employers. Based on these assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was 

projected to be available to pay all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive 

employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was 

applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 



VILLAGE OF NEWBERRY--LUCE COUNTY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2018 

41 

 

 

 

NOTE K--EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM (Continued) 
 

Increase (Decrease) 
 

 
 Total 

Pension 

Liability 

Plan 

Fiduciary 

Net Position 

 

Net Pension 

Liability 

 
Balances as of 

  (a)    (b)    (a)-(b)  

December 31, 2017 $ 4,646,070 $ 3,014,078 $ 1,631,992 

Changes for the year 

Service Cost 

 

51,841 

  

51,841 

Interest on total pension liability 

Changes in benefits 

Difference between expected and 

actual experience 

Change  in assumptions 

Employer  contributions 

359,296 

- 

 
(43,893) 

- 

- 

 

 

 

 

 

163,110 

359,296 

- 

 
(43,893) 

- 

(163,110) 

Employee contributions - - - 

Net investment income - (111,357) 111,357 

Benefit payments, including 

exployee refunds 

 
(361,584) 

 
(361,584) 

 
- 

Administrative expense  (5,703) 5,703 

Other changes   2,260    -    2,260  

Net changes   7,920    (315,534)   323,454  

Balances as of 

December 31, 2018 

 
  4,653,990  

 
2,698,544 

 
1,955,446 

 

 

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to changes in the discount rate: The following presents the 

Net Pension Liability of the employer, calculated using the discount rate of 8.00%, as well as what 

the employer’s Net Pension Liability would be using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point 

lower (7.00%) or 1% higher (9.00%) than the current rate. 

Current 
 

 1% Decrease  Discount Rate  1% Increase 

  (7%)   (8%)  (9%) 

Net Pension Liability at December 31, 2018 

Change in Net Pension Liability (NPL) 

 

 

 

$ 417,616 

  
$ 1,955,446 

  

 

 

$ (361,308) 



VILLAGE OF NEWBERRY--LUCE COUNTY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2018 

42 

 

 

 

NOTE K--EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM (Continued) 
 

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 

Related to Pensions 
 

For the year ended December 31, 2018, the Village recognized pension expense of $286,455. The 

Village reported deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions from the following 

sources: 

 
 

 
  Source  

Deferred 

Outflows of 

  Resources  

Deferred 

Inflows of 

  Resources  

Net difference between projected and actual 

earnings on pension plan investments** 

 

$ 208,551 

 

$ - 

Differences in Experience**   -    21,947  

Total   $ 208,551  $ 21,947 

 

*The amount reported as deferred outflows of resources resulting from contributions subsequent 

to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction in the Net Pension Liability for the fiscal 

year ending December 31, 2018. 

 

**Amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions will be 

recognized in the pension expense as follows: 

 
  Year Ended December 31   Amount 

2019  $ 54,466 

2020  23,517 

2021  39,756 

2022  68,863 



VILLAGE OF NEWBERRY--LUCE COUNTY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2018 

43 

 

 

 

NOTE L--OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 

Plan Description: In addition to the pension benefits described in Note K, the Village provides 

postemployment healthcare insurance benefits to specified retired employees and/or their spouse. 

The benefits are provided in accordance with Article 10, Section 1, of the union agreement. 

Benefits Provided: Healthcare benefits are provided upon retirement as follows: For salaried 

employees hired after May 2, 2012 and for Union employees, premiums are paid by the Village 

for the participant for 8 years after retirement and pre-65 reimbursement of deductible up to $3,750 

and premiums are paid by the Village for the spouse for 3 years after retirement and pre-65 

reimbursement of deductible up to $3,750. For salaried employees hired by May 2, 2012, the 

premiums are paid by the Village for the participant for life and pre-65 reimbursement of 

deductible up to $3,750 and premiums are paid by the Village for the spouse until age 70 and pre- 

65 reimbursement of deductible up to $3,750. 

 

Employees covered by benefit terms. At the December 31, 2018, the following employees were 

covered by the benefit terms: 
 

Inactive plan members receiving benefits 14 

Active plan members   3 

Total participants   17 
 

 

Contributions. The Village of Newberry Retiree Health Plan was established and is being funded 

under the authority of the Village. The plan’s funding policy has been that the employer funds the 

plan on a “pay-as-you-go” basis. That is, benefit payments have been made from general operating 

funds. Currently, benefit payments are made from general operating funds. There are no long 

term contracts for contributions to the plan. The plan has no legally required reserves. During the 

year, the Village contributed $159,151 for the benefit. 

Net OPEB Liability. The Village’s net OPEB liability was measured as of December 31, 2018. 

The December 31, 2018 total OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation performed 

as of December 31, 2018. 

Actuarial Assumptions. The total OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of 

December 31, 2018 and the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the 

measurement: 

Inflation Implicit in expected payroll increases 

Salary increases 3.5% 

Investment rate of return N/A; plan is not pre-funded 

20-year Aa Municipal bond rate 3.64% 

Mortality 2010 Public Mortality, headcount weighted, projected with MP-2018, 

annuitant and non-annuitant, sex-distinct Mortality Table 



VILLAGE OF NEWBERRY--LUCE COUNTY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2018 

44 

 

 

 

NOTE L--OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Continued) 

As the plan is not pre-funded, no long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was 

determined. 

Discount Rate. The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 3.64%. Because 

the plan does not have a dedicated OPEB trust, there are not assets projected to be sufficient to 

make projected future benefit payments of current plan members. For projected benefits that are 

covered by projected assets, the long-term expected rate was used to discount the projected 

benefits. From the year that benefit payments were not projected to be covered by the projected 

assets (the “depletion date”), projected benefits were discounted at a discount rate reflecting a 20- 

year AA/Aa tax-exempt municipal bond yield. A single equivalent discount rate that yields the 

same present value of benefits is calculated. This discount rate is used to determine the Total OPEB 

Liability. December 31, 2018 is the first year of compliance with GASB 75, so there is no required 

discount rate change to disclose. 

Changes in Net OPEB Liability 

Increase (Decrease) 
 

Total OPEB  Plan Fiduciary  Net OPEB 

Liability Net Position Liability 

  (a)  (b) (a)-(b) 

Balance as of December 31, 2017 

Changes for the year 

 

$ 1,010,532 $ - 

 

$ 1,010,532 

Service Cost 1,085 - 1,085 

Interest 34,794 - 34,794 

Experience (Gains)/Losses 11,179 - 11,179 

Change  in actuarial assumptions  - -  - 

Contributions to OPEB trust   -    -   - 

Contributions/benefit paid from general operating funds   -   159,151  (159,151) 

Net investment income   -    -   - 

Benefit payments  (159,151)  (159,151)   - 

Administrative expense   -    -   - 

Other changes    -     -    -  

Total changes   (112,093) - (112,093) 

Balance as of December 31, 2018 

 

  $   898,439 $ - 

 

$ 898,439 
   

Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate and healthcare cost trend rates. 

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the Village, as well as what the Village’s net 

OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using trend and discount rates 1% higher and lower 

than base assumptions: 
   1% Decrease Current Discount Rate 1% Increase  

 

Tital OPEB Liability at December 31, 2018 
 

Net OPEB Liability $ 

$ 
 

939,520 

898,439  

 
$ 860,959 



VILLAGE OF NEWBERRY--LUCE COUNTY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2018 

45 

 

 

 

NOTE L--OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Continued) 

Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates. The following 

presents the net OPEB liability of the Village, as well as what the Village’s net OPEB liability 

would be if it were calculated using trend and discount rates 1% higher and lower than base 

assumptions: 
 

 
 

Total OPEB Liability at December 31, 2018 

Net OPEB Liability 

 
1% Decrease 

 

 
$ 862,643 

Health Care 

Trend Rate 1% Increase 
  

$898,439 

$ 936,847 

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related 

to OPEB. For the year ended December 31, 2018, the Village recognized OPEB expense of 

$32,639. At December 31, 2018, the Village reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred 

inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources: 
 

 

 

Source 

Deferred Deferred 

Outflows of Inflows of 

Resources Resources 
   

Experience (Gains) / Losses $ - $ - 

Changes in Assumptions - - 
  

 

Total $ - $ - 

 

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 

OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows: 
 

  Year Ended December 31  Amount  

2019 $ - 

2020 - 

2021 - 

2022 - 

2023 - 

Thereafter - 
 

NOTE M--RISK MANAGEMENT 
 

The Village is exposed to various risks of loss related to property loss, torts, and errors and 

omissions and employee injuries (workers’ compensation). The Village has purchased commercial 

insurance coverage through various policies for general liability, property, vehicle and workers' 

compensation claims. Settled claims relating to the commercial insurance have not exceeded the 

amount of insurance coverage in any of the past three years. 



VILLAGE OF NEWBERRY--LUCE COUNTY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2018 

46 

 

 

 

NOTE N—CAPITAL CREDITS IN COOPERATIVE 
 

In prior years, the Village of Newberry Electric Fund purchased electricity for resale from 

Cloverland Electric Co-op. Due to operating surpluses by the cooperative, the Village of 

Newberry’s Electric Fund receives patronage capital credits. During the current year the Village 

did not receive any capital distributions. As of December 31, 2018, the Village has capital credits 

outstanding of $626,012. This amount is credited to the capital account of the Cooperative for the 

Village of Newberry Electric Fund and has the same status as if it was paid in cash to the Village 

and then the Village furnished the Cooperative with a corresponding amount of capital. 

Distribution of these credits to the Village of Newberry Electric Fund is made at the complete 

discretion of the Cooperative. 

 

NOTE O--RESTATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
 

During the current fiscal year, the Village adopted GASB Statement Number 75, Accounting and 

Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. Due to this implementation, 

the government-wide statements now include a net OPEB liability for unfunded OPEB obligations. 

The statement of net position is restated to record the liability as of January 1, 2018: 

 
 Governmental 

  Activities  

 Business-Type 

  Activities  

 

Beginning Net Position--January 1, 2018 

 

$ 55,385 

  
$ 5,772,547 

 

Add Net OPEB Liability--January 1, 2018 
 

14,408 
  

406,842 

 

Less net OPEB liability recorded 

for the implementation of GASB 75 

 

 
  (40,421)  

  

 
(970,110) 

 
Restated Beginning Net Position--January 1, 2018 

 
  $ 29,372  

  
$ 5,209,279 



VILLAGE OF NEWBERRY--LUCE COUNTY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2018 

47 

 

 

 

NOTE P--UPCOMING REPORTING CHANGES 
 

In January 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, which establishes 

criteria for identifying fiduciary activities of governments and improves guidance for accounting 

and financial reporting related to how these activities should be reported. The Village is currently 

evaluating the impact this standard will have on the financial statements when adopted. The 

provisions of this statement are effective for the Village's financial statements for the fiscal year 

ending 2020-2021. 

In June 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases, which improves accounting and 

financial reporting for leases by governments. This statement requires recognition of certain lease 

assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as operating leases and recognized 

as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the contract. 

It establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the foundational principle that leases 

are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. Under this statement, a lessee is required to 

recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to 

recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources. The Village is currently evaluating 

the impact this standard will have on the financial statements when adopted. The provisions of this 

statement are effective for the Village’s financial statements for the fiscal year ending 2020-2021. 

 

In April 2018, the GASB issued Statements No. 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, including 

Direct Borrowings and Direct Placements. This Statement will improve financial reporting by 

providing users of financial statements with essential information that currently is not consistently 

provided. In addition, information about resources to liquidate debt and the risks associated with 

changes un terms associated with debt will be disclosed. As a result, users will have better 

information to understand the effects of debt on a government’s future resource flows. The Village 

is currently evaluating the impact this standard will have on the financial statements when adopted 

during the 2019-2020 fiscal year. 



48 

 

 

VILLAGE OF NEWBERRY--LUCE COUNTY 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

GENERAL FUND 

  EXHIBIT H 

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2018    

 

 

 

 

 

Revenues 

 
     BUDGETED AMOUNTS  

Final 

Original Amended 

  Budget   Budget  

 

 

 

 

  Actual  

 
Variance With 

Final Budget 

Positive 

     (Negative)  

Taxes $ 260,760 $ 272,790 $ 290,488 $ 17,698 

Licenses and Permits 100 13,651 590 (13,061) 

State Grants 210,900 223,951 302,475 78,524 

Charge for Services 105,400 77,405 67,499 (9,906) 

Interest and Rentals 800 1,916 3,568 1,652 

Other Revenue   337,400  428,173    426,858    (1,315) 

Total Revenues   915,360  1,017,886    1,091,478    73,592  

Expenditures 

General Government 

 
253,650 493,464 

 
480,858 

 
12,606 

Public Safety 4,820 44,136 44,136 - 

Public Works 217,450 311,766 308,388 3,378 

Other 2,050 1,604 1,604 - 

Capital Outlay   5,900  20,525    85,116    (64,591) 

Total Expenditures   483,870  871,495    920,102    (48,607) 

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures   431,490  146,391    171,376    24,985  

Fund Balance--January 1, 2018   492,831  492,831    492,831    -  

Fund Balance--December 31, 2018   $ 924,321       $ 639,222    $ 664,207    $ 24,985  
 



49 

 

 

VILLAGE OF NEWBERRY--LUCE COUNTY 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE VILLAGE'S 

NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATION RATIOS* 

      SCHEDULE 1 

For the Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2018        

 
Total Pension Liability 

  2018     2017     2016     2015  

Service Cost $ 51,841  $ 50,379  $ 56,321  $ 57,323 

Difference between expected and actual experience (43,893)  (6,626)  (55,600)  (58,770) 

Changes in assumptions -  -  203,073  196,558 

Interest 359,296  355,645  347,836  341,332 

Benefit payments including employee refunds (361,584)  (322,580)  (308,458)  (294,636) 

Other Changes   2,260     (12,408)    (155,433)    (3,924) 

Net Change in Total Pension Liability 7,920  64,410  87,739  237,883 

Total Pension Liability--Beginning   4,646,070     4,581,660     4,493,921     4,256,038  

Total Pension Liability--Ending   $ 4,653,990     $ 4,646,070     $ 4,581,660     $ 4,493,921  

 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

Contributions--employer 

 

 
$ 163,110 

  

 
$ 160,210 

  

 
$ 243,380 

  

 
$ 139,838 

Contributions--employees 

Net Investment Income 

- 

(111,357) 

 - 

364,244 

 - 

292,473 

 - 

(40,303) 

Benefit payments including employee refunds (361,584)  (322,580)  (308,458)  (294,636) 

Administrative expense (5,703)  (5,780)  (5,778)  (5,987) 

Other Changes   -     -     1     (1) 

Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position (315,534) 
 

196,094 
 

221,618 
 

(201,089) 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position--Beginning   3,014,078  
 

  2,817,984  
 

  2,596,366  
 

  2,797,455  

Plan Fiduciary Net Position--Ending   $ 2,698,544  
 

  $ 3,014,078  
 

  $ 2,817,984  
 

  $ 2,596,366  

 
Employer Net Pension Liability 

 
  $ 1,955,446  

  
  $ 1,631,992  

  
  $ 1,763,676  

  
  $ 1,897,555  

 
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a percentage of the 

Total Pension Liability 

 

 
58% 

  

 
65% 

  

 
62% 

  

 
58% 

Covered Employee Payroll $ 703,254 
 

$ 647,812 
 

$ 675,376 
 

$ 675,376 

Employer's Net Pension Liability as a percentage 

of covered employee payroll 

 

278% 

  

252% 

  

261% 

  

281% 

Notes to schedule: 

Above dates are based on measurement date, 

which may not necessarily tie to the fiscal year. 

       

 

*10-year schedule as required by GASB Statement No. 68 will be built prospectively 

upon implementation of the standard. 



 

 

VILLAGE OF NEWBERRY--LUCE COUNTY 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

SCHEDULE OF VILLAGE'S CONTRIBUTIONS 

        SCHEDULE 2 

For the Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2018          

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 

 
Actuarial Determined Contributions* $ 163,107 

Contributions in Relation to the actuarially 

determined contribution 163,107 

 
$ 160,211 

 
160,211 

 
$ 153,379 

 
243,379 

 
$ 139,838 

 
139,838 

 
$ 104,488 

 
104,488 

 
$  102,254 

 
274,254 

 
$ 105,944 

 
105,944 

 
$ 105,451 

 
105,451 

 
$ 112,339 

 
112,339 

 
$   91,335 $   94,806 

 
91,335 94,806 

Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - $ - $ (90,000) $ - $ - $ (172,000) $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - 

Covered Employee Payroll $ 703,254 $ 703,254 $ 647,812 $ 675,376 $ 537,871 $ 477,186 $ 516,904 $ 540,440 $ 564,470 $ 555,767 $ 490,762 

Contributions as a percentage of covered 

employee payroll 23% 
 

23% 
 

38% 
 

21% 
 

19% 
 

57% 
 

20% 
 

20% 
 

20% 
 

16% 
 

19% 
 

Notes to Schedule: 
 

Actuarial valuation information relative to the determination of contributions: 
 

Valuation Date Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of December 31, each year which is prior to 

the beginning of the fiscal year in which the contributions are required 

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates: 
 

Actuarial cost method Entry Age 

Amortization method Level percentage of payroll, open 

Remaining amortization period 25 years 

Asset valuation method 10 year smoothed 

Inflation 3 to 4% 

Salary Increases 3.75%, including inflation 

Investment rate of return 7.75% 

Retirement age Experienced-based tables of rates that are specific to the type of eligibility condition 

Mortality 50% Female / 50% Male RP-2014 Group 

Annuity Mortality Table 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

50 



VILLAGE OF NEWBERRY SCHEDULE 3 

51 

 

 

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE VILLAGE'S 

NET OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS* 

For the Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2018 

 

 

Total OPEB Liability 

Service Cost 

2018 
 

 
$ 1,085 

Interest 34,794 

Difference Between Expected and Actual Experience 11,179 

Benefit payments including employee refunds (159,151) 
 

Net Change in Total OPEB Liability (112,093) 
 

Total OPEB Liability beginning 1,010,532 
 

Total OPEB Liability ending $ 898,439 
 

 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

Contributions-employer 

 

$ 159,151 

Net Investment income - 

Benefit payments including employee refunds (159,151) 

Administrative expense - 
 

Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position - 
 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position beginning - 
 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position ending $ - 
 

 

Employer Net OPEB Liability $ 898,439 
 

 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a percentage of the 

Total OPEB Liability 0% 

 

Covered Employee Payroll $ 156,362 

 

Employer's Net OPEB Liability as a percentage 

of covered employee payroll 575% 

 
Notes to schedule: 

There were no benefit changes or changes in assumptions or methods affecting the 2018 valuation. 

Above dates are based on measurement date, which may not necessarily tie to the fiscal year. 

*10-year schedule as required by GASB Statement No. 75 will be built prospectively 

upon implementation of the standard. 



52 

VILLAGE OF NEWBERRY SCHEDULE 4 
 

 

 

SCHEDULE OF VILLAGES'S CONTRIBUTIONS--OPEB 

For the Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2018 

 

 
2018 

 
Actuarial Determined Contributions 

 
$ 153,536 

Contributions in relation to the actuarially 

determined contribution 

 
144,732 

Contribution deficiency (excess) $ 8,804 

 
Covered Employee Payroll 

 
$ 156,362 

Contributions as a percentage of covered 

employee payroll 

 
 

93% 

 

Notes to Schedule 

10 year requirement for disclosure The ten year requirement of information will be built prospectively. 

 
Actuarial valuation information relative to the determination of contributions: 

Valuation date December 31, 2018 

Measurement Date December 31, 2018 

 
Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates: 

Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal (level of percentage of compensation) 

Amortization method Level Percent, closed 

Discount Rate 3.64% 

Rationale - 20 year Aa Municipal bond rate for December 

20-year Aa Municipal Bond Rate 3.64% - Current bond rate 

Inflation 2.5% 

Payroll inflation 3.5% 

Return on plan assets N/A; Plan is not prefunded 

Mortality Public mortality study PUG 2010 and MP-2018 mortality improvement 



53 

 

 

VILLAGE OF NEWBERRY--LUCE COUNTY 

SCHEDULE OF BOND COVENANT CASH RESERVES 

 SCHEDULE 5 

December 31, 2018   

  
Required 

  Balance  

 
Actual 

  Balance  

 
Water Fund - Restricted Cash 

Operation and Maintenance Funds--2014 

 
 

$ 155,038 

 
 

- 

Bond and Interest Redemption 

Series 2005 Revenue Bond 

 
39,132 

 
33,310 

Series 2009 Revenue Bond 5,296 2,180 

Series 2014 Revenue Bond - - 

 
Bond Reserves 

  

Series 2005 Revenue Bond 130,000 130,000 

Series 2009 Revenue Bond 16,000 12,800 

Series 2014 Revenue Bond 93,600 46,800 

 
Repair, Replacement and Improvement Accounts 

  

Series 2005 Revenue Bond 230,685  175,195 

Series 2014 Revenue Bond   90,192     45,095  

 
  $ 759,943  

 
  445,380  

 

Sewer Fund - Restricted Cash 

Operation and Maintenance Funds -- 2014 

 
 

$ 85,403 

  
 

- 

Bond and Interest Redemption 

Series 2014 Revenue Bond 

 
60,620 

  
- 

 

Bond Reserves 

Series 2014 Revenue Bond 68,903 - 

 
Repair, Replacement and Improvement Accounts 

Series 2014 Revenue Bond   -   -  
 

  $ 214,926   -  



54 

 

 

VILLAGE OF NEWBERRY--LUCE COUNTY EXHIBIT I 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

December 31, 2018 

  Special Revenue Funds   Capital Project Funds  

 
Major Local Fire Fire Fire Atlas 

  Streets   Streets   Capital  Revolving  Millage    TORC    Park    Total  

ASSETS         

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 216 $ 1 $ 776 $ 120,599 $ 47,447 $ 12,124 $ 65,356 $ 246,519 

Taxes Receivable - 10,735 - - 4,781 - - 15,516 

Accounts Receivable--Other - - - 125,701 - - - 125,701 

Due from State 27,637 11,134 - - - - - 38,771 

Due from Other Funds   211,862  85,375  28,150  34,319     46,626     -     -     406,332  

Total Assets   $ 239,715      $ 107,245      $ 28,926      $ 280,619  
 

  $ 98,854  
 

  $ 12,124  
 

  $ 65,356  
 

  $ 832,839  

 

LIABILITIES 

   

        

 

Accounts Payable $ 507 $ 811 $ 

Due to State 2,915 1,167 

Due to Other Funds   37,381  11,384  -  169,294 12,867 37,826 71,228 339,980  

 
Total Liabilities   40,803  13,362  -  183,442  12,867  37,826  71,403  359,703  

 
FUND BALANCES 

 

Restricted - 

Streets 198,912 93,883 - - - - - 292,795 

Fire Capital Purchases - - 28,926 - - - - 28,926 

Fire Operations - - - 97,177 85,987 - - 183,164 

Unassigned   -    -    -    -    -    (25,702)   (6,047)   (31,749) 

Total Fund Balances   198,912    93,883    28,926    97,177    85,987    (25,702)   (6,047)   473,136  

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of 

Resources and Fund Balance 

 
  $ 239,715  

 
  $ 107,245  

 
  $ 28,926  

 
  $ 280,619  

 
  $ 98,854  

 
  $ 12,124       $ 65,356       $ 832,839  

- $ 14,148 $ - $ - $ 175 $ 15,641 

- - - - - 4,082 

 



55 

 

 

VILLAGE OF NEWBERRY--LUCE COUNTY EXHIBIT J 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2018 

 
 

  Special Revenue Funds   Capital Project Funds  
 

 

 
Revenues 

Major Local Fire Fire Fire Atlas 

  Streets  Streets   Capital  Revolving  Millage  TORC Park   Total  

 

Taxes $ - $ 89,604 $ - $ - $ 40,188 $ - $ - $ 129,792 

State Grants 187,617 88,023 - 2,650 - - - 278,290 

Charges for Services - - - 105,087 - - - 105,087 

Contributions - - - - - 25,000 - 25,000 

Interest and Rentals   -  625  37  170  132  42 -  1,006  

Total Revenues   187,617        178,252  37  107,907  40,320  25,042 -  539,175  

Expenditures 
 

Public Works 79,815 133,790 - 143,939 - 19,135 2,732 379,411 

Capital Outlay   -  -  -  11,900  -  - 3,736  15,636  

Total Expenditures   79,815        133,790  -  155,839  -  19,135 6,468  395,047  

Excess of Revenue Over (Under) 

Expenditures 

 
  107,802  44,462  37  (47,932)  40,320  5,907 (6,468)  144,128  

 
Fund Balance--January 1, 2018 

 
  91,110  49,421  28,889  145,109  45,667  (31,609) 421  329,008  

Fund Balance--December 31, 2018   $ 198,912      $  93,883      $ 28,926      $ 97,177      $  85,987      $  (25,702) $ (6,047)    $ 473,136  



56 

 

 

VILLAGE OF NEWBERRY--LUCE COUNTY 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL--GENERAL FUND 

 EXHIBIT K 

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2018   

 
Final 

 
Variance With 

Final Budget 

Original Amended 

REVENUES   Budget   Budget  

 
  Actual  

Positive 

     (Negative)  

Taxes 

Current Property Taxes $ 198,060 $ 208,456 

 
$ 196,198 

 
$ (12,258) 

Current Property Taxes--Garbage 24,600 25,859 24,338 (1,521) 

Personal Property Taxes - - 31,277 31,277 

Payment in Lieu of Taxes 31,500 31,500 31,500 - 

Interest on Delinquent Taxes - - 3,366 3,366 

Administrative Fees   6,600  6,975    3,809    (3,166) 

Total Taxes   260,760  272,790    290,488    17,698  

Licenses and Permits 

FOIA Request Revenue - 335 

 
336 

 
1 

Employee Insurance - 13,062 - (13,062) 

Licenses and Permits   100  254    254    -  

Total Licenses and Permits   100  13,651    590    (13,061) 

State Grants 

State Grants - 34,534 

 
100,904 

 
66,370 

Local Community Stabilization - 10,038 10,038 - 

State Revenue Sharing   210,900  179,379    191,533    12,154  

Total State Grants   210,900  223,951    302,475    78,524  

Charges for Services 

Admin Fee--Sewage O&M 27,000 - 

 
- 

 
- 

Charges for Services--Refuse 76,500 70,087 60,181 (9,906) 

Sales 1,900 - - - 

Garbage--Late Fees - 195 195 - 

Franchise Agreement   -  7,123    7,123    -  

Total Charges for Services   105,400  77,405    67,499    (9,906) 

Interest and Rentals 

Interest   800  1,916  

 
  3,568  

 
  1,652  

Total Interest and Rentals   800  1,916    3,568    1,652  

Other Revenue 
  

Advertising--Sky Magazine - 441 440 (1) 

Reimbursement Street Overhead 97,000 6,081 6,081 - 

Reimburse--Equipment Rental 142,000 136,860 136,860 - 

Contributions - - 14,370 14,370 

Reimbursement Overhead 96,400 266,875 266,875 - 

Reimbursement Admin Rural Development - 15,684 - (15,684) 

Reimbursements and Refunds   2,000  2,232    2,232    -  

Total Other Revenue   337,400  428,173    426,858    (1,315) 

Total Revenues  $ 915,360 $ 1,017,886    $ 1,091,478    $ 73,592  
 



57 

 

 

VILLAGE OF NEWBERRY--LUCE COUNTY EXHIBIT L 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL--GENERAL FUND 

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2018 

  
Final 

 Variance With 

Final Budget 

 
 
General Government 

Original 

  Budget  

Amended 

  Budget  

 
  Actual  

Positive 

     (Negative)  

Village Council $ 27,750 $ 15,913 $ 15,913 $ - 

Village President 4,100 5,671 5,670 1 

Village Manager 51,300 77,345 77,628 (283) 

Village Administrative 90,100 291,887 281,860 10,027 

Village Clerk 12,500 17,361 17,361 - 

Audit 8,750 2,925 2,925 - 

Ordinance Officer - 10,978 10,978 - 

Village Treasurer 11,650 12,467 12,574 (107) 

Village Hall 47,500 45,477 42,509 2,968 

Attorney   -    13,440    13,440    -  

Total General Government   253,650    493,464    480,858    12,606  

Public Safety 

Fire Department 

 
  4,820  

 
  44,136  

 
  44,136  

 
  -  

Total Public Safety   4,820    44,136    44,136    -  

Public Works 

DPW 

 
6,200 

 
137,590 

 
137,643 

 
(53) 

Sidewalks 3,900 - - - 

Street Lights 19,000 23,327 19,758 3,569 

Sewage Disposal 40,650 16 16 - 

Motor Pool 93,100 70,615 70,615 - 

Storm Sewers 1,100 3,632 3,632 - 

Rubbish   53,500    76,586    76,724    (138) 

Total Public Works   217,450    311,766    308,388    3,378  

Other Functions 

Miscellaneous 

 
  2,050  

 
  1,604  

 
  1,604  

 
  -  

Total Other Functions   2,050    1,604    1,604    -  

Capital Outlay   5,900    20,525    85,116    (64,591) 

Total Capital Outlay   5,900    20,525    85,116    (64,591) 

Total Expenditures   $ 483,870    $ 871,495    $ 920,102    $ (48,607) 



58 

 

 

4425 (Rev. 01-19) 

 
 

 
 

 
GRETCHEN WHITMER 

GOVERNOR 

STATE OF MICHIGAN 

DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY 

LANSING 

 

 
RACHAEL EUBANKS 

STATE TREASURER 

 
 

April 27, 2020 
 

 

 

Village of Newberry 

302 E. McMillan Ave 

Newberry, Michigan 49868 

 

RE: Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other 

Matters Based on an Audit of the Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with 

Government Auditing Standards 

 

Dear Council Members: 

 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 

of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 

Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the 

governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining 

fund information of the Village of Newberry, Luce County, Michigan, as of and for the year ended 

December 31, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise 

the Village of Newberry’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated 

April 27, 2020. 

 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

 

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Village of Newberry’s internal control 

over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in 

the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not 

for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Village of Newberry’s internal 

control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Village of 

Newberry’s internal control. 

 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 

management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, 

or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 

combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a 

material misstatement of the Village of Newberry’s financial statements will not be prevented, or 

detected and corrected on a timely basis. We consider the deficiencies described in the 

accompanying Schedule of Findings and Responses to be material weaknesses, listed as Findings 

2018-001, 2018-002 and 2018-003. 
 
 

P.O. BOX 30728 • LANSING, MICHIGAN 48909-8228 

www.michigan.gov/treasury • 517-335-7469 

http://www.michigan.gov/treasury
http://www.michigan.gov/treasury


 

 

Village of Newberry 

Page 2 

April 27, 2020 
 

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is 

less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 

with governance. We consider the deficiency described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings 

and Responses listed in as Finding 2018-004 to be a significant deficiency. 

 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 

of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 

material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. However, material weaknesses or significant 

deficiencies may exist that have not been identified. 

 

Compliance and Other Matters 

 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Village of Newberry’s financial 

statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain 

provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, non-compliance with which could 

have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, 

providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and 

accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed instances of 

non-compliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 

Standards and which are described in the Schedule of Findings and Responses listed as Findings 

2018-005, 2018-006, 2018-007, 2018-008 and 2018-009. 

 

Village of Newberry’s Responses to Findings 

 

The Village of Newberry’s responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the 

accompanying Schedule of Findings and Responses. The Village’s responses were not subjected 

to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we 

express no opinion on them. 

 

Purpose of this Report 

 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 

compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 

Village of Newberry’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit 

performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Village of 

Newberry’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for 

any other purpose. However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not 

limited. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Cary Jay Vaughn, CPA, CGFM 

Audit Manager 

Community Engagement and Finance Division 

59 



60 

 

 

4425 (Rev. 01-19) 

 
 

 
 

 
GRETCHEN WHITMER 

GOVERNOR 

STATE OF MICHIGAN 

DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY 

LANSING 

 

 
RACHAEL EUBANKS 

STATE TREASURER 

 
 

April 27, 2020 
 

 

Village of Newberry 

302 E. McMillan Ave 

Newberry, Michigan 49868 

 

RE: Report to Those Charged with Governance 

Dear Council Members: 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 

activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Village of 

Newberry, Luce County, Michigan, for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2018, and have issued 

our report thereon dated April 27, 2020. Professional standards require that we provide you with 

information related to our audit. 

 

Our Responsibility Under U.S. Generally Accepted Auditing Standards and Government 

Auditing Standards 
 

As stated in the engagement letter dated December 13, 2017, our responsibility, as described by 

professional standards, is to express an opinion about whether the financial statements prepared 

by management with your oversight are fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity 

with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our audit of the 

financial statements does not relieve you or management of your responsibilities. 

 

As part of our audit, we considered the internal control of the Village of Newberry. Such 

considerations were solely for the purpose of determining our audit procedures and not to provide 

any assurance concerning internal control. 

 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of 

material misstatement, we performed tests of the Village of Newberry’s compliance with certain 

provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants. However, the objective of our tests was not 

to provide an opinion on compliance with such provisions. 

 

Other information in Documents Containing Audited Financial Statements 
 

Our responsibility for the supplementary information accompanying the financial statements, as 

described in professional standards, is to evaluate the presentation of supplementary information 

in relation to the financial statements as a whole and to report on whether the supplementary 

information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a 

 
P.O. BOX 30728 • LANSING, MICHIGAN 48909-8228 

www.michigan.gov/treasury • 517-335-7469 

http://www.michigan.gov/treasury
http://www.michigan.gov/treasury


61 

Village of Newberry 

Page 2 

April 27, 2020 

 

 

 

whole. We made certain inquires of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods 

of preparing the information to determine that the information complies with the accounting 

principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the method of preparing it has not 

changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation to our 

audit of the financial statements. We compared and reconciled the supplementary information to 

the underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or the financial 

statements themselves. 

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit 

We performed the audit according to the planned scope and timing previously communicated to 

you in our engagement letter and our meeting about planning matters on May 14, 2018, with 

management. 

Significant Results of the Audit 

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 

 

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The 

significant accounting policies used by the Village of Newberry are described in Note A to the 

financial statements. As described in Note L, during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2018, the 

Village implemented GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 

Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. The statement of net position now includes 

additional information related to the postemployment benefits other than pension in the 

government-wide statements and more detailed information in the notes to the financial statements. 

We noted no transactions entered into by the Village of Newberry during the year for which there 

is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. There are no significant transactions that have 

been recognized in the financial statements in a different period than when the transaction 

occurred. 

 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and 

are based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and 

assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because 

of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events 

affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimate affecting 

the governmental activities in the government-wide statements was depreciation. 

The most sensitive estimates affecting the governmental activities in the government-wide 

statements relate to depreciation, the allowance for doubtful accounts, the net pension liability, the 

liability for other postemployment benefits, and the estimate of the current portion of vested 

employee benefits. Management’s estimate of depreciation is based on the straight line method in 

accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. Management’s estimate of the 

allowance for doubtful accounts is based on uncollectible utility receivables. For the pension, 

estimates and assumptions are determined by MERS and its actuary, based on the Village’s 

negotiation with its bargaining units and resolutions of the Village Council. 



62 

Village of Newberry 

Page 3 

April 27, 2020 

 

 

 

For retiree health care, the estimates and assumption are based on the alternative measurement 

method actuarial valuation. Management’s estimate of the current portion of vested employee 

benefits payable within the next year is based on historical trends and current policies regarding 

the usage of these benefits. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the 

depreciation, the allowance for doubtful accounts, the net pension liability, the liability for other 

post-employment benefits, and the current portion of vested employee benefits payable in 

determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements, taken as a whole. 

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 

We encountered no difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our 

audit. 

 

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified 

during the audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level 

of management. Management has corrected all such misstatements. In addition, none of the 

misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures and corrected by management were material, 

either individually or in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

 

Disagreements with Management 
 

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, 

or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the 

financial statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements 

arose during the course of the audit. 

 

Management Representations 
 

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management 

representation letter dated April 27, 2020. 

 

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 
 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and 

accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation 

involves application of an accounting principle to the Village of Newberry’s financial statements 

or a determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our 

professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the 

consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with 

other accountants. 



63 

Village of Newberry 

Page 4 

April 27, 2020 

 

 

 

Other Audit Findings or Issues 
 

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and 

auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the Village of Newberry’s 

auditors. However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship 

and our responses were not a condition to our retention. 

 

This information is intended solely for the use of the Council and management of the Village of 

Newberry and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified 

parties. However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited. 

 

 

Sincerely, 
 

Cary Jay Vaughn, CPA, CGFM 

Audit Manager 

Community Engagement and Finance Division 



64 

VILLAGE OF NEWBERRY--LUCE COUNTY 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES 

Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2018 

 

 

 

 

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management 

or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect 

misstatements on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination 

of control deficiencies, that could adversely affect the Village of Newberry’s ability to initiate, 

authorize, record, process, or report financial data reliably in accordance with generally accepted 

accounting principles such that there is more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of the 

Village of Newberry’s financial statements that is more than inconsequential will not be 

prevented or detected by the Village’s internal control. A material weakness is a significant 

deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that could result in more than a remote 

likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not be prevented or 

detected. Listed below are material weaknesses and significant deficiencies in the internal 

control. 

 
 

MATERIAL WEAKNESSES 
 

Preparation of Financial Statements in Accordance with GAAP (Repeat Finding) 

Finding 2018-001 

 

Condition: As many small and medium-sized governmental entities do, the Village has 

historically relied on its independent external auditors to assist in the preparation of the 

government-wide financial statements, fund financial statements, and notes to financial 

statements as part of its external financial reporting process. Accordingly, the Village’s ability to 

prepare financial statements in accordance with GAAP is based, in part, on its reliance on its 

external auditors, who cannot by definition be considered to be a part of the Village’s internal 

controls. 

 

Cause: This condition was caused by the Village’s decision that it is more cost effective to 

outsource the preparation of its annual financial statements to the auditors than to incur the time 

and expense of obtaining the necessary training and expertise required for Village personnel to 

prepare them internally. 

 

Effect: The Village lacks internal controls over the preparation of financial statements in 

accordance with GAAP, and instead relies, in part, on its external auditors for assistance with 

this duty. 

 

Criteria: All Michigan governments are required to prepare financial statements in accordance 

with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). This is a responsibility of the 

government’s management. The preparation of financial statements in accordance with GAAP 

requires internal controls over both: 1) recording, processing and summarizing accounting data 

(maintaining internal accounting books and records); and 2) reporting government-wide and fund 

financial statements, including the related notes to financial statements (external financial 

reporting). 



65 

VILLAGE OF NEWBERRY--LUCE COUNTY 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES 

Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2018 

 

 

 

 

MATERIAL WEAKNESSES (Continued) 
 

Recommendation: We recommend that the Village council evaluate the cost versus benefit of 

establishing internal controls over the preparation of financial statements in accordance with 

GAAP and determine if it is in the best interests of the Village to outsource this duty to its 

external auditors. If the Village continues to rely on its external auditors to prepare the financial 

statements, we recommend the council designate a responsible Village official to carefully 

review the draft financial statements including the notes, prior to approving them and accepting 

responsibility for their content and presentation. 

 

Management’s Response: Due to the small size and limited staffing, the Village of Newberry has 

historically hired an external independent auditor to prepare the financial statements. 

Management continues to review and accept responsibility for the completed financial statement. 

In September of 2018, the Village converted to BS&A Accounting Software and hired a 

qualified person who is experienced with governmental accounting to provide a better system of 

internal control and a greater level of quality control. 
 

 

 

Material Audit Adjustments (Repeat Finding) 

Finding 2018-002 
 

Condition: During our audit, we identified and proposed numerous material adjustments, which 

were approved and posted by management, to adjust the Village’s general ledger to the audited 

balances. These adjustments included recording the effect of prior year accruals for receivables 

and payables, recording current year accruals for receivables and payables, balancing interfund 

transactions and properly allocating tax revenue. 

 

Cause: The Village had a change in accounting staff and converted to a new accounting system 

in November of 2018 and the staff did not completely understand the reconciling and closing 

processes. 

 

Effect: The Village accounting records were initially misstated by amounts material to the 

financial statements. 

 

Criteria: Management is responsible for maintaining the Village’s accounting records in 

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). 

 

Recommendation: We recommend that the Village council provide for appropriate training for its 

accounting personnel so they can begin to assume the responsibility for properly adjusting and 

reconciling all Village accounts throughout the fiscal year and at fiscal year-end to provide more 

accurate data to the council for decision making and to reduce the cost of the external audit. 



66 

VILLAGE OF NEWBERRY--LUCE COUNTY 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES 

Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2018 

 

 

 

 

MATERIAL WEAKNESSES (Continued) 
 

Management Response: The Village accounting staff has the ability to perform the day to day 

accounting functions including cash receipts and disbursements, processing accounts payable, 

preparing bills for customers, and performing monthly bank reconciliations. In the past, the 

Village had not been able to hire staff with the necessary expertise to perform a full close of the 

accounting records at year-end and adequately prepare for the audit. Moving forward, we feel 

that the person we have hired has the governmental accounting expertise that we need. 

 

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles—Finance Manager--Accruals (Repeat Finding) 

Finding 2018-003 

Condition: Accruals (accounts payable, delinquent taxes) were not recorded for the 

governmental funds prior to the audit adjustments and accruals from the prior year audit were not 

properly reversed. 

 

Cause: In the past, the Village had hired an accounting firm to perform the closing entries prior 

to the audit being performed. Therefore, Village staff did not understand how to record current 

year accruals and reverse prior year accruals. 

 

Effect: Numerous adjusting entries had to be made to properly reflect accruals at year end. 

 

Criteria: Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) require governmental funds to be 

maintained on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of 

accounting, revenues are recognized in the accounting period in which they become susceptible 

to accrual, that is, when they become both measurable and available. Available means collectible 

within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current 

period. Measurable refers to the ability to quantify the amount of the revenue in monetary terms. 

Current expenditures are generally recorded when the fund liability is incurred, if measurable. 

GAAP also requires that receivables expected to be received within 60 days and accounts 

payable be recorded at fiscal year-end to properly match the fiscal year’s revenues and 

expenditures. 

 

Recommendation: We recommend that the Village record accruals at the end of each fiscal year 

and that such accruals be properly reversed in the following fiscal year. The accruals should be 

reconciled to subsidiary records to support the balances in the respective accounts within the 

general ledger. 

 

Management Response: See answer to Finding 2018-002. Due to staffing  limitations,  the 

Village has since at least 2009, relied on outside service providers to perform this function for 

the Village. In September 2018, all day to day accounting functions and year end closing out 

became the responsibility of the finance director. We anticipate that this deficiency will not be 

present for future audits. 



67 

VILLAGE OF NEWBERRY--LUCE COUNTY 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES 

Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2018 

 

 

 

 

SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCIES 
 

Reconciliation of Accounting Records (Repeat Finding) 

Finding 2018-004 
 

Condition: Recording errors are occurring and not being discovered because there are no 

reconciliations being performed between supporting documentation and the general ledger 

(accounts receivable, accounts payable, bank statements). 

 

Cause: In the past, the Village had hired an accounting firm to perform the closing entries and 

account reconciliations prior to the audit being performed. Therefore, Village staff did not 

understand what entries were necessary to reconcile account details to general ledger balances at 

year end. 

 

Effect: The auditors had to reconcile accounting records to general ledger detail and propose 

reconciling entries for numerous accounts. 

 

Criteria: A comparison of the amounts recorded in the accounting records of the accounting staff 

to the records of the treasurer is not performed by the accounting staff. Subsidiary ledgers are not 

being compared to general ledgers amounts 

 

Recommendation: We recommend that the accounting staff keep a complete set of accounting 

records based on source documentation utilizing the uniform chart of accounts prescribed by the 

State Treasurer. The records must be reconciled to the treasurer’s records and to subsidiary 

ledgers. 

 

Management Response: See answers to Findings 2018-002 and 2018-003. In September of  

2018, the Village switched to BS&A Software and to a pooled cash system. By moving to this 

new system, the Village believes this is a better system of internal control and provides a greater 

level of quality control. 



68 

VILLAGE OF NEWBERRY--LUCE COUNTY 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES 

Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2018 

 

 

 

 

STATUTORY COMPLIANCE 
 

Budget Violations--Expenditures in Excess of Appropriations 

Finding 2018-005 
 

Condition: Our examination of procedures used by the Village to adopt and maintain operating 

budgets for the Village’s budgetary funds revealed the following instances of non-compliance 

with the provisions of Public Act 2 of 1968, as amended, the Uniform Budgeting and Accounting 

Act. 

 

The Village’s 2018 General Appropriations Act (budget) provided for expenditures of the 

General Fund to be controlled to the activity level by the Village. As detailed below, actual 2018 

expenditures exceeded the Village’s approved budget allocations for some General Fund and 

Special Revenue Fund activities. 

 

Public Act 2 of 1968, as amended, requires the adoption of a balanced budget for general and 

special revenue funds, as well as budget amendments as needed to prevent actual expenditures 

from exceeding those provided for in the budget. 

 

During the year, the Village incurred expenditures in certain budgeted funds, which were in 

excess of the amounts appropriated, as follows: 
Excess 

Fund, Function and Activity   Budget    Actual   Expenditures  

General Fund 

General Government 

Village Manager $ 77,345 $ 77,628 $ (283) 

Village Treasurer 12,467 12,574 (107) 

Public Works    - 

Department of Public Works 137,590 137,643 (53) 

Rubbish 76,586 76,724 (138) 

Capital Outlay 20,525 85,116 (64,591) 

Fire Revolving Fund 

Public Safety 126,650 143,939 (17,289) 

Capital Outlay - 11,900 (11,900) 



69 

VILLAGE OF NEWBERRY--LUCE COUNTY 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES 

Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2018 

 

 

 

 

STATUTORY COMPLIANCE (Continued) 
 

Criteria: The expenditures of funds in excess of appropriations are contrary to the provisions of 

Section 17 of Public Act 2 of 1968, as amended. 

 

Cause: The Village did not have accurate financial statements during the fiscal year to allow for 

timely decision making and budget amendments. 

 

Effect: The Village had several instances of actual expenditures in excess of budgeted 

expenditures. 

 

Directive: We direct the Village to develop budgetary control procedures which will ensure that 

expenditures do not exceed amounts authorized in the General Appropriations Act or 

amendments thereof. 

 

Management Response: The Village appropriately passed a comprehensive budget amendment in 

late December 2018. Unfortunately, due to the internal accounting limitations noted in other 

findings, our projections on final year end balances were understated in some cases.  

Management is monitoring budget to actual results on a regular basis and intends to pass a 

comprehensive budget amendment prior to December 31, 2019. 
 

Fund Deficit—Noncompliance with PA 2 of 1968 (Repeat Finding) 

Finding 2018-006 
 

Condition: The Village has a deficit in its fund balance for the TORC Fund and the Atlas Park 

Fund as of December 31, 2018, in the amounts of $25,702 and $6,047, respectively, which is 

contrary to state statutes. 

 

Criteria: Non-compliance with PA 2 of 1968 (MCL 141.437), as amended, Expenditures in 

Excess of Available Revenues: 

 

“If, during a fiscal year, it appears to the chief administrative officer or to the legislative 

body that the actual and probable revenues from taxes and other sources in a fund are less 

than the estimated revenues, including an available surplus upon which appropriations 

from the fund were based and the proceeds from bonds or other obligations issued under 

the fiscal stabilization act, 1981 PA 80, MCL 141.1001 to 141.1011, or the balance of the 

principal of these bonds or other obligations, the chief administrative officer or fiscal 

officer shall present to the legislative body recommendations which, if adopted, would 

prevent expenditures from exceeding available revenues for that current fiscal year. The 

recommendations shall include proposals for reducing appropriations from the fund for 

budgetary centers in a manner that would cause the total of appropriations to not be greater 

than the total of revised estimated revenues of the fund, or proposals for measures 

necessary to provide revenues sufficient to meet expenditures of the fund, or both. The 

recommendations shall recognize the requirements of state law and the provisions of 

collective bargaining agreements.” 



VILLAGE OF NEWBERRY--LUCE COUNTY 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES 

Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2018 

70 

 

 

 

 

STATUTORY COMPLIANCE (Continued) 
 

The Village failed to limit expenditures to available revenues for fiscal year 2018. 

Cause: The Village did not have accurate financial records throughout the fiscal year. 

Effect: The Village is not compliant with state statutes. 

Directive: We direct the Village to review budget to actual results on a regular basis and make 

amendments as necessary to prevent spending in excess of available resources. 

 

Management Response: Although the fund balance is negative, it is more than offset by a 

deferred inflow for receivables not collected within the period of availability. On a full accrual 

basis, this fund would not have a deficit period. The Village understands why the auditor feels 

compelled to make this a finding, but contends this fund is being adequately managed. 
 

Net Position / Fund Balance Deficit – Non-compliance with PA 140 of 1971 

Finding 2018-007 
 

Condition: The Village has a deficit in its unrestricted net position for the Sewer Fund as of 

December 31, 2018, in the amount of $437,586 which is contrary to state statutes. 

 

Criteria: Non-compliance with PA 140 of 1971, as amended, Failure to File Reports and Deficit 

Elimination Plans: 

 

“For a fiscal year of a unit of local government ending on or after October 1, 1980 or any 

year thereafter, if a local unit of government ends its fiscal year in a deficit condition, the 

local unit of government shall formulate and file a financial plan within 90 days after the 

beginning of the fiscal year to correct this condition. Upon request of a local unit of 

government the Department of Treasury may assist that local unit in the formulation of the 

financial plan to correct the deficit condition. The local unit of government shall file the 

financial plan with the Department of Treasury for evaluation and certification that the  

plan ensures that the deficit condition is corrected. Upon certification by the Department of 

Treasury, the local unit of government shall institute the plan. An amount equal to 25% of 

each payment to a local unit of government entitled to payments under this act may be 

withheld until requirements of this subsection are met.” 

 

The Village failed to formulate and file a deficit elimination plan within 90 days after the end of 

the fiscal year to correct the deficit condition (MCL 141.921(2)). The deficit elimination plan is 

to be filed with the state treasurer. 

 

Cause: The Village did not have accurate financial records throughout the fiscal year. 



VILLAGE OF NEWBERRY--LUCE COUNTY 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES 

Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2018 

71 

 

 

 

 

STATUTORY COMPLIANCE (Continued) 
 

Effect: The Village is not compliant with state statutes. 

 

Directive: We direct the Village to file a Deficit Elimination Plan as required by PA 140 of 1971, 

as amended. 

 

Management Response: The Sewer Fund has been in a deficit since 2012. Twice previously, in 

2012 and 2014, the Village was required by the Department of Treasury to file deficit 

elimination plans; however, the Village did not follow through on those plans and the deficit has 

not only remained but has grown over time. Exacerbating the Sewer Fund’s financial troubles, 

the Village has not been able to collect outstanding receivables from a neighboring Township 

who is the Sewer Fund’s second largest customer. 

 

The deficit in the General Fund is the result of the General Fund providing long-term financial 

support to the Sewer Fund. The General Fund has adequate fund balance in total, but it is 

currently classified and non-spendable according to GASB Statement No. 54. When the Sewer 

Fund is able to repay General Fund, the General Fund’s deficit will be eliminated. 

 

In an effort to help solve the Sewer Fund’s financial problems, the Village did raise sewer rates 

in August 2017. Thanks to the rate increase and other management efforts, the Sewer Fund has 

begun seeing financial improvements. In order to comply with State law, Village management 

prepared and submitted a deficit elimination plan in May 2019. 
 

Village Council--Violations of Public Act 2 of 1968—Audit 

Finding 2018-008 
 

Condition: The Village has not submitted an audit report for the year ended December 31, 2018 

within the required timeline. 
 

Criteria: According to Public Act 2 of 1968, as amended, local units of government are required 

to have an annual audit, except in the instance of units of less than 4,000 in population, which 

have a minimum requirement of an audit not less frequently than every two years. Audit reports 

are to be filed with the Michigan Department of Treasury within six months after the end of the 

fiscal year being audited. However, the Michigan Department of Treasury has required the 

Village to obtain audits annually until the reported deficiencies are rectified and timely audits are 

filed. 
 

Cause: The Village did not get their fiscal year ended December 31, 2018 information finalized 

in a timely manner for the audit prior to the filing deadline. 
 

Effect: The Village is in non-compliance with State statute. Whereas the Village did not submit 

the audit for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2018 by June 30, 2019, the audit is now 

considered delinquent. The Village did receive an extension from the Department of Treasury 

but was unable to meet that extension deadline. 



VILLAGE OF NEWBERRY--LUCE COUNTY 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES 

Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2018 

72 

 

 

 

 

Directive: We direct the Village to make every effort to comply with this requirement in the next 

audit cycle. 

 

Management Response: The Village will make every effort to ensure that the accounting records 

are maintained on a timely basis to ensure that their next required audit is submitted within the 

required time limits. 

 

OTHER MATTERS 
 

Village Council--Violations of Bond Requirements—Annual Audit (Repeat Finding) 

Finding 2018-009 

 

Condition: The Village has not submitted an audit report for the year ended December 31, 2018 

within the required timeline. 

 

Criteria: According to General Covenants of the Sanitary Sewer System Revenue Bond, Series 

2014, the Village is required to have an annual audit performed by an independent certified 

public accountant. The covenant also states that “the audit shall be completed and so made 

available not later than six (6) months after the close of each operating year”. 

 

Cause: The Village did not get their fiscal year ended December 31, 2018 information finalized 

in a timely manner for the audit prior to the filing deadline. 

 

Effect: The Village is in non-compliance with Bond covenants. Whereas the Village did not 

submit the audit for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2018 by June 30, 2019, the audit is now 

considered delinquent. 

 

Directive: We direct the Village to make every effort to comply with this requirement in the next 

audit cycle. 

 

Management Response: The Village will make every effort to ensure that the accounting records 

are maintained on a timely basis to ensure that their next required audit is submitted within the 

required time limits. 


	Watkins_VillageManager_Employment_Agreement_with_Appendices_for_approval_10.15.2020.pdf
	Watkins_VillageManger_Employment_Agreement_final_working_draft_9.25_nowatermark_for council meeting
	Ordinance_36_Village_Manager_adopted_ineffect_June_2020_withaffidavit
	Ordinance_36_Village_Manager_adopted_ineffect_June_2020
	ORD36_printers affidavit

	Village_Manager_Final_approved by council 7.21.2020




